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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

On behalf of the Board of Huscoke Holdings Limited, | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The year 2019 was full of challenges for the Group. Coke,
positioned as middle-stream in the industry chain, is closely
linked with infrastructure, property and other industries. Affected
by factors such as rising international trading frictions, retarded
growth for domestic economy and sluggish market for downstream
steel, the domestic coke market was generally on the weak side
and coke price had dropped from high level at the beginning of
the year with a fluctuating trend. On the other hand, coking coal,
positioned as upstream in the industry chain, the slightly tightened
supply had caused steady price increment, and the narrowing
spread of coke led to substantial depression of the Group’s gross
margin. Responding to the worsening market environment, the
management took timely strategies to stabilize the production
and sales while strengthening its control over various costs and
expenses, thus the Group had managed to remain profitable in
this year and the overall operation and financial position sustained
its steadiness and soundness.

The year 2019 brought along with vast opportunities to the
Group. Facing the pressure of upgrading and transformation
over the coke industry from the PRC’s government, the Group
had actively explored new business segments and expanding
the upstream and downstream of coke industry chain and had
made significant progress in the year. The Group entered into
Shareholders Agreements on 12 September and 20 November
2019 respectively, pursuant to which, Shanxi Golden Rock Rich
Hydrogen Energy Co., Ltd. (lLfai& E B EERABR AR (“Rich
Hydrogen Energy”), will be established in Shanxi Province, the
PRC. Rich Hydrogen Energy is planned to principally engage in
projects of producing LNG, synthetic ammonia, urea and related
products, as well as the development of clean energy business
including hydrogen, thus the Group’s revenues would become
more diversified for enhancing the overall profitability. Meanwhile,
the Group has been actively exploring potential projects for
acquisition and merger in a bid to proceed the updating and
upgrading of coke production business. In November 2019, the
Group entered into a Framework Agreement with Shanxi Jinyan
Energy Technology Company Limited* (IL7E & &8 RE KB R
‘A7) (“Energy Technology”), pursuant to which the Company
intends to acquire and merge a coke production project with a
capacity of over 5 million tons coke per year. Upon the completion,
it will enlarge the Group’s scale of production and enhance its

production technology.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH

AANBURRNZEZERERAFNESTS
MARZEAEEHEZE_T-AF+T A=
T—HZFERS -

EBOE
TE-NFHAKERFT MO —F -
ERESEFRETHEERER BHE
FOXEREM XBREZEEEN -
B 1A 4% 775 48 = AR DA K T U5 8+ T 35 9% 58
SHEFE BARRMEERES &
REREBFVRMLTY®  EBKE - B
EREREZXHLEHHERE  EEKE
RiFLE  EREZRFEERAKEE
NBEEXE TEEE/SBYMSRESL
RERDNRBARERBELEEREE R
BmaEs SERARER  EAKER
AEENESARN  BRBEENMVWHKMAR
DR RRE

ZE-NFHAEETR R mEEN—
F o MEPEBTEFTEARIGER
N AEEESRRAEFEBRRLEES
RETHEER URAFERBSEXNE
B -AEEDIR_Z—NFLATZAR
T—AZTHEITRFEBZEUARFE LA
R LA eSS EERATIES
BER)) FTEIAEERIERAR - aREA K
REZICTER  UEAZEIESERE
R EAREERARIRE Z b AR A
BEFEKE - HL R - NEB AR
MEEWBEBASHEEARIAEENER
EEXEBHARBR  UR=ZZF—h&F+
—AELAeaRREFERAF (TR
BEDETERGZ  ERERBSHESF
ES00E MEFE(LIHE - TR AT KRR
EEAEERBURIEEAEERN -



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

OUTLOOK

The year 2020 will set an end to the 13th Five-year Plan of the
State. It is expected that the State will reinforce the implementation
of the policies of coke de-capacity and industry upgrading so
as to achieve the target of 13th Five-year Plan, and to further
eliminate inefficient capacity and effectively regulate the supply
& demand situation for the coke market, thereby optimizing the
structure for coke industry. In addition, the pandemic of COVID-19
broke out globally in the beginning of 2020, China has begun
to resume work and production after performing effective control
over the outbreak, and the impact of the epidemic on production
and operations is expected to be limited. At the same time, the
Chinese government plans to implement a series of economic
stimulus measures and increase investment in infrastructure, which
is expected to stimulate coke demand and facilitate the return of
coke prices to a reasonable level. Accordingly, the environment
for coke market in 2020 is expected to be improved and is
favorable for the production and operation of coke industry. The
Group will closely monitor the market trend and will seasonably
take operational and development strategies to correspond to the
market challenge from time to time and seize market opportunity
in a bid to enhance the Group’s operational performance for 2020.

Meanwhile, the PRC government’s de-capacity and environmental
policies pose transformation and upgrading pressures to the
Group with future challenges. The Group will actively develop
new business segments and escalate the investment in and
construction for coke oven gas project of Rich Hydrogen Energy.
Upon the completion of the construction, it will produce 250,000
tons of LNG, 800,000 tons of synthetic ammonia and 1,400,000
tons of urea per annum. Meanwhile, the Group intends to acquire
and merge the coke production project with capacity of 5,000,000
tons per annum located in Xiaoyi, Shanxi and to actively facilitate
the relevant acquisition & merger matters. Upon the completion
of the transaction, it will be beneficial to the Group to integrate
coke production business and to propel the transformation and
upgrading of the industry so as to fulfil the clean plus efficient
environmental objectives and to optimize economies of scale. The
management expects that the new business will drive the growth
for the Group and enable the Group’s business to develop in a
better way so as to enhance the Group’s future profitability and
thereby creating long-term investment opportunities with steady
return for Shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to all Shareholders, business partners, long-term
customers and banks for their continuous support, and sincerely
thank all Directors and staff for their dedication and diligence.

ZHAO Xu Guang
Chairman

30 March 2020

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWR N

BUSINESS REVIEW

Subject to sustained impacts from international trade disputes,
the PRC’s overall economic growth in 2019 slowed with the gross
domestic product increasing by 6.1% of which gross industrial
production increased by 5.7%. Coke output throughout the country
for the year amounted to 471.26 million tons, which was an
increase of approximately 7.5% over 438.20 million tons in 2018,
while nationwide crude steel output in the same period amounted
to 996.34 million tons, which had increased by approximately 7.3%
over 2018’s 928.26 million tons. Due to slackening environmental
restrictions, coke supply and demand was balanced and relaxed.
Impacted by coke supply and demand and changing demand in
the downstream steel market, the domestic coke price for the year
trended upward first and then slided downward.

In 2019, domestic coking coal supply and demand was basically
balanced but slightly supply-tightening, and coal prices followed
a steady and upside trend. Compared with upstream coal
enterprises and downstream steel enterprises, the concentration of
the coke industry was on the lower side, which in turn weakened
coke enterprises’ bargaining power. With the reduction in the
coke selling price and rising coal cost, profits margins for coke
enterprises were generally trimmed off. Despite the challenging
environment for the domestic coke market in 2019 compared with
that of 2018, management has taken a series of measures in
response to domestic market challenges to improve the Group’s
operational performance, implementing stringent cost control and
reducing overall expenses in order to remain profitable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Total revenue of the Group for the year was approximately
HK$1,605,356,000 (2018: HK$1,478,049,000). The gross profit for
this year amounted to HK$175,857,000 (2018: HK$245,821,000),
and the Group recorded a gross profit margin of approximately
11.0% for the year as compared to approximately 16.6% in 2018.
Profit after tax for the year was approximately HK$14,703,000
(2018: HK$146,708,000), and profit attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to HK$9,761,000 (2018: HK$129,118,000).
Basic earnings per share for the year was 0.35 Hong Kong cents,
as compared to the basic earnings (restated) per share of 4.95
Hong Kong cents in 2018.

The Group is principally engaged in three business segments,
namely: (i) trading of coke (the “Coke Trading Segment”); (ii)
washing of raw coal into refined coal for sale and for further
processing and the sale of electricity and heat generated as
byproducts produced during the washing of raw coal (the “Coal-
related Ancillary Segment”); and (iii) processing of refined coal
into coke for sale, and sale of coke by-products of coke production
(the “Coke Production Segment”).

Coke Trading Segment

The Group’s revenue from the Coke Trading Segment for the year
amounted to approximately HK$2,540,000, as compared to that
of approximately HK$35,884,000 in the corresponding period last
year, the decrease was mainly attributable to the reduction in
trading volume of the Group. The Group has no segment results
of Coke Trading for the year, representing a decrease compared
to that of HK$315,000 in the corresponding period last year, which
mainly resulted from the narrowing of spread between purchase
and sale price of coke.

Coal-related Ancillary Segment

The Group’s external revenue from the Coal-related Ancillary
Segment for the year amounted to approximately HK$168,505,000,
as compared to that of approximately HK$91,119,000 in the
corresponding period last year. The Group’s segment results
of coke trading for the year was approximately HK$861,000,
representing an improvement as compared to that in the
corresponding period last year. The increase was mainly due to the
non-revolving of the huge impairment of coal washing equipment

last year, and no such provision for the current year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWR N

Coke Production Segment

The Group’s revenue from the coke production for the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,434,311,000, as compared to
that of approximately HK$1,351,046,000 in the corresponding
period last year, the increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in sales volume of coke. The Group’s segment results
for the year from the coke production was approximately
HK$97,849,000, that of approximately
HK$504,755,000 in the corresponding period last year. The
difference was due to the reduction in the coke price plus the

as compared to

rising coal price this year that had resulted in spread narrowing,
and the non-revolving of impairment reversal in property, plant and
equipment items happened last year.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The Group’s selling and distribution costs amounted to
approximately HK$123,024,000, that of
approximately HK$137,637,000 in the corresponding period last

as compared to

year. The decrease was mainly due to a reduction of transportation
costs and the implementation of other effective cost control
measures.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year amounted
to approximately HK$88,018,000, as compared to that of
corresponding period last year of approximately HK$103,301,000.
The decrease was mainly due to the control over staff salaries and
the decrease in maintenance costs for production equipment.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs for the year amounted to approximately
HK$11,409,000, as compared to that of corresponding period last
year of approximately HK$2,200,000. The increase was mainly
due to the rise in interest expenses arising from the Group’s new
borrowing for the year.

Profit Before Tax

The Group’s profit before tax for the year amounted to
approximately HK$26,250,000, to that of
approximately HK$176,659,000 in the corresponding period last

as compared

year (restated). The difference was mainly due to impairment
reversal of approximately HK$99,053,000 incurred from items of
property, plant and equipment last year, while no such impairment
reversal happened this year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWMR DN

Profit for the Year

The Group’s profit for the year was approximately HK$14,703,000,
as compared to that of corresponding period of approximately
HK$146,708,000 last year (restated). Apart from the foregoing
factors, the difference was also mainly because PRC tax losses
were available to fully offset taxable profits last year, while all tax
losses had been fully utilized and therefore PRC corporate income
tax was due in this year.

CHARGES OVER ASSETS
The Group had no pledged assets (including charges over
deposits) during the year (2018: Nil).

MATERIAL INVESTMENT, ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

As disclosed by the Company in the announcements dated 12
September 2019 and 20 November 2019, the Bloom Wealth
Investment Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
Ltd.*
shareholder agreement for the establishment of Rich Hydrogen

and Shanxi Baimaoyuan Trading Co., entered into a
Energy. Relevant matters were approved by the Shareholders of
the Company at the special general meeting held on 11 February
2020. Apart from this, the Group had no material investment,

acquisition and disposal as at 31 December 2019.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximize the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of underlying assets. To maintain the most optimum
capital structure, the Group may adjust dividend policy, capital
distribution to shareholders or issuance of new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or procedures for

capital management during the year ended 31 December 2019.

For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWR N

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of other
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables,
prepayment, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
non-controlling shareholder, cash and bank balances, trade
payables, and other payables and accruals, which arise directly

from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews
and agrees upon the various policies for managing these risks.

The Group regularly adopts gearing ratios as a tool of monitoring
capital structure. The gearing ratio as of 31 December 2019 was
711% (31 December 2018 (restated): 62.8%).

As of 31 December 2019, the equity attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to HK$541,520,000 (31 December 2018
(restated): HK$513,728,000).

The net assets per share as at 31 December 2019 was HK$0.214
(31 December 2018 (restated): HK$0.216).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Net current assets and current ratio were approximately
HK$235,750,000 (31 December 2018: net current liabilities of
HK$74,822,000) and 1.19 (31 December 2018: 0.92) respectively
as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounted to approximately HK$20,839,000 (31
2018: HK$18,894,000), other borrowings were approximately
HK$218,188,000 (31 December 2018: HK$18,188,000) and there
were no convertible bonds (31 December 2018: HK$43,526,000).

December

As of 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no bills
payable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWMR DN

OPERATING LEASE AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 2019,
requirements under Hong Kong Accounting Standards, the Group
had no operating lease commitments (2018: HK$34,123,000).

December according to the disclosure

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
The Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure the Company
maintains a sound and effective risk management and internal
control system. The Group’s internal control system is designed
and established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal; relevant rules and regulations are
adhered to and complied with; reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting
standards and regulatory reporting requirements; and key risks
that may impact the Group’'s performance are appropriately
identified and managed. The review of the Group’s internal controls
covers major financial, operational and compliance controls, as
well as risk management functions. The internal control system can
only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage, rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in achieving business objectives.
includes risk

The Group’s risk management framework

identification, risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring
This

is guided by a three-tier risk

and reviewing of the effectiveness of the measures.
risk management framework
management approach. At the first line of defense, business units
are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with all business or transactions. Management, as the
second line of defense, defines rule sets and models, provides
technical support, develops new systems and oversees portfolio
management. It ensures that risks are within the acceptable
range and that the first line of defense is effective. As the final
line of defense, the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”), with the professional advice and opinions from
external professional consultants, who conduct annual audit work
for the Group, continually inspects and monitors the first and

second lines of defense to ensure that they are effective.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWMRIN

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly comprises of fair value interest
risk and cash flow interest rate risk. 1) Fair value interest rate risk is
the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
the changes in market interest rates. The Group’s fair value interest
rate risk relates primarily to short-term cash and bank balances. 2)
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of the changes in market
interest rates. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk through the impact of interest rate changes on deposits.
To minimize the fair value interest rate risk, the Group keeps its
borrowings with a fixed rate of interest. Management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arises.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’'s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), United States
dollars (“USD”) and Hong Kong dollars (“HK$").
is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from the monetary

The Group

assets and liabilities that are denominated in currencies other
than functional currencies of the respective group entities. The
Group does not have any hedging instruments outstanding.
The Group will constantly review the economic situation and its
foreign currency risk profile and will consider appropriate hedging
measures in the future as may be necessary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities that have not been provided for in the financial
statements (as at 31 December 2018: Nil).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury
and funding policies, with a focus on risk management and
transactions that are directly related to the underlying business of
the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
As at 31 December 2019,
employees (31 December 2018: approximately 1,400 employees),
with 18 employees stationed in Hong Kong and the rest, including
senior management and workers, in Mainland China. For the year

the Group had approximately 530

ended 31 December 2019, the Group's staff costs amounted to
approximately HK$54,905,000, as compared to approximately
HK$95,317,000 in the previous year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWMR DN

Employees are remunerated according to the nature of the job
and market trends, performance evaluation mechanism, annual
increment and year-end performance bonus measures to reward
and motivate individual performance. As at the date of this report,
the Group has no share options outstanding under the share option
scheme.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.

OUTLOOK

Looking into 2020, the China’'s economy has slowed significantly
in the first quarter due to the impacts of the Novel Coronavirus
("COoVID-19").
decisive measures to effectively control the epidemic situation

Nevertheless, the PRC government has taken

and resumed production within a short period of time. It is
expected that the epidemic situation should have caused limited
impact on the overall production and operation of the Group. It is
anticipated that the PRC government will launch further economic
incentive measures to increase infrastructure investment, which
can stimulate production demand for the steel industry, and that
would facilitate the production and operation in the coke industry.
According to the requirements under Thirteenth Five-Year Plan,
2020 is the final year to eliminate inefficient production capacity,
with an aim to eradicate production capacity up to 50 million tons.
It is expected that execution of environmental output-limitation and
capacity elimination will be intensified, thus coke supply will restore
to a equilibrium, and coke prices will rebounce to a reasonable
level. Meanwhile, coal market supply and prices will return to
normal level by next year to follow the pace of coke prices, as
a result the spread will return to normal level. In foreseeable
future, it will improve the profitability of coke enterprises, which
will be favorable to the Group’s operation and development in
coke production business next year. The Group will continue to
implement stringent cost controls and reduce expenses, and to

monitor risks to enhance the Group's profitability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWR N

The PRC government has intensified to eliminate capacity in
the coke industry and tightened environmental standards that
will raise overall pressure for the coke production industry
which is challenging environment. The Group will strictly comply
with national environmental standards and promptly upgrade
production equipment so as to reduce emissions and resource
emission

consumption, and to meet the updated national

standards. Meanwhile, the Group has always committed to
exploring appropriate opportunities and intends to move forward
the updating and upgrading of coke production business through
merger and acquisition as well as replacement of production
capacity. In the future, it will further expand production scale and
upgrade production technology in a bid to enhance operational
efficiency. On 5 November 2019, the Group entered into a New
Framework Agreement with Energy Technology, pursuant to which
the Group intends to acquire and to subscribe for the equity
share of Energy Technology such that the Company will vest in a
controlling shareholding stake of more than 50% of the enlarged
share capital of Energy Technology. Energy Technology is
committed to pursuing a coke production project with capacity of
over 5 million tons of coke per year. The Project will be constructed
by two phases: phase one includes coking furnaces with a coke
production capacity of 2.54 million tons per year; and phase two
includes coking furnaces with a coke production capacity of 2.53

million tons per year.

At the same time, the Group intends to expand and launch its
international trading business for coke products and increase cash
flow through new trade channels, so as to improve the profitability
of the Group. Additionally, the Group has always been proactive
in seeking appropriate investment opportunities so as to enable
the Group to explore new business segments, and integrate the
business of its existing coal industry chains to further enlarge the
Group’s revenue sources and drive new profitable growth with
a view to maximizing the Shareholder’s value. On 12 September
2019 and 20 November 2019, Shareholders Agreements were
entered into between the Group and the JV Partner, pursuant to
which a subsidiary, Rich Hydrogen Energy, will be established in
Shanxi Province, PRC. The Shanxi JV plans to develop liquefied
natural gas, synthetic ammonia, and urea projects as well as clean
energy business including hydrogen. Management considers that
the formation of a joint venture company will enhance the Group’s
profitability in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWMR DN

INVESTMENT IN EDB HOLDING LIMITED

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 27 June
2019, based on the audited consolidated financial statements of
EDB Holding Limited (“EDB”), the aggregate audited consolidated
after-tax net profits of EDB attributable to its shareholders for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and the year ended 31 December
2018 had not been reached. As such, the Group had issued written
notifications to the vendor and guarantor to exercise its repurchase
right under the sale and purchase agreement and the subscription
agreement respectively.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 6
September 2019, the Company and the vendor entered into an
escrow agreement with the escrow agent who is an independent
third party independent of and not connected with the vendor,
the Company and its connected persons for the distribution of the
consideration shares to the qualifying Shareholders on a pro-rata
basis (subject further assessment to regulatory requirements of
relevant jurisdictions and practicability). The consideration shares
were distributed to the qualifying Shareholders on 18 October
2019.

Details of the investment in EDB is set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREEEBCBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHAO Xu Guang, aged 56, was appointed as an executive
Director, the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 17 November 2016 and
was appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 2 May 2017. Mr. Zhao
has more than 20 years of experience in business executive and
management. Mr. Zhao worked for the Ministry of Foreign Trade
and Economic Cooperation of the PRC. Mr. Zhao also acted as
chairman, general manager and director of various enterprises
specializing in trading,
field. Mr.
Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited (“Titan Petrochemicals”),

investment, property and in the energy
Zhao served as chairman and executive director of

the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1192) from July 2012 to September 2015.
Mr. Zhao graduated from Guangdong University of Foreign Studies
with a Bachelor of Economics degree.

Mr. WANG Yijun, aged 57, has been appointed as an executive
Director since 10 July 2019. Mr. Wang served as a director and
general manager of Shanxi Yiling Investment Inc.* from March
2010 to November 2018. Mr. Wang also served as chief executive
director of Shanxi Zhongrui Group* and general manager of Shanxi
Zhongrui Trading Company Limited* from August 1999 to March
2010. Mr. Wang held a professional qualification in industrial and

civil architecture at Taiyuan University.

Mr. LI Qinghua, aged 55, has been appointed as an executive
Director since 10 June 2019 and has been re-designated as a
non-executive Director since 1 March 2020. Mr. Li served as the
chief executive officer of China Taiping Insurance (HK) Company
Limited from January 2015 to January 2019. Mr. Li served as
general manager of China Taiping Insurance Shared Service
Center* from September 2008 to January 2015. Mr. Li served
as deputy general manager of Taiping Life Insurance Company
Limited from September 2001 to September 2008 and a chief
representative of China Insurance (Holdings) Company, Limited
in 2001. Mr.
Coordinating Group* and a deputy director of foreign economic

Li was a director of National Cocoon and Silk

department of State Economic and Trade Commission. Mr. Li held
a bachelor’s degree in automatic control and a master’'s degree

in business management from Beijing Institute of Technology.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREEEBCBEFE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Siu Hung, Patrick, aged 64, was appointed as
an executive Director and served as director of subsidiaries
of the Group with effect from 3 November 2016. Mr. Wong
was appointed as a Joint General Manager and Authorized
Representative on 17 November 2016 and re-designated as
General Manager on 25 November 2016 and subsequently re-
designated as non-executive Director and resigned as Authorized
Representative on 9 April 2018. Mr. Wong has 40 years of working
experience in banking, finance, commodity trading and project
development. Mr. Wong was an executive director of Winto
Group (Holdings) Limited, its shares are listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8238) between 15 April 2019
and 6 November 2019. Mr. Wong was an executive director of
Titan Petrochemicals between 2008 and 2015. Mr. Wong was
the senior vice president of Commodity and Trade Finance at
Societe Generale Singapore and the chief executive officer in
the China Division of Louis Dreyfus Group, a global commodity
trading firm. Mr. Wong is an associate member of Chartered
Institute of Bankers, United Kingdom, fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors since 1 April 2017 and member of
The Institute of Management Consultants Hong Kong since 1
August of the same year and qualified as Certified Management
Consultant. Mr. Wong holds a Master’s degree in Applied Finance
from Macquarie University, Australia and completed the Executive
Diploma in Management Consulting from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University on 12 October 2017.

Mr. HUANG Man Yem, aged 45, was appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 3 November 2016. Mr. Huang
is a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Huang has more than 15 years of working
experience in corporate development and restructuring, corporate
establishment and M&A projects, and capital market transactions
(i.e. equities and bonds/debts) on the stock exchanges of Hong
Kong and Singapore respectively. Mr. Huang is currently the
general manager of the Shanghai branch office of Expert Systems
IVR (Asia) Co. Ltd., a Hong Kong based subsidiaries of Asia-
Pacific Region Unified Communications solution provider engaged
in Unified Communications solutions development and corporate
establishment consultant business. Mr. Huang was also a former

member of the senior management of Titan Petrochemicals from
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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April 2002 to May 2014. Mr. Huang holds a Master's degree of
Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a Bachelor of Engineering in Electronic Engineering from City
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. JIANG Jiansheng, aged 58, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director since 15 January 2020. Mr. Jiang has served
as a senior consultant and general manager of Inner Mongolia
Andeli Chemical Co., Ltd.*
served as deputy general manager, chief engineer of the chemical

since 2018. Mr. Jiang respectively

sector, director of the coal-to-liquids project and senior consultant
of Inner Mongolia Yitai Coal Oil Production Plant*. Mr. Jiang also
served as chemical process design engineer and dean of the
design and research institute of Yanchang Petroleum Shaanxi
Xingping Fertilizer Plant* (now known as Yanchang Petroleum
Shaanxi Xinghua Group Company*) from 1984 to 2005. Mr. Jiang
was the chairman of the National Nitrogen Fertilizer Association,
the chairman of Technical Committee of the National Chemical
Synthetic Ammonia Design Technology Center Station, a member
of a committee on standardization of Coal Fuel of National Energy
Administration, a member of the professional committee on Coal
Chemical Utilization of The Chemical Industry and Engineering
Society of China, a member of Technical Committee of the
National Gas Purification Information Centre, an expert of the Coal
Chemical Industry Expertise Committee of China Petroleum and
Chemical Industry Federation and evaluation expert of the China
Development Bank, etc. Mr. Jiang held a professional qualification
of inorganic chemical engineering in chemical engineering and
bachelor degree in engineering at Inner Mongolia University of
Technology. Mr. Jiang is a senior engineer in professor-level and
a registered chemist in chemical process design.

*  For identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TO Wing Tim, Paddy, aged 67, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since October 2009. Mr.
To is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. To
obtained his Diploma in Accountancy from the University of Hong
Kong in 1991 and has over 30 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and finance industry. Mr. To has been practicing as
a certified public accountant in Hong Kong since 1980. Mr. To
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an associate member of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong and an associate member of the Association of
Certified General Accountants in Canada.

Mr. LAM Hoy Lee, Laurie, aged 61, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since September 2008. Mr.
Lam is a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee, and the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Mr,
Lam has 30 years of experience in legal field working as a solicitor
in Hong Kong. Mr. Lam is a practicing solicitor of Hong Kong and
non-practicing solicitor of Singapore and a non-practicing solicitor
and non-practicing counsel of Australia.

Dr. WANG Wei Hsin, aged 54, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 19 December 2018.
Dr. Wang is a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Dr. Wang has
extensive management experience in the financial services
industry. Dr. Wang served as the chief executive officer of South
China Financial Holdings Limited (“South China Financial”),
a company the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 619), and certain subsidiaries of South
China Financial from May 2016 to October 2018, and served
as executive director of South China Financial from March 2017
to October 2018. Dr. Wang served as the chairman and chief
executive officer of SinoPac Securities (Asia) Limited and was
responsible for the business development and operations in Asia
from 2009 to 2016. Dr. Wang also served as the chief investment
officer of Japan CDW Group and the chief financial officer of its
Taiwan subsidiary, as well as co-founder of Yes-Asia.com and
played significant role in China Development Industrial Bank. Dr.
Wang held a PhD in Management Science (Financial Engineering)
from Imperial College London and researched artificial intelligence
and financial big data. Dr. Wang was the fellow of Royal Society

of Statistics during 1999 to 2000.
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EEREEEBCBEFE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LI Chi Chung, aged 51, was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 25 November 2016. Mr. Li is a solicitor practising
in Hong Kong and the founder partner of Michael Li & Co. He
obtained the bachelor degree in laws from University of Sheffield
in England in 1990 and was admitted as a solicitor of the High
Court of Hong Kong in 1993. Mr. Li has more than 25 years
of experience in legal field, extensive experience in advising
corporate governance of listed companies, compliance of Listing
Rules and other applicable Laws of Hong Kong. In addition to
acting as company secretary and legal adviser of various listed
companies, Mr. Li also acts as major speaker in public forums

relating to listing matters in Hong Kong.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report, the CG Report
and the ESG Report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in coke trading business, coal-related ancillary
business and coke production business. The activities of each of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 of the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Overview and Financial Performance

The review of the Group’s business and financial performance for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are provided in the section
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” in this annual
report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

1. Risk arising from fluctuating prices of coke and coal
A large portion of our revenue is derived from the sale
of coke. The coke is primarily priced based on prevailing
market prices and by reference to various other factors that
are applicable to individual customers. Historically, market
prices for coke have fluctuated substantially and the average
selling price of the Group’s coke declined which was in
line with the declining trend of the market price of coke.
Therefore, the coke price of the Group and the market price
may not be stable.

The Group’s main production costs are the coking coal and
the manufacturing costs is relatively stable. The Group has
closely monitored the market price of coke and coking coal
and the changes in the spread of between these prices is
highly sensitive. Trends in the market price of the coking
coal and the coke may not correlate to one another. When
the coke market price has declined, the Group may not
able to lower its cost of production on the same pace as
the rate of decline in coal price. Vice versa, the increase in
coal market price may not have a corresponding increase in
the coke price of the Group. The underlying situation could
adversely affect the Group’s business, financial condition
and operations.

In response to this risk factor, the management of the Group
will closely monitor the economic environment and adopt
corresponding measures such as adjustment of production
plans and enhancement of cost monitoring.
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Risks in association with changes in the Chinese

government policies and regulations

Coke production in China is subjected to extensive laws,
regulations and government policies. The obligations and
requirements associated with these laws, regulations,
responsibilities of government policies, relevant fees and
social responsibilities may have a major impact on the
Group’s operation. In particular, the Chinese government
in recent years has been strengthening its environmental
control and enforcement which include implementing a
series of measures to reduce production capacity, tightening
environmental standard and delay the time period for coking
coal to curb overcapacity which may adversely affect the
production, business, operation of the Group. Furthermore,
the Group will be responsible for the clean-up if the operation
results in contamination at the production facilities. Such
clean-up may impose substantial costs.

In response to this risk factor, the management regards
environmental protection and control as one of its principal
responsibilities and if necessary, the Group shall invest and
upgrade its existing equipment and facilities to achieve the
domestic environmental standards.

Risk arising from safety management

The Group’s businesses are all of high hazardous nature
and of complex uncertainties which is potentially destructive
and explosive. The Group stores, handles and transports
volatile, flammable, hazardous liquid and gaseous chemical
products, such as benzene, tar, sulphuric acid and coal
gas. Improper handling of these materials and products can
cause danger such as fires, explosions which lead property
loss, personal injuries, death and possible legal liabilities.

In response to this risk factor, the management will adopt
stringent safety management policy and control system,
reinforcement of installing safety warnings, and reinforcement
safety education, promote safety skills training and improve
employees’ safety awareness.

The risks of the novel coronavirus epidemic (the “Epidemic”)

With the current spread of the novel coronavirus pneumonia
epidemic in the world, the situation in European and
American regions are still uncontrolled. Although the Chinese
government has stabilized the Epidemic, there may be
another inbound outbreak in China if the situation outside
China is still beyond satisfactory control. Currently, strict
prevention and control measures are still being implemented
by the Chinese government, which may affect the Group’s
supply chain and output as well as the employees’ mentality
and mood.
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In response to the above risks, the management will closely
monitor the latest situation of the Epidemic and local
government policies, adjust production, scheduling and
transportation plans in a timely manner to ensure the health
of employees, so as to minimize the impact of the Epidemic
on the Group.

Future Business Development

Although the global economy is still suffering from the impact of
the novel coronavirus pneumonia epidemic in the first quarter of
2020; China’s economic situation has gradually stabilized in the
harsh surrounding environment. In the coming days, the Chinese
government will still require the upgrading and transformation
in the coking industry. In this regard, the Group has actively
developed new business segments and expanded the upstream
and downstream of coke industry chain. In addition, the Group
entered into Shareholders Agreements on 12 September 2019
and 20 November 2019 respectively, pursuant to which Rich
Hydrogen Energy will be established in Shanxi Province, the
PRC. Rich Hydrogen Energy is planned to principally engage in
projects of producing LNG, synthetic ammonia, urea and related
products, as well as the development of clean energy business
including hydrogen, thus the Group’s revenues will become more
diversified for enhancing the overall profitability. Meanwhile, the
Group has been actively in exploring potential projects for merger
and acquisition (M&A) in a bid to move forward the updating
and upgrading of coke production business. In November 2019,
the Group entered into a Framework Agreement with Energy
Technology, pursuant to which the Company intends to acquire
and merge a coke production project with a capacity of over
5 million tons coke per year. Upon completion, it will enlarge
the Group’s scale of production and enhance its production
technology.

The Group is committed to assuming social responsibilities and
emphasizes environmental protection and production safety. In
order to achieve the goal with cleaner energy emissions, the Group
continues to fulfill its responsibility for environmentally friendly
operation and upgrades production equipment and facilities with
self-raising environmental standards.

The Group is confident that the LNG business so developed

will bring better and stable returns to the Shareholders while the
profitability of the coking business has been strengthened.
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Key Relationships with our Stakeholders

The Group strives to maintain harmonious relationship with its
stakeholders, including but not limited to, its customers, suppliers
and employees.

1. Customers
The Group continuously pays attention to strengthen and
sustain the relationship with its major customers and ensure
customer satisfaction by providing quality products and
services to customers.

2. Suppliers
The Group has established long-term, effective and mutual
beneficial working relationships with the major suppliers to
ensure stable and sustainable supplies for the businesses
of the Group.

3. Employees

Employees are regarded as one of the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. The objective of the Group’s
human resource management is to reward and recognize
performing staff by providing a competitive remuneration
package and implementing a sound performance appraisal
system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training
and providing opportunities within the Group for career
advancement.

The remuneration policy and package of the Group’s
employees are periodically reviewed by the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. The principle of the Group’s
remuneration policy is fairness, motivating, performance-
oriented and market-competitive. Apart from salaries,
medical insurance, discretionary bonuses and retirement
benefit scheme, the Group has also adopted share option
schemes for its employees, providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants with reference to their contributions.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s key business
operation in Shanxi Province strictly complied with applicable
regulations, laws, and standards related to environmental and
social aspects. The Group continues to invest in state-of-the-
art facilities and implement emission control schemes to further
reduce on-site emissions. At a broader societal scale, the
Group has been providing 31% of heating demand for the local
residents and indirectly reduced the air emissions from burning
crude coal as a heating source by local farmers. Engagement
with stakeholders has resulted in raised concerns on key material
issues, including, air emissions, wastewater, energy and water
consumption, occupational health and safety, employment,
training and development. The Group will continue to identify
areas of improvement for the concerned aspects and keep close
communication with its stakeholders for advancing environment,

social and governance management.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiary in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the
Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly
shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations in the PRC
and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this report, the Board considers the Group has
complied with all the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 99
to 247.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH

BRREBERRE
BE-_Z—NEF+-A=+—HLFE"
AEERLUAAZ T ZEBLECRRE
fERRERMETEABZERARL X
BRRBE AEBBEBRNERN&EE
MRERBETHBE IS - NE— PR
BEERGZHR EEREANLERER
F o AEEFERM S ERIBHI1%HEAT
Ko R DT R R ARG R B AR
BRPTESE 2 KRB - 4% B 25 45 BE
HERE CHUTETEEAFEZHAIE
BETINGE - B KRPEW - BERPER - 88
BEKBER BERERZE - ER-
ElEER  AEBESEENABEIER
PR AT ARZ AT - I B E A &5 4R
TREETAE  RERR HERER
ZER -

EFERERZER
AEEEBIELARRAZTEBBEAR
AT MARBAG BB LEHNAT -
At AN EHEBREERETHE
REBMBERERN]ER - BE-F—
NE+-A=+-"BUEFEREERRSE
A EFeR/AKECETTELRE
BB EREERIER

Bt R
AEBERBE_T-NF+_A=1+—H
LFEEZRBEHNFOEUTAE 2
BREA -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

ATzt 5k #E
RZZE—NF+_A=+—8  AQaA#
DERTHREZFEEHEDOT

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
TR

A B
RitER

Contributed surplus
Accumulated losses

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus
account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if (a) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (b) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts. As at 31 December 2019, the Company had
no reserve available for distribution to Shareholders (2018: Nil).

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company is committed to providing stable and sustainable
returns to Shareholders and endeavours to maintain stable
dividend policy whilst maintaining an equitable balance between
returns to Shareholders and investment for sustaining growth. In
recommending a dividend, the Company shall take into account
the expected future capital requirements, growth opportunities
available to the Group, net earnings of the Group, and in
compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and in
accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.

1,731,681
(2,176,419)

(444,738)
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report are
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Xu Guang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. So Chiu Fung'

Mr. Wang Yijun?

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Li Qinghua?

Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick
Mr. Huang Man Yem

Mr. Jiang Jiansheng*

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie

Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy

Dr. Wang Wei Hsin

! resigned on 15 January 2020
2 appointed on 10 July 2019
3 appointed on 10 June 2019 as executive Director and

re-designated to non-executive Director on 1 March 2020

i appointed on 15 January 2020

In accordance with the bye-law 99 of the Bye-Laws of the
Company, Mr. Zhao Xu Guang and Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-Law of the Company and
subsequent to his appointment as executive Director on 10 June
2019 and re-designated to non-executive Director on 1 March
2020, Mr. Li Qinghua will hold office until the following AGM and
will not offer himself for re-election at the following AGM.

Pursuant to bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-Law of the Company and
subsequent to their appointments on 10 July 2019 and 15 January
2020 respectively, Mr. Wang Yijun and Mr. Jiang Jiansheng will
hold office until the following AGM, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under section

heading “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” on pages 17 to 21 of this annual report.
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UPDATES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION BEMESEH

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B (1) of the Listing Rules, the updates of 1R EM R BIFE13 51BN REBEE-Z
information of the Directors during the year ended 31 December —AE+-A=+—HIFEKEEAR
2019 and up to the date of this report are set out below: HEHHCZERESERFINOT :

Name of Director

EEHR

Details of Updates
BB

Mr. Wong Siu Hung,

Patrick
sEOWRE

Mr. Li Qinghua
FRERE

Mr. Wang Yijun
IEERLE

Mr. Jiang Jiansheng
EEESRE

Mr. So Chiu Fung
BT SEL

o Appointed as executive director of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited, its shares are
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8238) between 15 April
2019 and 6 November 2019

. B’\_f NFHA+REBE_Z-AF+-AXNBRBEBEEREGER)ARA
P& 0 1A Bst 32 P B R AR BT (fom 5% - 8238) 2 MTTE F

° Appointed as executive Director on 10 June 2019 and entitled to receive a monthly
director fee of HK$200,000
. RIZE-NFAATHEZERNTESTT A EKRIREE ST H200,0007% T

o Re-designated to non-executive Director on 1 March 2020 and adjusted monthly
salary to HK$15,000
s RIZE-_ZTF-A-HAFEARFATESF HAFHAEBZE150008TT

° Appointed as executive Director on 10 July 2019 and entitled to receive a monthly
director fee of HK$82,000
. RIZE-NFLATEEZERPTEFTLARKNESZTEE T HAB82,000% T

o Appointed as non-executive Director on 15 January 2020 and entitled to receive
a monthly director fee of HK$30,000

e RITTEF-A+THAEZERIFVPTEZTULARUMEEEEHH30,000%
7T

o Resigned as executive Director on 15 January 2020 and re-designated to general
manager of corporate development

e RIE-_ZF-A+THBBERTESYAIRACEERINAKE
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors will retire and offer themselves for re-election at the
2020 AGM do not have an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation. All other Directors are not appointed
for specific terms and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considered all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent for the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has
in force the permitted indemnity provisions in the Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance maintained for the Group to indemnify
the Directors against all losses and liabilities which may sustain or
incur while acting in his capacity as Director in accordance with
the Bye-Laws of the Company and the Companies Ordinance of
Hong Kong.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities on the Stock Exchange, any
other stock exchange, by private arrangement or by general offer.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DEBENTURES

On 2 November 2016, the Company issued convertible bonds
in principal amount of HK$43,277,000 to Kailuan (Hong Kong)
International Co., Limited with interest at 2.5% per annum and
mature 1 year from issue date and extended to 2 May 2018
per agreement on 30 December 2016 (the “2016 Convertible
Bonds”). On 22 December 2017, an amendment letter was
made to alter certain terms of the 2016 Convertible Bonds (the
“2017 Convertible Bonds”), amongst others, extend the maturity
date to 31 August 2019 (the “Amendment”).
was approved respectively by the Stock Exchange and by the
Shareholders on 5 February 2018.

The Amendment

On 8 March 2018, Kailuan (Hong Kong) International Co., Limited
transferred the convertible bonds to Rontac Resources Company
Limited, being the direct holding company of Kailuan (Hong Kong)

International Co., Limited.

On 13 February 2019, the Group and Rontac Resources Company
Limited, the holder of the 2017 Convertible Bonds with principal
amount of HK$43,277,000, entered into an agreement to extend
the maturity date of the 2017 Convertible Bonds for one year
to 31 August 2020 with all other terms and conditions remain
unchanged. The extension of maturity date of 2017 Convertible
Bonds was approved respectively by the Stock Exchange and by
the Shareholders on 9 April 2019.

B
RoE—RNE+—A=H AQTAEE (F
BIBER AR AR BITA® 5 /H43,277,000
BIREEREEBF25% 2 A RER (=
E-REMBRES])  —T—RNFAUHRK
BFrERTANE—FEIH - G2 H
BR-ZE—XRNE+_A=-t+HEBELDE
ERE2-"ZFE—N\FREA-BH HNZ-ZE—+
FH+_AZ+ZH ZE-RFABRES
AETBRFEA—DETREMEET(=2
—tFEUBRES]  EFEFEFIHAL
EE-_T—NAFNA=+—HUZETD -
ZEITN_ZE—NF_ARABD R ERT
Fir R % SRt o

RoZ—N\F=ANA - BR(EDERAE
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BERAR -
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M fE R RIE RIS - —T— L F A
REFHIBHBERER T —LEFEMNA
JUE 5 B 13 B X BT 2 AR AL o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F# 31



32

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

On 27 May 2019 and 31 December 2019, Rontac Resources
Company Limited exercised the conversion right of convertible
bonds to subscribe 60,000,000 and 84,256,976 ordinary shares
of the Company respectively. As at the date of this report, Rontac
Resources Company Limited is interested in 147,189,220 shares
of the Company under the Part XV of the SFO.

The 2017 Convertible Bonds carrying amount as at 31 December
2019 amounted to approximately HK$Nil (carrying amount of the
2017 Convertible Bonds at 31 December 2018: HK$43,526,000).
Details of the movement of the convertible bonds of the Company
issued during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2002
Scheme”) which became effective on 31 May 2002 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees, and was already expired on 30 May 2012. On 28
March 2013, a new share option scheme (the “2013 Scheme”)
was passed by way of an ordinary resolution in a special general
meeting. The 2013 Scheme lasts for a period of ten years and
will expire on 27 March 2023. Under the 2002 Scheme and the
2013 Scheme, the Board may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Group, to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

Particulars and details of the movement of the share option
schemes of the Company are set out in note 29 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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As at year ended 31 December 2019, movement of share options

granted to certain eligible participants are set out below:

Number of share options

BRAEZE

REE-R-NE+-A=+—AILFE -
ETAARBRATEETZ BRMES
BRI T

Exercise price

At Exercised Lapsed At on share
Date of grant 1 January during the during the 31 December Exercise period options HK$
Participants of share options 2019 year year 2019 of share options per share
BREE
RZE-RE RZB-NF TEE
SEAL BREEKLAH -A-B  ERfTE FAXR tZA=t-B BRUEGEH BRBT
Li Baogi 5 September 2014 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 - 6 September 2014~ 0.66
FEH “T-WEAARA 5 September 2019
“E-MENARRE
“Z-NAENAATA
4,000,000 - 4,000,000 -
Other employees 5 September 2014 6,400,000 - 6,400,000 - 6 September 2014- 0.66
Hig S —Z-NFNATRA 5 September 2019
“E-MEARRBZE
“Z-AFNARAEA
6,400,000 - 6,400,000 -
10,400,000 - 10,400,000 -
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS Big 5 b 89 1% 58

Save for the “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” and convertible bonds
under “DEBENTURES” as disclosed above and in notes 29 and
32 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
nor require the Company to enter into an agreement that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares was entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted as at 31 December 2019,

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
Laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

Shareholders.

B EXIERCHIRERt 8 PR RS - EX[E
FIBETHEE A RRESRGEEVBR
R E29RB2ABEEIN  RBEE-F—
NE+T A=+ —RLEFEARABEL
YEEETARERHBABENSS AL
BARRETRD - HBMEARRRAF L
WM S AR EMARA EHITRMD

BEBEE
ARARZARHRIE FEEGI D EER
BEBERZGE WREARBBER
RERRRLOIREFENRD -
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group and Directors
is set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the
Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance

and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are
set out in section heading “SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES”
report and in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

in this

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees employed in Hong
Kong.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or the substantial Shareholder of
the Company nor their respective connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors of the Company had any interest in any
competing business with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections heading “DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS” and “SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES” in this report, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the directors
of the Company or their spouse or minor children had any rights
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model

Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

ESBARGEESFZERN

BRAREEENTETRABZ#R IR
(BRMESEIEHABREEIN  RFR
TAEE  AARKEERNEQRBE
SEIVEMRZH  SEEAHEBEALR
AISER AR A B 2 B EsmE
@ ARAEERWEFZEBHARB TN
RZTENBEFEERNARBARAF
HFZENHERFERNITEEMZTEN -

EERTIFETBRABZES

R-E-hF+-A=+t—H JFEFEAX
AR EBITHRABRARR S E AR AH
(EERBHLBPEMRPIEXVED) 2B H
HERNEEST  BAEDLALRQFR
BEFRIEROIEI2HHEATFE 2 EC
it » KRB ETHRBAHLETETAES
ETEHFRZNBRETA(RETSRDE
MEARRBRBRMzER RBNT:

Long positions in shares of the Company RAQRBRGBZHER
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held capital
HEBRTRAE
EENE ERME FrERDEA BAOBD
Zhao Xu Guang Interest of a controlled corporation (Note a) 1,468,419,046 51.15%

B ZHDER 2= (fita)

To Wing Tim, Paddy Beneficial owner and Interest of spouse (Note b) 243,337 0.00%

HIOR ExnBEAARE Bz (M Zb)
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2019, Shun Wang Investments Limited is owned
as to 100% by Whole Advance Limited, which voting ordinary
shares are owned as to 100% by Liberal Expansion Limited, which
in turn is owned as to 100% by Mr. Zhao Xu Guang, an executive
Director and chairman of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Zhao is
deemed to be interested in 1,468,419,046 shares of the Company
under the Part XV of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy, an independent
non-executive Director, together with his spouse, respective holding
of 62,932 Shares and 180,405 Shares of the Company. Accordingly,
Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy is deemed to have interest in 243,337
Shares of the Company under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the

Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had registered

an interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations

(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to

be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of each
person, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company,
in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which had
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions in which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, were
as follows:

FERRREMALTZHEES

RZZE—AFE+-_A=+—H AL (E
ENARFAEZITHABRINRARF Z
RHSBERNT - EERBESRBAE
IEBIEXVEE2 R E3D HEMETARR K
BRIz AR (BERSRERES
REHERINZEBRNEEESRIEREZ
B RAR) MR ARRRIRIEE H & 8
BHEAE3B6H(FE 2 ECM 2R R
BT

Long positions in shares of the Company: REQTRBZIFE:
Approximate
Percentage of
Number of issued share
Substantial Shareholders Nature of interest shares held capital
HEBTRA
FTERR EEME FrisiRD 8 A BHABD
Shun Wang Investments Limited Beneficial owner (Note a) 1,468,419,046 51.15%
JERE % & AR A A BERBEEA N Ta)
Whole Advance Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 1,468,419,046 51.15%
(Note a)
AEARRDF ZHEE 2 s (fita)
Liberal Expansion Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 1,468,419,046 51.15%
(Note a)
] NC] ZHEE 2 s (fita)
Zhao Xu Guang Interest of a controlled corporation 1,468,419,046 51.15%
(Note a)
B ZHEE 2 s (fita)
Rontac Resources Company Limited Beneficial owner (Note b) 147,189,220 513%
BEERERAA EmBEAANMZD)
Rontac Investment Company Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 147,189,220 513%
(Note b)
BEREBRAA ZHEB 2 s (H D)
Li Hongwei Interest of a controlled corporation 147,189,220 5.13%
(Note b)
NG ZHEE 2z s (B aiEb)
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2019, Shun Wang Investments Limited is owned
as to 100% by Whole Advance Limited, which voting ordinary
shares are owned as to 100% by Liberal Expansion Limited, which
in turn is owned as to 100% by Mr. Zhao Xu Guang, an executive
Director and chairman of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Zhao is
deemed to be interested in 1,468,419,046 shares of the Company
under the Part XV of the SFO.

At as 31 December 2019, Rontac Resources Company Limited is
wholly owned by Rontac Investment Company Limited, which in turn
is owned as to 71% by Mr. Li Hongwei. Accordingly, Mr. Li Hongwei
is deemed to be interested in 147,189,220 shares of the Company
under the Part XV of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, so far as
is known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, no
person (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which had been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year 2019, there were no connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions which were required to
be disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

None of the related party transactions as set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements falls under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
The total
31 December

loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
2019 amounted to HK$218,188,000 (2018:
HK$18,188,000). Particulars of loans and other borrowings are set
out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The property, plant and equipment of the Group as at 31
December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$576,422,000
(2018: HK$570,644,000). Details of movements of property, plant
and equipment are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The five
approximately 63.9% of the Group’s total turnover and the largest

largest customers of the Group accounted for

customer accounted for approximately 28.4% of the Group’s total
turnover.
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The five
approximately 42.7% of the Group’s total purchases for the year

largest suppliers of the Group accounted for

and the largest supplier accounted for approximately 15.6% of the
Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a Director
or a Shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.

The Group is committed to establishing a close and caring
relationship with our employees, providing quality services to its
customers and enhancing cooperation with its business partners.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has complied with the sufficiency of
public float requirement under the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@) On 12 September 2019 and 20 November 2019, the
shareholders agreement was entered into between Bloom
Wealth Investment Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company and Shanxi Baimaoyuan Trading Co., Ltd*,
pursuant to which Rich Hydrogen Energy will be established
in Shanxi Province, the PRC. The shareholders agreement
was approved by Shareholders of the Company at the
special general meeting held on 11 February 2020.

(b)  Since January 2020, the PRC has reported certain confirmed
cases of COVID-19 which may affect the global business
environment. It may foresee that certain impact of the

Group’s business and financial results may occur if the

COVID-19 crisis prolongs, but the extent could not be

estimated at the date of this report. The management was not

aware of any material effect on the consequential financial
results of the Group due to the COVID-19 outbreak up to
the date of this report. The Board will minimize the impact

of COVID-19 to protect the interests of the Group.

*

For identification purpose only
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to supporting sustainability of the
environment and endeavours to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and to adopt measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction. The details of environmental, social and governance
information of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the ESG Report on pages 63 to 92 to this annual

report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. The Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on the
operations of the Group. The Company is subject to the Listing
Rules, the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-
backs, the Bermuda Companies Law, the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and/
or the rules and regulations of the jurisdictions where the shares
of the Company are listed and traded. Details of the corporate
governance practices of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in the CG Report on pages 43 to 62
to this annual report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 2
June 2020 (Tuesday) to 5 June 2020 (Friday), both days inclusive.
In order to qualify for the attendance of the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 5 June 2020
(Friday), share transfer forms accompanied by relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrar and Transfer Office in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited, Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, not later than 48 hours before the time appointed for the
holding of the meeting (or any adjournment thereof).

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young resigned as the external auditor of the Group with
effect from 13 November 2018.

Mazars CPA Limited appointed as the external auditor of the Group
for the period from 15 November 2018 to 5 June 2019.
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BDO Limited has been appointed as the external auditor of the
Group with effect from 10 July 2019, to fill the casual vacancy
following the retirement of Mazars CPA Limited and to hold office
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been audited by BDO Limited will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming 2020 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Zhao Xu Guang
Chairman

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT

EREUERZGAMEEHARARES
BRASEIINSBEZEMN BT —NFt
A+THEER  AMEHRERIR(FB)
SRR EBAARARRMEMEENRE
ZiR o WHBEERART TERRBFAK
BHERBL -

BE_ZT-NAF+A=+—HIEFEZ
HAVBEHRRCHBEALGRERGME
BHARARERZLSRNER _T_TF
BRERBAFRGLRE THEEREER
EER -

RREFE

FE
izl



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

The Board
corporate governance. The Directors believe that effective

is committed to upholding high standard of

corporate governance practices emphasised on accountability
and transparency are the keys to protect the interest of our
Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders, enhance the

confidence in the Group business and fulfil its social responsibility.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board regularly reviews the corporate governance practices
which have applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14, under the
Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange together with all other
applicable rules under Listing Rules, the SFO, the Companies
Ordinance and other applicable laws, rules and guidelines.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
report, except for the code provisions A.2.1, A.6.7 and D.1.4 with
reasons for each deviation explained hereunder, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

Compliance with the Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the codes of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. All Directors have
confirmed in writing, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they fully complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company has designed an appropriate corporate governance
structure for the Group which is headed by an effective board
of directors. To assist the Board in discharging its duties and
facilitate effective management, the Board has established three
Board committees (each, a “Board Committee”), including Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
The Board undertakes the corporate governance function and
is lead by the Chairman. The majority of the members of each
Board Committee are independent non-executive Directors, and
each Board Committee has its own defined and written terms of
reference approved by the Board covering its duties, powers and
functions. Their terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board comprises nine Directors, including two executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhao Xu Guang (Chairman and Chief
and Mr.

Directors, namely Mr. Li Qinghua, Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick, Mr.

Executive Officer) Wang Yijun, four non-executive
Huang Man Yem and Mr. Jiang Jiansheng, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie, Mr. To

Wing Tim, Paddy and Dr. Wang Wei Hsin.

Directors’ Retirement at 2020 AGM

In accordance with the bye-law 99 of the Bye-Laws of the
Company, Mr. Zhao Xu Guang and Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-Law of the Company and
subsequent to his appointment as executive Director on 10 June
2019 and re-designated to non-executive Director on 1 March
2020, Mr. Li Qinghua will hold office until the following AGM, and
will not offer himself for re-election at the following AGM.

Pursuant to bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-Law of the Company and
subsequent to their appointments on 10 July 2019 and 15 January
2020 respectively, Mr. Wang Yijun and Mr. Jiang Jiansheng will
hold office until the following AGM, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under section

heading “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” on pages 17 to 21 of this annual report.
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Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for the
leadership. The Board is ultimately accountable for the Group’s
operations, strategies, financial performance and compliance. The
following outlined the key matters that are reserved to the Board
for approval:

o set Group’s overall objectives and business strategies

o establish Board Committees, define the role and duties of
each Board Committee

° authorise delegation of power to the management for
implementation of its decisions

° direct and supervise management performance

o oversee the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory
obligations

o review financial statements, announcements and reports;
and

° recommend on of dividends and its distribution.

Delegation to the Management

The Board has delegated its power to the executive Directors
to act on its behalf. The executive Directors are responsible for
day-to-day management of operations, implement the decisions
approved by the Board, conduct regular meetings with the senior
management of the Company and its subsidiaries and associated
companies, at which operational issues and financial performance
are evaluated. The executive Directors are required to report and
provide an updated information to the Board on a regular basis
on business development, financial positions, market updates, risk
management, compliance and corporate governance issues.

Code Provision D.1.4

Pursuant to code provision D.1.4, the Company should have formal
letters of appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment.

Reason for Deviation

As disclosed in the Report of the Directors and explained in
respective appointment announcement published, the Company
did not have formal letters of appointment for Directors. However,
be subject to
accordance with the Bye-Laws. Besides, the Directors are required

the Directors shall retirement by rotation in
to comply with the requirements under statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the

Company’s business and governance policies.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr. Zhao Xu Guang, being the Chairman of the Board, also acts
as Chief Executive Officer since 2 May 2017.

Code Provision A.2.1

Code provision A.21 of CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

Reason for Deviation

Mr. Zhao Xu Guang is the Chairman of the Board and also serves
as Chief Executive Officer since 2 May 2017. The deviation is
noted by the Board and the Directors consider the dual role is
essential as Mr. Zhao provides the Company with strong and
consistent leadership and facilitates the implementation and
execution of the business strategies while the Group re-build
and develop its business with his leadership in Board, and thus
achieves the Company’s objectives efficiently and effectively in
response to the constantly changing environment.

The Board considers that the Company has established a strong
corporate governance structure in place to ensure effective
management. The Board comprises experienced and high-caliber
individuals while Mr. Zhao focuses on business strategic
development. In addition, the three independent non-executive
Directors in Board which ensure there is a strong independent
element on the Board which can effectively exercise independent
judgement and oversee the business management in major
decision making. The Board shall nevertheless review the structure

from time to time in light of prevailing circumstances.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven non-
executive Directors including independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Li Qinghua, Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick, Mr. Huang
Man Yem, Mr. Jiang Jiansheng, Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie, Mr. To
Wing Tim, Paddy and Dr. Wang Wei Hsin. According to the bye-
law 99 of the Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors at the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. All non-executive
Directors also subject to retirement by rotation requirement under
the Bye-Laws and shall retire from office at least once every three
years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board comprises of three members out of nine members in
total, representing over 33% of Board, independent non-executive
Directors. The Board is satisfied that current composition of
independent non-executive Directors is in compliance with the
requirement of independent non-executive Directors under Rules
3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rule.

Most of the independent non-executive Directors are professionals
with

accountant or lawyer, who possess extensive experience in their

recognised qualifications, either being certified public
own professions. The biography details of the independent non-
executive Directors are set out on page 20 of this annual report.
During the year 2019, all independent non-executive Directors
contributed impartial view to the Board members and made
independent judgements on issues discussed at the Board

meetings.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each independent non-executive Director for the financial
year ended 31 December 2019 pursuant to the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considered each of the independent non-executive Directors
fulfilled the independence requirement throughout the year and
up to the date of this report. The independent non-executive
Directors had been identified in all corporate communications of
the Company that disclose the names of Directors.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN BOARD MEMBERS

Saved as disclosed under section heading “BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on
pages 17 to 21 under this annual report, none of the members of
the Board has any relationship, neither financial, business, family

nor other material/relevant relations, among each other.
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INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors and management of
the Group.

INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

All Board members have separate and independent access to the
Company Secretary and management of the Group to fulfil their
duties. Independent professional advice can be sought to assist
the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group’s

expense upon their request.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external service provider as its
Company Secretary. The Company secretarial assistant manager,
Ms. Au Wing Sze is the contact person of the external service

provider.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and the Board is fully
briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regard to them when making

decisions.

The Company Secretary of the Company, Mr. Li Chi Chung,
undertakes to ensure a good information flow within the Board
and between the Board and senior management, provides advice
to the Board in relation to Directors’ obligations under the Listing
Rules and applicable laws and regulations and assists the Board
in implementing the corporate governance practices. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Company Secretary finished
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training and in
compliance with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEEDINGS

Regular Board meetings were held four (4) times during the
financial year ended 31 December 2019. The Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and
company secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures,
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The chairman of the meeting set the meeting agenda in
consultation with other Board members and with assistance of the
company secretarial team. Board meeting notice is sent to the
Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board meeting and
reasonable notice is given for other Board meetings. Board papers
and meeting materials with sufficient information details are sent
to Board and Committee members at least 3 days before each

meeting to enable the Directors to make informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
drafted by the Company Secretary of the meetings and recorded in
sufficient details of the matters discussed and decisions reached
and have been circulated to the Directors for comments and record
in a timing manner. Originals of all minutes of the Company are
kept by the company secretarial team and open for inspection by
Directors.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, that
Director will be abstained from voting on the relevant resolutions
with conflict of interest and that he/she shall not be counted in

the quorum present at such Board meeting.
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Attendance of Board Meeting and General Meeting during R-B-NFUBEEZEETEERRE

FY2019 RAEHEAY

The attendance of Board meetings and general meeting during #HZE-Z—NAF+_A=+—HILFE -

the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below: EEggRRERGZHEAEESIM
T

Board Meetings Attendance at
Attended/Held and 2019 general

Capacity and Name of Director Eligible to Attend meetings
Exged —E-REF
HERE,BITRE BEASE
EERERESR RERHERE HEBR
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Zhao Xu Guang iz Rl e 16/16 2/2
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FERITEAAZ)
Mr. So Chiu Fung' ERoR 88T A 19/19 1/2
Mr. Wang Yijun? TEFEE? 11/11 0/0
Non-executive Directors EHTES
Mr. Li Qinghua® P o 13/13 0/0
Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick HEOHERE 19/19 2/2
Mr. Huang Man Yem ENELE 17/19 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie M % & 17119 1/2
Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy TR K& 18/18 2/2
Dr. Wang Wei Hsin THhET 19/19 1/2
1 resigned on 15 January 2020 ! R-CFE-ZFF—H+AHAFF
2 appointed on 10 July 2019 2 RZF-NFLHATHEZHT
s appointed on 10 June 2019 as executive Director and re-designated — ° R-CE—NFEFNA+HAEZTEHNTESR
to non-executive Director on 1 March 2020 RR-ZFE_FF=H—HBERHHITE
£
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Code Provision A.6.7

Code provision A.6.7 of CG Code stipulates that independent
non-executive Directors and other non-executive Directors should
attend general meeting and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders.

Reason for Deviation

Some individual Directors were unable to attend the special
general meeting of the Company held on 9 April 2019 due to other
business engagements. This constitutes a deviation from code
provision A.6.7 of the CG Code.

The Company Secretary had reminded the Directors the non-
compliance consequence and the Company will urge the Directors
to attend general meetings in future.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To encourage Directors in continuous professional development
(the “CPD”) to refresh their acknowledge and skills, the Company
have provided the Directors with updates on the development of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulations and laws in
connection to their duties and responsibilities of being a Director.
The Company also provided to the Directors the monthly business
performance and position updates of the Group to ensure
the Board discharges their duties under Rule 13.08 and code
provision A.6.5 of CG Code under the Listing Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors had provided
to the Company a record of their CPD training by attending
seminars and conferences, taking courses and reading materials.
A summary of training topics covered is as follow:

BE_ZT-NFt-A=t—HBLLFE =
BEZHOMARARHUES2ESER
FRREJ LS BICREERGTS
Eiweg EERERBMEEIME - 5F
FRE 2 RBBIIAT :

Topics of Training

& )| R R

Legal/
Accounting/ Corporate  Group Business/
Name of Director Financial Governance Directors Duties
SEES EEEK
EERE a5t/ i TEER BEERE
Mr. Zhao Xu Guang B Y e v 4
Mr. So Chiu Fung BHRETE v v
Mr. Wang Yijun ITEERAE v v
Mr. Li Qinghua FEESE v v
Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick =AML E v v
Mr. Huang Man Yem BEXNELEE v v
Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie MR 5 & v v 4
Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy MR KA 4 v v
Dr. Wang Wei Hsin FHFELS 4 v
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy who also acts as
Chairman of the committee, Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie and Dr. Wang

Wei Hsin, and one non-executive Director, Mr. Huang Man Yem.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviews and supervises
the Group’s accounting policies and financial reporting, risk
management and internal control practices, maintains an
appropriate relationship with the external auditors and ensures the

regulatory compliance of the Group.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH
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During the review of financial statements, management reported
liquidity position of the Group and measures taken/to be taken
to enable the Group to sustain as a going concern. The audit
committee was aware of the matter as one of key audit matters
and to be included in the section under material uncertainty
related to going concern in the Independent Auditor’s Report for
2019 consolidated financial statements. The audit committee did
not express any disagreement with management’s assessment
concerning of the going concern assumptions in the preparation
of 2019 consolidated financial statements.

The attendance of Audit Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Capacity and Name of Director

EEHNVEHRRNE EEEERAEEH
Zﬁ@ﬁ@#ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂ/%ﬁmZ%
BELERE  UWEAKSHEENFELE
BERZEERRRTFASRARERFAL
— YHEMAZT-NEGEEUBRRZ
BYZBMBRENESELERBAZEXN
THEERE—#R BEXLZESLERE
%ﬁ%_?—ﬂiﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%Zﬁ%ﬁ

EREZEEBFGEERTNEMER DK

(E_E-NFT_A=T-HLEFE &
RERBEERZEFEABHEINMT:

Audit Committee Meetings
Attended/Held and
Eligible to Attend
EREEEERE

HEREBITIRE
EERARMES REREFERE
Chairman of Audit Committee EREEEIRE
Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy IEKOR 5 A 4/4
Members RE
Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie MR 5 A& 2/4
Mr. Huang Man Yem BEXEBRE 4/4
Dr. Wang Wei Hsin FHFELS 4/4
A summary of work performed during the year ended 31 B ZEBEeWRBE-_ZT—HNLE+_A=+

December 2019 is set out as follows:

° reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and
reports and recommended to the Board for adopt and

approval;

° reviewed the performance and independence of the external
auditor and recommended the Board on the re-appointment
of external auditor at the AGM;

° reviewed and approved the annual audit plan for the financial

year,;
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° reviewed the independence of external auditors and its
engagement letter and approved the engagement;
° reviewed and approved engagements of respective

independent external professionals to assess the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control system
and compliance of environmental and social regulations of

the Group; and

° reviewed the respective compliance and risk and internal
control assessment reports, and the corporate governance
review report of the Group.

The Audit Committee had recommended to the Board on

consideration of the re-appointment of BDO Limited as external

auditors of the Company at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie who also
acts as Chairman of the committee, Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy, Dr.
Wang Wei Hsin and one non-executive Director, Mr. Huang Man
Yem.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviews and
recommends to the Board on the overall remuneration structure
and policy for all Directors and senior management, reviews
specific remuneration packages, ensures a formal and transparent
process in place to develop remuneration policy and no Director
takes part in decisions of his own remuneration.
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The attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Capacity and Name of Director

BE_T-NF+_A=t—HLFE %
MEZEEERZHEABEIWT:

Remuneration
Committee Meetings
Attended/Held and
Eligible to Attend
FMEEEE=R

HEREBITRE
EERORGAR RERERERE
Chairman of Remuneration Committee FEEEER
Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie MFF 5 & 1/1
Members R E
Mr. Huang Man Yem EXBEE 1/1
Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy T KOR 5 A 1/1
Dr. Wang Wei Hsin FHHIELS 11
A summary of work performed by the Remuneration Committee #FMZEeREBEZE_ZT—NF+_A=+

during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out as follows:

o reviewed the Directors’ fee for the year and recommended

to the Board for approval,

° reviewed and assessed the remuneration policy and
structure of the Group; and

° reviewed the appointment of Chief Executive Officer and
recommended to the Board the adjustment of monthly
salary considered his dual capacity as Chairman and the

responsibilities undertaking.
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Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the financial
year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
The remuneration of the members of the senior management of
the Group by band for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set
out below:

Remuneration Band
N4 Bl

EEFRMBFREZFMFEIN G Y
BHREMFI0 - BE-_T-AF+-A=

T-HLEFERFMAENE D22 REE
ANBFH M

Number of Persons as
Senior Management
SHREBABAY

Nil to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$5,000,000

£ % 2,000,0007% 7T

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, Mr.
Zhao Xu Guang who also acts as Chairman of the committee and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. To Wing
Tim, Paddy, Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie and Dr. Wang Wei Hsin.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for review of the
composition of the Board in terms of board structure, size and
diversity, reviews the board diversity policy, determines the policy
for the nomination of Directors and identification of potential
candidates for directorship, recommends to the Board on the

appointment, re-appointment, re-election or re-designation of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, assesses the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and reviews
the time commitment of each Director. The selection criteria and
procedures for the selection and nomination of Directors are
set out in the Nomination Policy, which is also published on the

Company’s website.
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The attendance of Nomination Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Capacity and Name of Director

HE_ZE-NF+_A=1T—HILFE &
ZEEgERZHEAERAINOT:

Nomination Committee

Meetings Attended/

Held and Eligible to

Attend

REZEEEE3

HEREBITRE

REREFERE

EERORGA

Chairman of Nomination Committee REZESXE
Mr. Zhao Xu Guang B e e
Members R E

Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie B FI 5 A

Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy MR S A&

Dr. Wang Wei Hsin FHRFELT

A summary of work performed by the Nomination Committee

during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out as follows:

reviewed the composition of the Board in terms of board

structure, size and diversity policy;

reviewed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

reviewed the time commitment of each Director to discharge
their responsibilities as Director;

reviewed the retirement by rotation requirement and

nominated the Directors for re-election; and

reviewed the Group’s business plan and recommended to
the Board to appoint the Chairman of the Board to act as
Chief Executive Officer to ensure the business plan can be
effectively implemented.

11

11
11
11

REZEENHEE_ZT-—NF+_A=*+
—BUEFECETZTERINET:

. RN BERCERE ABEZ IR
R

. R B ERITES 2B
. BRSEERTEEREMNTHOE
fH

e BIBRESERZIATULRLREEE
EEE R

s ERAKBZEBGAILRZES

SERTEZTSIERETHAE - A
BREGEEAUER

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F 3§ 57



58

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board undertakes the corporate governance function for the
Group with assistance of Audit Committee, which (1) develops and
reviews the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Group, (2) reviews and monitors legal and regulatory compliance
of the Group and (3)

professional development of directors and senior management, (4)

reviews the training and continuous

reviews and monitors the code of conduct applicable to employees
and directors and (5) reviews the issuer’'s compliance with the
code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledged that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing the
effectiveness. The internal controls of the Group are designed
to provide reasonable assurance rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. It is designed for assurance of the Group’s
assets and that Shareholders’ investments are safeguarded against
unauthorised use or disposition, transactions are executed in
accordance with the management’s authorisation, internal audit,
proper accounting records are maintained, and the relevant

legislation and regulations are being complied with.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework
The
the Group are developed and

risk management and internal control framework of
reviewed annually based on
Integrated Framework released by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (collectively the

“COSO Framework”) which includes the following procedures:

o identify risks of the Group’s and evaluate the level of the
risks and impacts on regular basis;

° report the high risks to the management to discuss the
approach and measures to manage those risks;
risks as

° implement the measures to manage the

management advised;
the measures have been

° review regularly whether

implemented and appropriate at current situation;
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. review annually the whole risk management and internal
control practices;

o report the effectiveness of the measures and the risk
management and internal control systems;
if consider

° adjust the risks approach and measures

appropriate; and
o monitor the risks on regular basis.

Independent Assessment

To ensure the independent review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, the Group engaged
independent external professionals to perform annual review and
assessment of the risk management and internal control system of
the Group covering the financial year ended 31 December 2019
to ensure the compliance of relevant regulations and rules. The
review report was submitted to the Audit Committee.

Review of the Effectiveness

The Audit Committee reviewed the relevant report and considered
the Group’s risk management and internal control system based
on COSO Framework is adequate and the practice is effective that
the Group had complied with the provisions on risk management
and internal controls as set out in the CG Code.

AUDITOR’ S INDEPENDENCY AND REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements. The
Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditor, BDO
Limited is independent.
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During the Year, BDO Limited had rendered audit services to the
Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is
set out as follows:

Service Rendered

TR BRALGRRSAMEEMERA
FAEAAEEREHEZRSE  MAKED
N/ ENEMeH®IMT

Fees Paid/Payable

BT 12 3 AR 7% B/ EAER
HK$
BT
Audit Services E R 1,300,000
Non-Audit Services FEEZIRE Nil 4z

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2019 and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and applicable regulatory and
law requirement. The Board, having made appropriate enquiries,
considers that the Company has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future and that for this
reason, it is appropriate to adopt the “going concern” basis in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. The Statements
of the Auditor on its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 93 to 98 in this Annual Report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There was no change in the Bye-Laws of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Shareholders are entitled to exercise certain rights pursuant to the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, Bye-Laws of the Company and

the CG Code under Listing Rules.
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Convene Special General Meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, on requisition of Shareholders holding at the date
of the deposit of the requisition (the “Request Submission Date”)
not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the Request Submission Date carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, Directors shall proceed duly to convene
a special general meeting of the Company (a “SGM”).

The requisition, may consist of several documents in like form each
signed by one or more Shareholders, must (1) state the purposes
of the SGM, (2) be signed by the Shareholders and (3) deposited
at the registered office of the Company for attention of Company
Secretary. Such requisitions will be subject to verification by the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, and upon its
confirmation that the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary
shall inform the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient
notice to all Shareholders under the Bye-Laws. If requisition be
verified as not in order, Shareholder(s) will be notified of such

results and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as requested.

If Directors do not within 21 days from the Request Submission
Date proceed duly to convene a meeting, the Shareholders or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from
the Request Submission Date. A SGM convened on requisition of
Shareholders shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by
Directors.

Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company, or not less than 100 Shareholders, can request the
Company in writing to (a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive
notice of the next general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
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The requisition signed by all the requisitionists, or two or more
copies which between them contain the signatures of all the
requisitionists, must be deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong with deposited or tendered with the
requisition a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the company’s
expenses in giving effect thereto (i) in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution, not less than 6 weeks before the
meeting or (ii) in the case of any other requisition, not less than
one week before the meeting. Provided that if after a copy of the
requisition requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited at
the principal office of the Company, an AGM is called for a date
within 6 weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited,
such requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.

Shareholders Enquires and Investor Relations
Shareholders are welcome to make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

For enquiries about your shareholdings on the Company,
registered Shareholders may at any time direct contact the Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar of the Company:

Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2980 1333

E-mail: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

For any other enquiries, Shareholders may at any time send
enquiries to the Company:

Investor Relations

Huscoke Holdings Limited

Room 2301, 23rd Floor

Tower One, Lippo Centre

89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2861 0704

E-mail: ir@huscoke.com
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the fourth ESG report by Huscoke Holdings Limited (the
“Group”), highlighting its Environmental, Social, and Governance
(the “ESG”) performance, with disclosure reference made to the
ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the business
operations in Mainland China. The exact coverage is the 666,670
m? of plant area, which include the coal washing plant, the coking
plant, the power plant, the heating plant, the material plants, and
others, in Xiaoyi, Shanxi Province from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2019, unless otherwise stated. The scope is the same
as that of the previous Reporting Year.

THE GROUP’S SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND VISION

The overall sustainability commitment of the Group reinforces
the concept of creating an “ecological Shanxi” promoted by the
central, regional, and local government. Huscoke’s business value
and management approaches focus on serving people, homeland
and society. Huscoke aims to become fully vertical integrated
along the coal industry supply chain, from downstream trading to

midstream processing and upstream ancillary businesses.

During the Reporting Period, key challenges identified by the
Group included meeting more stringent environmental standards
set by the local government. Correspondingly, the Group continues
to invest in upgrading environmental protection facilities. The
Group also continues to focus on reducing emissions and resource
consumption through the adoption of cleaner production facilities,
recycling all wastewater, recycling and reusing by-products either
on-site or to downstream processors to the maximum extent.

The Group aims to keep close communication with its stakeholders
for advancing economic benefits while improving ESG
performance and managing ESG-related risks, and to be prepared

for future business development and challenges.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

The Group values feedback and opinions of its stakeholders as
they are all indispensable to the business. Thus, key internal
and external stakeholders such as board members, managers,
supervisors, frontline workers, business partners, and regulators
have been engaged such that their needs and concerns can be
better understood. Such engagement had been conducted via

various channels, one of which was distributing a survey.

By carrying out the stakeholder engagement survey, the most
concerned ESG aspects among the stakeholders were identified.
Results show that the most material issues were on environmental
aspects. Social aspects, on the other hand, were considered less
material for the Group. This finding closely aligns with the business
nature of the Group. The following matrix shows the materiality
assessment of the stakeholder engagement.
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According to the matrix, the most material topics to the Group’s
stakeholders and its operations are,

o Waste and Effluent

o Air Emissions

o Environmental Protection Measures
o Water

° Energy

The Group strictly complies with the statutory requirements
in respect of the identified material aspects. Corresponding
management practices and policies are being formulated and/or
implemented following the identification of these issues. The Group
will continue to improve its ESG management and performance
by actively communicating with its stakeholders and constantly

improving its internal policies.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK
The Group welcomes stakeholders’ ESG

approach and performance. Please give your suggestions or share

feedback on our

your views with us via email at ir@huscoke.com.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL
The Group stringently complies with national and local laws
and regulations concerning environmental protection and
pollution control, including but not limited to the followings,

° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

° Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution

° Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the PRC

° Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC
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o Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste

° Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC

Top-down, policy-driven, and performance-based
environmental protection activities have been reinforced
during this Reporting Period. This is because the local
government has issued several new policies to further
improve environmental performance in the city with a special
focus on improving performance from coal industry. Some

of the policies include,

o Document No. 39 [2019]: Notice on Shanxi’s Blue-Sky
Protection 2019 Action Plan

o Regulation of Shanxi on Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution

o Permit on Effluent Management Policy (Trial), etc.

Notwithstanding the tightening requirements, the Group
considers 2019 as an outstanding year for keeping up with
high emission standards and maintaining excellence in
implementing environmental protection projects.

There was no non-compliance with the above-mentioned
laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste during the Reporting
Period.
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1.1

wE

Emissions

Air Emissions

The Group’s operations in Xiaoyi, China accounts for
its major sources of emissions. During the Reporting
Period, the Group generated 26,798 kg of sulphur
oxides (S0O,), 145,753 kg of nitrogen oxides (NO,), and
16,295 kg of particulate matter (PM). Such emissions
were mainly contributed by the Group’s coal washing,
coke production, electricity and heat production
processes, the rest of which was produced by its own
mobile vehicles, which included passenger cars, heavy
goods trucks, and other mobile machinery.

To minimise its impacts on the environment and human
health, the Group tries to figure out the value of these
substances from the beginning of the production
process to better control the treatment for them. For
example, the Group measures and jots down the
amount of SO, of raw coal before they start using them.
In later stages, these substances are also treated by
respective facilities before being emitted into the air.
These procedures give the Group a better grasp of its
sources of emissions, the contribution of emissions at
different stages of production, and how much emission
each of those sources contribute to.

During the Reporting Year, new facilities, such as
additional covers, roofs and waste treatment facilities
were also invested on and installed to further
reduce the potential impacts induced by the Group’s
operations (see Table 1).
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Table 1 Facilities and systems installed in 2019 for the

&1 BEHLREZER-F-N

minimisation of environmental impacts FZEPRIER ZHR
Year of (Expected)

Iltem | Environmental Protection Project and Their Function Completion

HE RAREERHBE (A THEE

Coal Washing plant

KR

1 Covers for Conveyor Belts — Transport belts had been made to be enclosed such that 2019
fugitive emissions are controlled and PM emissions are lowered —E-NF
BXTEHALIRE - BERTRE AN DGR G]E AU RO bR K B ALY B

2 Rainwater Collection Pond - collect the first batch (around 15 minutes) of rainwater that 2020
has hit the ground in order to minimise the chance of industrial pollutants being carried e S
into the city’s pipes or surface water, causing burden to the sewage system or pollution
to the river
RS - WEBEHR (NE1598)EEMAORAK A ETRCE0ETEMBERK
EATHOSKERETHETKEBEEXFTE  REAMRK HARSKBEKEE
NGRS

Coking Plant

3147

3 Online monitoring systems preparation - installing detectors that would transmit real time 2019
data and emissions to online systems automatically to observe and monitor the emissions ZE-NEF
from the Coking Plant, Ground Station
REBERRGER - RERAZF  BEREBANIREDEXIRLEZR  WERNE
AR - Uk 8 HE R

4 Leak detection and repair (LDAR) - for volatile organic compounds (VOCs) 2019
R AEE(LDAR) - RAIEBEBRILR ZE-NF

5 Partition boards construction — for dust and fugitive emission suppression 2019
iR EE - AR A4 B A& BBk I —E-NF

6 VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds) Treatment Facility — Enclosed tubes, acid and alkaline 2019
liquid, and activated charcoal within the facility transport, filter, and treat smell and “E-NE
chemicals to reduce PM2.5 emissions, followed by the new national regulation this year
BEUERICEDERERE - HHE RBRURBNEUREREANER  BENE
BRERMECER WRIPM2SEHER - AETSENBIKHH

7 Desulphurisation Facility - to install wet flue-gas desulphurisation facility for the removal of 2020
sulphur oxides following stricter requirements set by the local government —E-%F
MR - REMFBFHENERBEER TREXERRHERE  AERENH

8 Shelter for the water treatment plant and device for emission collection - to treat and lessen 2020
the odour and fugitive emission coming from the water treatment plant “E-%F
RAKERUENERENERUERERE - UZHISKERERAREAEHEK
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Year of (Expected)

areas
Bk - BEERNREZEDHBERDOREA - AE—-FROBEOPERTEND
EQ i

ltem | Environmental Protection Project and Their Function Completion

HE RAEERHBE (BB TRFE

9 Online monitoring systems for fugitive emissions - installing detectors that would transmit 2020
real time data and emissions to online systems automatically to observe and monitor the —Z-TF
fugitive emissions from the plants
RAHRA TENRG - 2ERUE  BEREBRAEREDERIR L5 NBR
88 TR 0 ) A BE

Combined Heat and Power Plant

FEURHTETH

10 Rainwater Collection Pond - collect rainwater for greening projects within the Plant areas 2019
and lessening dust on roads —E-NF
FKEES - KERKARBRANZCIRE B ER FHRE

11 Partition Boards — Half transparent boards were attached to the sides of the sheltered Plant 2019
to further reduce loose matters from being carried away and polluting nearby areas ZE-NE
Bk - B+ ERAOREZEIBRERMORA - LE-FRIBHODERFENTE
P 37 410 [

12 Desulphurisation Facility — Wet flue-gas desulphurisation facility was installed to remove 2019
sulphur oxides following stricter requirements set by the local government —T-NE
BERE - BB ARARENERBER  RRTRAERWHRE - AEREH

13 Warehouse for Waste Oil - for the collection and temporary storage of hazardous waste 2019
such as used machine oil —E-NF
BEHEE - ARRENESEFEREY NEK

Chemical Plant

3

14 VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds) Treatment Facility - Enclosed tubes, acid and alkaline 2019
liquid, and activated charcoal within the facility transport, filter, and treat smell and —ZT-NEF
chemicals to reduce PM2.5 emissions, followed by the new national regulation this year
BREUARCAMEERE - HAE BRUWRBNEEKEREANES  RENE
BRRMECER R OPM2SEHER - UBTSEMBIK I

Materials Plant

VE B

15 Partition Boards — Half transparent boards were attached to the sides of the sheltered 2019
Materials Plant to further reduce loose matters from being carried away and polluting nearby —T-NF

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT
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1.2

Aside from managing and controlling emissions of
such substances, these substances are also closely
monitored, and real time data can be obtained on-site
and online. During the Reporting Year, all emissions
were below the permissible level set by the applicable
national standards, including but not limited to:

° GB16171-2012 Emission Standard of Pollutants
for Coking Chemical Industry

° GB13271-2014 Emission Standard of Air
Pollutants for Boilers

° All standards listed on the Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants for Coal-fired Power Plants

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Scope 1 GHG emissions were generated directly from
the consumption of coal for stationary combustion and
fuel for mobile combustion. Scope 2 energy indirect
GHG emissions were not generated by the Group as
self-produced electricity and heat were used for the
Group’s own consumption. Other sources of indirect
(scope 3) GHG emissions included business air travel,
use of municipal freshwater and sewage processing,
and paper waste disposed at landfills. Due to lack
of data, emissions from business air travel were not
calculated.

There were 924,312 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (tCO,) GHG (mainly carbon dioxide,
methane and nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group’s
operation during the Reporting Period. The overall
intensity of the GHG emissions for the Group was 1.51
tCO,, per tonne of coke produced.

1.2
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Table 2 Annual GHG emissions

&2 FEBERAEHME

GHG Total GHG
Scope of GHG emissions Emission sources Emission Sub-total emission
BERE BERE
RERBHHEE EHRE EnE INE BHHE
(intCO,) (intCO,) (in%)
(A& bl (AN = |1k i
2E:) 285 (UE2 L)
Scope 1 Direct emission Combustion of petrol’ 628 923,347 99.90
HE1EZYR PR
Combustion of diesel’ 2,902
Sem
Boiler for Coking 127,421
ELME
Boiler for Power Generation 375,179
BERE
Boiler for Heat Generation 417,228
ZRME
Assimilation of carbon dioxide -11
through tree planting?
BREHRK SR
Scope 2 Energy indirect emission®  Not applicable
& [B] 288 [ 5% 2 TEA
Scope 3 Other indirect emission Electricity used for processing 958 965 0.10
HESH MR EHEN fresh water and sewage'
REKKREKAE
Paper waste disposed at landfills' 7
KB IGRIE R
Total 924,312 100
Bt
Note 1: Emission factors were made reference to Mfatt - & = F a8 5p - HERL
Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules BAEZZ2ZFIR FTTH
and their referred documentation as set out by Rl [ $f27 )% B & & &
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, REBREEBERARA]
unless stated otherwise. IR ZEXM -
Note 2: Removal factor of CO, per tree planted was KtiE2 - R ey = g A
23, with reference made to Appendix 27 of the BEE B3 BREE
Main Board Listing Rules and their referred LT AR Rl BT £-27 %
documentation as set out by Hong Kong BERXZHRAZERR
Exchanges and Clearing Limited. RNEFTEZEX M -
Note 3: The Group did not involve in scope 2 energy Bt 53 - R E B RE LS
indirect emission since it generated electricity Z 18 A I # 7] 9)

and heat on-site and did not purchase energy
from external entities.
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The above table shows that 99.5% of the CO, emission
was contributed by the boilers for coking, power
generation, and heat generation. This is due to the
business nature of the operations. See Figure 1 for
their CO, emission comparison by year.

Figure 1 CO, Emission Contributed by Each Plant by
Year
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During the Reporting Period, the amount of CO,
emission for all plants increased. This was due to
the adjustment of emission factor for per tonne of
coal burnt from being 1.2 to 1.5. The CO, emission
factor changed as emission of desulfuriser was newly
included into the calculation this year. These were
therefore the main reasons that contributed to a rise
in CO, emissions. For the Power Plant specifically,
there was a threefold increase because its revamp
for environmental purposes had finally finished. This
enabled the Plant to be brought into full service during
the Reporting Year, hence, further adding up its CO,

emission.
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HEIL  —E R BERER
BE 3 0 A I B B R S 3T AR
AFTEMmME L - Bt ZFET
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1.3 Measures to Mitigate Emissions

1.4

Direct air emissions such as those listed under
section A1.1 are controlled by installing state-of-the-
art pollution control equipment and facilities listed
on Table 1. Additionally, emission levels are regularly
sampled, monitored, updated on-site and online to
ensure all emissions are following the requirements.
In-house training on the proper use and maintenance
of equipment has also been provided by the
environmental service provider (see Section B3). To
take an active role in mitigating emissions, the Group
also planted various types of plants throughout the
Reporting Period, 489 of which exceeded a height
of 5 meters. In total, these 489 trees helped offset a
total of 11 tonnes of CO,. With the Group’s effort, strict
requirements set by the local government had all been
met by the operations during the Reporting Year.

Hazardous Waste and Waste Reduction Initiatives
The Group generated a total of 20,780 tonnes of
hazardous waste during the Reporting Period, with an
overall intensity of 0.03 tonne of hazardous waste per
tonne of coke produced.

Most of the wastes were coal tar, contributing to over
three-quarters of the overall hazardous waste, followed
by refinery coke, which contributed to 18% of the
Group’s hazardous waste. See Table 3 for the rest of
the source of hazardous waste.

Hazardous waste is usually collected and treated by
external parties, which include municipal hazardous
waste treatment plants, or appointed recyclers. As
for chemicals, to avoid pollution to the environment
and increase effort in cleaner production, waste
products, such as liquified natural gas, are recycled
by downstream factories to extract and reproduce
chemicals like, synthetic ammonia, urea, and ethylene
glycol. These will then be used again by the coal
industry.
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Table 3 Annual hazardous waste generation and
treatment methods

*3 FEEZEEFEYWELREE
oE

Annual waste amount

Hazardous waste (in tonnes)  Waste treatment method

BEEY FEBMHECAET) BUEERZ

Coal Tar 16,530  Collected and treated by qualified parties

R HEBRAKEME 2

Refinery Coke 3,825

AHE

Tar residue 17 Mixed with refined coal for coking

EhmEE HRERBRES

Asphalt residue 8

BEE

Crude benzene slag 33

HR

Biochemical sludge 10

£165 %k

Waste from desulfurization 356

PR B

Waste oil 1 Reused for lubrication of coal loaders

& ERGAREHENRE

Note: as defined by and listed on the Directory of National Btat:  RIFEIZE R EYE AT
Hazardous Wastes E#E R3H

Non-hazardous Waste and Waste Reduction 1.5 BEEFEYRBEEE

Initiatives

The Group generated a total of 109,330 tonnes of non-
hazardous waste from production processes during the
Reporting Period, with an overall intensity of 0.51 tonne
of hazardous waste per tonne of coke produced.

Production waste are all transported to the Materials
Plant onsite for 100% recovery for making building
bricks. Office waste, which is partly composed of
wastepaper, are all consumed and disposed of at
landfills. For organic waste, the Group continues to
send leftover food from the canteen to nearby farms as
animal feed, or to appointed sections to make organic
fertilizers for office gardening.

RBEHBE  AEBHRELET
109,330WE MEEREY) - BRER
BHEE—WEKEEOSIES
EREY -

A ERE W) & B0 E IR 5 M R R
HE1T100% B 0 - R & i 52
g o WARBEYE DB EAE
B - 9 1E B IR IE R 5 4H SR A R
B -HRAEREYD AEEHE
BB RYH R E X EIH
MMBRSIERDWEAR - B
TEHHMMAARAEEEZRES
1 AE o
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Table 4 Annual non-hazardous waste generation and k4 FEBEZEYLEEREE
treatment methods Tk

Annual waste amount

Non-hazardous waste (in tonnes)  Waste treatment method
BEEY FEENYECIET) BUYRERE
Coal gangue 13,617 Sent to building materials manufacturers for recovery
KA RV EER R
Fly ash 130,349
RE
Boiler slag 165,443
iy
Office waste 12 Landfilled
PAENIR B R IE
Organic waste 9  Turned into organic fertilisers or animal feed
BHEED BRAREIBDEAR
To reduce waste produced and disposed at landfills, BEAEBEEIGES NEEBRNEE
the Group reuses most of its non-hazardous production M REEBERNLOEEE
wastes for its operations and bricks production. ERYMENAREZEMENR
This also ensures the reduction in virgin materials A EE o LR TR RE IR IR K R AR
consumed. For example, coal gangue left from the HFE - Bl RELRBEPRE
coking process will be used to generate electricity and THETAERRAS IR E
steam for the plant’s operations, such as coking, bricks B(nEl BREES) EE
production, etc., or used as a material to produce BAME T IRIEEEER
bricks itself. ENE o v RS

A2. Use of Resources A2. BERER

2.1 Energy Consumption and Use Efficiency 2.1 BEFREFRERFIEHE
During the Reporting Year, a total of 1,529,549,990 ReEFEE AEEFEAAEH®
Kilowatt-hour (kWh) of energy was used by the Group. 1,529,549,990F E F§ (kWh) &Y
The overall energy intensity was 2,499 kWh/tonne of R EEMNBEREESE
coke produced. WA £E k2,499 F KL B o
Of all energy consumed, 92% was contributed by FEHFEMATERERT - 92%KH
coal gas used in the Group’s coking plant. 7% was REBEFAERERANER 7%
contributed by electricity generated by coal from its R B H 2 E AN 2R A R
power and heating plants. The remaining 1% was BE - FBI%REHEB B
contributed by its petrol and diesel usage in mobile ROTmRkEBRAE -
vehicles.
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Table 5 Energy Use in 2019

x5 ZE-NFEEFREA

Direct Consumption Consumption (kWh)

Energy Usage e R 5 A HEHEHE HFE (AT R

Coal gas R 142,637,125 m3F 5K 1,409,552,068

Electricity EH 106,912,120 kWh 106,912,120
LA FL B 5T

Petrol b 233,204 litres A F+ 2,066,570

Diesel 45 1,101,206 litres A Ft 11,010,232

Total Wy 1,529,540.990

Note: Conversion factors were made reference to IEA Energy
Statistics Manual and 2006 |IPCC Guidelines for
National Greenhouse Gas Inventories.

Table 6 Distribution of Electricity Used in 2019

Mrat: BHREXHTD2ZEERE
IREBEFRAFMRE —F
ENFERFTRIRZNLZE

EEHF B ZEREBTENE

=}

*x6 ZFE-NFELIRHETM

Consumption (kWh)

Electricity Usage ENER HFE (LT R B
Coal washing plant IR R 2,764,000
Coking plant =" 32,706,520
Power plant B E W 33,159,692
Heating plant R R 33,982,148
Transportation B 215,100
Office MAE 4,084,660
Total HE 106,912,120

The Group continues to upgrade its equipment for
increasing energy efficiency. Due to the combustion
processes in boilers, heat recovery technology has
been considered as one of the best energy efficient
technologies to be adopted. Hence, the Group uses
waste heat boilers that ensures a temperature reduction
of waste flue gas below 150 Degrees Celsius and
makes full utilisation of the waste heat from the flue
gas. When possible, the plant also uses steam to
produce bricks instead of using electricity to reduce
energy consumption. During the Reporting Period,
variable-frequency drives were also adopted to
replace traditional electric machines for its high energy

efficiency and flexibility in changing speeds.

NEBBEARELRE AR
= AR B o R R AR A A 2
B BEIREMER AR R
Rz — o Bt A
SEFEAHKARE BREE
RBEREIS0BERENAT -
WD FAERPRHBE - /£
AEEMIEIR T » TRUEF AT
EEBER MARERENK
WABERERE - REBRA -
A ER B th i SR IR B4 A
EH BATAEBRNEEN
KRB RENEEME -
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2.2 HARERME

2.2 Water Consumption and Use Efficiency

78

The total water consumption for the Group was
803,285 m?, with an overall intensity of 1.31 m?® of
water per tonne of coke produced, an 11% decrease
form that of the previous Reporting Period. Water was
sourced from underground. No issues on sourcing
water were reported during the Reporting Period.

Table 7 Annual water consumption

NEERK4R E /803,285 F
K EETWMEKRKAKNERS
E A3 5K - | L AW
IR T BR11% o A ¥R & B
W IR RS SKERKOR 5 E A

A& o

&7 FEHKE

Consumption (m3)

Water consumption AxkeE JEFE (LK)
Coal washing plant R R 97,785
Coking plant Eb R 554,495
Power plant B 97,625
Heating plant ZOR B 53,380

The major source of wastewater for the Group’s
operational sites was from production wastewater
such as coal quenching, as well as domestic
wastewater. Following the upgrade of the wastewater
treatment facility in the previous Reporting Period, all
wastewater was monitored and its parameters (e.g.,
pH, suspended solids, total phosphorus, total nitrogen,
volatile phenol, polyaromatic hydrocarbon (PAH),
benzene, BOD, COD_) were within permissible level
set by GB16171-2012 Emission Standard of Pollutants
for Coking Chemical Industry.

The Group continuously conserves water resources
and recycles water whenever possible. Apart from
the closed circulation system for coal washing
water, there are also closed-circuit systems for water
used for coke quenching, treating chemicals, and a
biochemical sewage treatment plant. Wastewater is to
be concentrated and filtered, after which will re-enter
the coal washing, coking, and coke quenching system.
They will finally be used up and therefore water will
not be discharged. A new rain-water collection pond
project is expected to further save water resources
once constructed.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH

REBKLEGFNERKEZRIR
REERENK EE  ARE
JEREK o T £ —REBIEEKE
BRmARE  BMYMAERE
IKHEITTER - 28 (2ipH -
BT ERE . AT AR EER
MBI © %35 K(PAH) ~ K -
H{EFESA/E BOD) - LEFSA
£ (COD,)) 9 #£ GB16171-2012
BRI SR BEREERTE
B A FTKER -

REEMHHEFKRKER LTH
A BE B YK o BRT SR K HY £
FIBIR RN - BBERNESE -
B ¥R AL B2 S A AL 55 KR 1 TR
BKBBEIBE RS - BEKEEAR
BE - AEBEARE - £
MIRERS  ESAZRD
FHHH - R FHRARKEK
SHMIBEREKE  BE—FE
HIKEIR ©



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BIR -HERERHBE

2.3 Coal Consumption and Use Efficiency

Coal is a key resource of the Group as it is the most
important raw material for the Group’s main business,
coking. During the Reporting Period, 1,319,342
tonnes of coal were used. Apart from being coked,
a significant part of coal used was also used for
generating power and heat. Figure 2 shows a more
detailed description of how coal was used and each
procedures amount.

Figure 2 Flow of Coal Consumption in 2019

Source of Coal Type of Coal
Coal Washing Cleﬁm Coal
Plant (=S
eI T

T Vo
Coal Middling Coal
BB th

Purchased 587

e oo

Coal Gangue
W E

As shown on Figure 2, after raw coal is washed, they
are grouped according to their quality. The finest coal,
clean coal, is selected to be coked, the end-product
of which will be used in blast furnaces for pig iron
production. Coal of the middle quality, the middling
coal, will enter the power plant to generate electricity
for internal uses. Middling coal are also utilised for
heating purposes in houses of Xiaoyi. In 2019, the
Group provided a heating coverage for approximately
30% of Xiaoyi's area, which is around 4.1 million m? of
land area combined. And for coal gangue which are
lower-rank coals, they are sent to the materials plant to
make bricks together with the waste fly ash and slag

generated in other processes.
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The usage of coal therefore shows that the resource
is used to its fullest capacity, and not limited only to
those of the highest quality. The Group will keep an
effort in using all coal materials and residue to their
fullest potential.

Packaging Material
The Group’s operation does not involve any significant
use of packaging materials.

The Environment and Natural Resources
Significant Impacts of Activities on the
Environment

Following the issuing of several major policies by
local government, the Group has formulated and
implemented various controlling schemes to control
its impacts on the environment. The Group aims
to achieve cleaner production by monitoring waste
composition from within raw materials till the end

product.

Table 8 Actions taken to combat significant
environmental impacts caused by the Group’s
operations and control schemes implemented

Actions taken to lessen
environmental impacts caused
by the Group’s operations

B B HE B BARL
FEEBERNRESE
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Control schemes
(corresponding to the
item number in Table 1)
ZEHE &
(FHEXR1IANIEBRR)

To control and suppress the dust
To control and purify SO, NO,,

and PM emissions PMHE 12
To monitor real-time emissions R ESR HE

To control fugitive emissions
To reduce volatile organic compounds
To reduce pollution into nearby lands

and waters VRS
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Beside emission and discharges, the Group’s use of
ground water and pollution may also put a risk on
surrounding lands in terms of soil condition caused
by decreasing humidity. Hence, the Group had grown
some hundreds of trees around the site to reduce the
further loss of ground water and prevent soil erosion.
The Group will continue to monitor its air emission,
solid waste generation, wastewater discharge,
and noise level to ensure minimal impacts on the
surrounding environment.

B. SOCIAL

1.

B1.

Employment and labour practices

Employment

The Group stringently complies with national and
local laws and regulations concerning employment
and labour practices, including but not limited to the
followings:

° Labour Law of the PRC

° Labour Contract Law of the PRC

o Regulation on Paid Annual Leave for Employees

o Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labour

No non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare had been identified during the

Reporting Period.

Employment Figures

As of 31 December 2019, there was a total of 515
employees working in the Mainland operations of the
Group. All of them worked full time and were Chinese.
The workforce was dominated by male and people
of the age of 36-55. See Figure 3-5 for the detailed
distribution.
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Figure 3 Total Workforce by Job Grade B3 #ZBRE S HETHEE
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Figure 5 Total Workforce by Gender

1.1

Female

E5 #1t5E 7508 THEH

Employee Compensation and Benefits

The Group values input of its employees,
hence offers generous welfare to them in return
of their hard work. This has contributed to a
relatively low staff turnover rate, especially for
management-level positions. Not only does the
Group ensure employees’ benefits and welfare
by strictly following the above-mentioned laws
and regulations, the Group also established its
own policies as an internal guideline. There had
been no non-compliance regarding recruitment,
compensation and dismissal, promotion, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, and benefits
and welfare during the Reporting Year.
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1.2

In terms of remuneration, the Group
continuously reviews its salaries to maintain
its competitiveness. After conducting thorough
market research, the Group has started to
determine employees’ base salary on the three
major categories of, position salary, working age,
and education level. And on this basis, the Group
raised salaries of employees by around 53%
during the Reporting Period, such that all staff
could be paid the amount their work deserve.
Besides, employees are entitled to paid annual
leave, sick leave, marriage leave, maternity
leave, paternity leave, injury leave, compensation
leave and breastfeeding breaks, which are all
performed with accordance to the principle,
“everyone is equal regardless of the position
hold”, where the Group treats all employees fairly.

On top of that, the Group also strives to
provide all-rounded welfare to retain talents.
Some benefits that employees enjoy are, free
accommodation, free domestic-use heating,
economical meal plans, free access to a
well-equipped gym room, one-off subsidies
for workers’ children who obtain offers into
universities, etc.

Employee Communication

As the Group values ideas from employees, the
Group also has a labour union for its employees.
In case of any complaints or feedback from
employees to the Group, the union acts as a
bridge to communicate employees’ needs and
demands to the Group, whereas the Group
understands its employees better through the
union.
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B2.

The Group also believes that well-established
communication is key to improving teamwork and
efficiency. Thus, the Group actively encouraged
staff to bond with one another outside of work
by applying for local sports and talents, such
as singing, competitions for them during the
Reporting Year.

Employee Health and Safety

The Group regards providing a safe and accident-
free working environment for employees as of
paramount importance. Therefore, both external and
internal guidelines and regulations are followed by
the Group. External guidelines and regulations cover
national, provincial, and local level instructions. Some
instructions that the Group abides by include (but is
not limited to):

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases

o Requirements and Evaluation Criteria for
the Standardized Production of Hazardous
Chemicals in Shanxi Province

o Xiaoyi People’s Government Safe Production
Committee’s Guideline on the Further
Strengthening of Occupational Diseases
Prevention Work

B2.
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Internal policies outlined by the Group cover areas
including:

° restriction and control on air composition;

° mandatory and regular health checks for certain
types of staff (such as those who are likely to get
occupational health diseases);

° education and training on safety precautions and
importance of adhering to the policies;

° provision of personal protection equipment;

° regular fire or hazardous drills, and feedback and
reflection on such drills, to constantly prepare for
and improve reactions to emergencies;

o restriction on over-time work and operating
machines that produce radiance, noise, pungent
odour, etc. for women who are pregnant,
breastfeeding, or on mensuration, etc.

Such policies and implementation continue to ensure
that employees can work under a safe environment.
During the Reporting Period, no employee was injured
or passed away from working on their tasks. No non-
compliance had been recorded regarding the Group’s
health and safety policies.

Apart from measures preventing employees from
getting injured in work-induced accidents, various
measures are also taken to control and minimise
chances of employees being endangered by non-
work-related hazards. For example, as the Group
provides accommodation, showering, and laundry
facilities for employees, devices and equipment, such
as showerheads and heating system, within these
facilities are regularly upgraded to ensure they are safe
to use. There was no injury recorded regarding non-
work-related accidents.
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Development and Training

The Group strives to constantly deliver comprehensive
career training to employees to equip them with the
necessary knowledge of the industry and maintain
their professionalism. Hence, employees get a 2-day
training when they get into their positions, followed
by regular training conducted by training companies,
usually monthly. A wide range of topics such as internal
occupation health and safety training was provided to
employees.

During the Reporting Year, there was a large-scale
training for all employees in Xiaoyi on safety or
business managing. Monthly trainings were provided
to the Finance department in Taiyuan by a third-
party organisation. The Safety and Environmental
Department also had regular trainings on relevant
practices. As for other management-level employees,
training was arranged for them often as well when it
was not peak season. Overall, all the 515 employees
received training, and the average training hours per
employee was 20 hours.

To keep up with the constantly updating environmental
protection policies and facilities, on-site training is
provided to staff by contractors to ensure the proper
functioning of the newly installed equipment, topics
include but not limited to:

o Structure and mechanism of the facility;

o Facility operation & maintenance; and

o Proper selection and usage of spare parts and
auxiliary materials.
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B4.

B5.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly follows relevant laws and regulations
such as the Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC, the Law on the Protection
of Minors to manage labour practices. Screening and
background checks are performed when recruiting new
employees. Working hours are also strictly restricted
as 8 hours to prevent excess workload. Forced labour
is restrained as the Group is confined to Article 38 of
the Labour Contract Law.

No child labour, forced, or compulsory labour was
reported and/or identified within any sites of the Group
during the Reporting Period. There are no major risks
associated with incidents of child labour, forced or
compulsory labour within the Group’s operation sites.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

During the Reporting Period, the Group updated on
the Procurement Policy and Standardized Purchasing
Procedure. The newly implemented policies would
require suppliers of the Group to provide proofs of
basic qualifications they have acquired relating to the
environmental aspects, such as sewage discharge
permission. The suppliers’ effort and means of
reducing their environmental impacts are also looked
into when the Group screens and chooses suppliers,
for example, the Group prioritises suppliers who take
steps to reduce dust and pollution into air during
transportation by covering materials on trucks. The
information is then audited, followed by a site visit
conducted by the Group to respective factories the
suppliers to confirm that the practices are well taken
place.
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On top of the above policies, the Group specifies
detailed clauses within contracts to ensure business
partners to have implemented adequate management
policies regarding their social and environmental
impacts. For example, within the Environmental and
Energy Property Management Contract, the Group
requests that both parties shall comply with the safety
and environmental protection requirements:

o The service provider shall set up a management
committee to ensure safety production;

. The service provider shall submit to the Group’s
supervision whenever the Group observes a
potential risk;

. The service provider shall arrange its personnel
to receive necessary ftraining offered by the
Group; and

° The Group will send designated personnel to
conduct on-site surveys to monitor the service
providers’ performance.

Product Responsibility

Product labelling, health and safety, and advertising
were not applicable due to the business nature of the
Group.

6.1 Intellectual Property
Due to the nature of the Group, there is no policy
on intellectual property rights protection.

6.2 Quality Assurance
The Group continues to guide the general quality
assurance and quality control processes. No
non-compliance outgoing products were reported
during the Reporting Period as strict measures
were taken to keep up with the quality of products
during the whole process of production.
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Amongst all, to ensure quality of the production
from the beginning, all incoming supplies
are examined before entering the plant. The
laboratory closely monitors parameters of key
supplies of the operations in terms of their
quality, such as water content, ash content,
sulphur content, volatile matter content of the raw
coal. Sampling methods strictly follow national
standards such as GB482-1995, GB481-93, and
GB475-1996. Other national standards were also
followed during quality assurance and quality
control processes, including but not limited to:

J GB/T4000-2008 Coke — Determination of
reactivity and strength after reaction

° GB/T5447-2014 Determination of caking
index of bituminous coal

° GB/T214-2007 Determination of sulphur in
coal

o GB/T212-2008 Proximate analysis of coal

° GB474-2008 Preparation of coal sample

After quality checks, the supplies are distributed
to different plants for different productions
according to their quality. At the end of the
production process, products would be checked
for quality again by the sales department.
Products that are not up to standard would be
arranged to be produced again to assure the
quality of products sold to market.
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6.3

Data Protection

The Group acknowledges the importance
of protecting the privacy and confidentiality
of relevant stakeholders. Therefore, various
schemes are constantly taken to prevent data
leakage, and misuse, or, abuse of customer
sensitive information. No non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to privacy
matters had been identified during the Reporting
Period.

To prevent leakage of sensitive data from virus
attacks, several anti-virus protection practices are
taken. For example, security systems are updated
regularly, the newest version of Huawei firewall
was purchased and installed in 2019. The Group
also keeps an eye on alerts released by the
market and does assessments and audits with
external collaborators to look for bugs, suspicious
activities, or flaw in the security systems. On top
of that, some computers used are restricted in
terms of the application and software that they
can download.

Data are also backed up every six hours to
prevent a loss of data in case of any hacking.
To minimise the chance of employee misconduct,
leading to any sensitive information being
leaked out or used improperly, such data is only
accessible by a small number of staff.
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B7. Anti-corruption

B8.

The Group requires that all employees shall conform
to the Law Against Unfair Competition of the PRC,
Criminal Law of the PRC, and other laws, regulations
and regulatory documents related to commercial
bribery. The Group also has anti-corruption
agreements with every supplier they establish ties with.
The Group’s Legal Department continues to implement
a monitoring system to ensure zero tolerance of
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering,
and any other unlawful activities.

The Group has not aided, abetted, assisted or colluded
with an individual who has committed, or conspired to
commit any unlawful activities. No non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to corruption, bribery,
fraud and money laundering had been identified during
the Reporting Period.

Community Investment

The Group strives to implement corporate social
responsibility and actively participates in public welfare
activities. During the Reporting Year, the Group planted
trees around its plant to offset potential impacts,
such as soil erosion and dust pollution, that would be
brought about by its operations. For employees from
the Xiaoyi office especially, they get a one-off subsidy
of RMB 2,000-3,000 if their children manage to get
a university offer. The Group also offers internship
programmes to local university students to provide
them opportunities of working at a genuine workplace.
Those who have performed excellently would be given
a return offer for when they graduate and can formally
work at the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B L% B A 3R

To the Shareholders of Huscoke Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Huscoke
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 99 to 247, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
(the
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We

for Professional Accountants” “Code”), and we have fulfilled
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These

judgment, were of most significance in our
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
L% B 3R

LOSS ALLOWANCE IN RESPECT OF TRADE
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Refer to the notes 19, 20 and 40(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, net of provision amounting to
approximately HK$643,781,000 and HK$770,041,000 respectively.
Loss allowance amounting to approximately HK$52,187,000 and
HK$13,688,000 has been made on trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables respectively.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and deposits and other
receivables are based on management’s estimate of the lifetime
or 12-month expected credit losses to be incurred, which is
estimated by taking into account the credit loss experience, ageing
of overdue trade receivables, customers’ and debtors’ repayment
history, collaterals and financial position and the assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic conditions, all of
which involve significant degree of management judgement and
estimation.

Our response:

Our principal audit procedures in relation to the valuation of trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables included:

- Assessing whether items in the trade receivables ageing
report were classified within the appropriate ageing bracket
by comparing, on a sample basis, individual items in the
report with the relevant sales invoices and credit terms;

loss

- Assessing the reasonableness of management’s

allowance estimates on trade receivables, amount due
from the non-controlling shareholder and deposits and
other receivables by examining the information used by
management to form such judgements, including on a
sample basis, testing the accuracy of the historical default
data, assessing the validity and value of the assets pledged,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current conditions and forward-looking
information and examining the actual losses recorded during
the current financial year and assessing whether there was
an indication of management bias when recognising loss

allowances; and

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B L% B A 3R

- Assessing the reasonableness of recoverability of trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables with reference to
historical utilisation pattern and credit history of trade debtors
including default or delay in payments, settlement records,
subsequent settlements and ageing analysis.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were audited by another auditor who
expressed a qualified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements on 28 March 2019.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong

responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an
auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B L% B A 3R

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal

control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s law or

report unless regulation precludes

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Tsz Ka

Practising Certificate Number P0O6838

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REeEEHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(E7%))
Notes (Note 43)
H ot (K1 5t43)
Revenue A 7 1,605,356 1,478,049
Cost of sales 8 & B AR (1,429,499) (1,232,228)
Gross profit ER 175,857 245,821
Other income and gains, net Ha W A s - JF58 7 68,452 44953
Selling and distribution costs $HE & o SH KA (123,024) (137,637)
Administrative expenses EEBHR (88,018) (103,301)
Finance costs VBEER 8 (11,409) (2,200)
Other operating income, net Hi g g A F58 9b 4,392 29,970
Reversal of impairment loss on M- WMEREZEIEE
items of property, plant and WEEERE
equipment 14 - 99,053
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B A0 % R 9 26,250 176,659
Income tax expense Fri5 %t 2 12 (11,547) (29,951)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEER 14,703 146,708
Other comprehensive income/ HttzEk s (BAX)HEEZ
(expense) Iltems that may be BT EH2E2ER
reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on HINEBITEEE 2 iR
translation of foreign operations =5 2,067 (28,592)
Other comprehensive income/ AFEEHMEERZE S
(expenses) for the year, net of tax  (FAs) ' BrFi14 2,067 (28,592)
Total comprehensive income for AFEZMHEKH
the year FRC| 16,770 118,116
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REETHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FE T
(Restated)
(&%)
Notes (Note 43)
Ligz3 (H15243)
Profit for the year FEAEAFEREF
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRAREB A 9,761 129,118
Non-controlling interests IE 17 f% HE = 31 4,942 17,590
14,703 146,708
Total comprehensive income BhE2EHK LR
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KAEHEA AN 12,148 103,104
Non-controlling interests EERER 4,622 15,012
16,770 118,116
Earnings per share BREF 13
Basic A AR HKO0.35 centsi&fli  HK4.95 cents/#
Diluted 3 HKO0.35 centsi&fll  HK4.77 centsyE L

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B &

At 31 December 2019 R=Z—AF+=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FAET
(Restated)
(E)
Notes (Note 43)
H ot (K7 it43)
Non-current assets FREBERE
Property, plant and equipment M- REREE 14 576,422 570,644
Goodwill kS 15 - -
Interest in an associate W — g AR 2w 16 — 79,790
Financial assets at fair value BAREFAERZ
through profit or loss TREE 17 1,508 24,249
Total non-current assets IRBEELLE 577,930 674,683
Current assets RBEE
Inventories rE& 18 43,459 85,377
Trade receivables g 5 & W IR K 19 643,781 367,083
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ FBHFRIBE - & R HME
receivables Y iR 3K 20 770,041 365,808
Restricted bank deposits TRRFHISREITIER 22 5,038 -
Cash and bank balances ReRBITEF 22 20,839 18,894
Total current assets MEEEHRE 1,483,158 837,162
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables 2 5 FE T IR 3 23 476,658 237,326
Other payables, accruals and H IR 3 - ERHEUIA
deposit received RB Wik ® 24 735,312 625,982
Other borrowings HEffgE 25 18,188 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 1,134 -
Convertible bonds AR RES 32 - 43,526
Tax payable JE - %4 18 16,116 5,150
Total current liabilities RBEELRE 1,247,408 911,984
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE/(B1])FE 235,750 (74,822)
Total assets less current EERERRBER
liabilities 813,680 599,861
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R &

At 31 December 2019 R=ZE—AF+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TB T FET
(Restated)
(E5)
Notes (Note 43)
K7 it (M1 7£43)
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Other payables and deferred oAt 5T IR RN T U A
income 24 5,034 8,205
Other borrowings HEfgE 25 200,000 18,188
Lease liabilities HEaE 26 8,424 -
Deferred tax liability BEEIBBAE 27 5,593 11,253
Total non-current liabilities kRBEELTE 219,051 37,646
NET ASSETS BEEFE 594,629 562,215
EQUITY B% #
Equity attributable to owners of the ZR2Q R #E A A FEAL I &
company
Share capital N 28 28,707 27,264
Reserves ke 512,813 486,464
541,520 513,728
Non-controlling interests FERESR 31 53,109 48,487
TOTAL EQUITY IR RE 4R KR 594,629 562,215

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
30 March 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. ZHAO Xu Guang
B E
Director

EFE

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH

RITE_ZF=ZA=THREFSHER
REZEMG LATIEERERRE:

Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick
BEOBERE
Director

EZE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAREARER
Equity
attributable
Share  Exchange Capital ~ Convertible to owners Non-
Share Share  Treasury Contributed  Special Other  option fluctuation Statutory redemption bonds of the C ing
capital ~ premium share surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve  reserve reserve reserve losses  Company interest Total
KRE
BROE RERY EABE TERES BEA
RA BHEE BEHERG HARE BAEE HbEE i B EERB L] i 2ifBE  EERE FERER &3t
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 — HK$O000 HKS000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
TEn  FiEr  FEx Thr Fhr FErT  FiEn Tr TFhn TEL TER TEn TEL TEr  TEn
Note ()~ Note (b) ~ Note (c) Note (0) Note 32
Kie) Wb Ko Wi K#s2
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\%
-A-A 25966 341,361 - 1689847 18,236 (10,354) 2,509 96,157 - 85 368 (1,787,307) 376,868 39101 415,969
Profit for the year REERT
(restated, note 43) (23] + Fi&43) - - - - - - - - - - - 129,118 129,118 17590 146,708
Other comprehensive ~ AFEEH2E
loss for the year FE:
Exchange BHEBRE
differences on EEZiH
translation of 28
foreign operations - - - - - - - (26,014) - - - - (26,014) (2,578)  (28,592)
Total comprehensive ~ AEE2E(HX)/
(expenses)income WiEEE
for the year (B3] M 543)
(restated, note 43) - - - - - - - (26,014) - - - 129,118 103,104 15,012 118,116
Transactions with BRANZRS:
owners:
Share allotment BB 1,298 32458 - - - - - - - - - - 33,756 - 33756
Dividends to Blil g
non-controlling FrkiER
interests of a EERE
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - - (5,626)  (5,626)
Total transactions BRAALZ
with owners RH8E 1208 32458 - - - - - - - - - - 33756 (5,626) 28,130
At 31 December 2018 R=E-/\F
(restated, note 43) ZB=t-H
(5] [i343) 27264 373819 - 1,689,847 18,236 (10,354) 2,509 70,143 - 85 368 (1,658,189) 513,728 48,487 562,215
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERBESDX

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZE=Z—NEFE+ A=+ —HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERNTEEAESR
Equity
attributable
Share  Exchange Capital  Convertible to owners
Share Share Treasury Contributed  Special Other  option fluctuation Statutory ~redemption bonds  Accumulated of the
capital ~ premium share surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve  reserve reserve reserve losses  Company
L]
BREE ABRD SARE TRREZ BHA

BE RHEE EFES  HARR SHEE HbEE  ER R ERERE &% % RiER  RERE
HKS000  HKS000 HK$000  HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§000
Thr TR TEx  TEx TEx TEx  TEx  Thx TExr  TEx T Thn Tt

Note ()~ Note (b)  Note (c) Note (a) Note 32
Wite) Wb Wi W) Wits?
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF
(as previously -A-A
reported) (lkpeas)
Prior year adjustment  FE A%
(Note 43) (Hi43)

At 1 January 2019, RZE-NF
as restated -A-F
mE3|

Profit for the year AEEET
Other comprehensive ~ AEEEM2E

loss for the year: B

Exchange BHEBNE
differences on |-134:3:
translation of 8

foreign operations

Total comprehensive A% 2
income for the year ~ #%

Transactions with BREAZRS:
owners:

Transfer to statutory ~ BEZEATHEE

reserve

Extinguishment BHRZ
of the 2017 “E-tF
Convertiole TRRES
Bonds

Recognition of the BERZ
2019 Convertiole “T-hE
Bonds TRRES

Conversion of BRTARES

convertible bonds
Transfer of consideration & (B 1
shares (nofe 16) (Hiit16)
Distrioution of treasury %1k B B 13
shares
Lapsed share option B ARz ER#E

Total transactions BREAZ
with owners RH4E

At 31 December 2019 R=F-A%F
tZR=1-8

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZRERAT

Non-
Controlling
interest

FERES
HK§ 000
Thr

Total

ait
HK§'000
T




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RAERBEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

Notes: Biat -

The contributed surplus represents the excess of the value of shares
converted upon conversion of the 2008 Convertible Bonds and
2019 Convertible Bonds over the nominal amount of the ordinary
shares fssued pursuant to section 40(1) of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 and the credit arising from the capital reorganisation.

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries at the date when the shares
were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the
Company's shares issued for the acquisition.

The other reserve represents the difference between the fair value
of the consideration paid and the relevant share of carrying value
of the subsidiary’s net assets acquired from the non-controlling
interest.

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in the PRC,
subsidiaries established in the PRC are required to transfer a certain
percentage of their profit after tax, if any, to the statutory reserve
funds, which are non-distributable, before profit distributions to
shareholders. The amount of the transfer is subject to the approval
of the boards of directors of these subsidiaries

RIFEREZE—NN—FRaEEA0)E -

BABBIER B FENFABRIEFER
ZE-NFABREFEL L RIGE
BEHEHEZETEAREES ZHRER
FHEEZER -

H OG5 15 T8 2 Bl AR 2 AT PR 10 &
H 2 B (7 B 18 582 8 2 7] 3t g 38 77,2 K
WEEZZEH -

HMFEHEEENCERLEHE DG 7 FE
2R K 2 BB T B 2 A BB R (E IR (B
BB ZERE -

TR 1% 0 B 75 B 48 B 890 4 A B 7
Z 18 23 B] A £E 1] R 3R 53 R A B .2 AT A
EEMBELEREE T B2 8B ERNE
(21F) » ZZEMEEEET DR °
BRNTHEEEZENELNAIZCEES
HEEE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREIMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
(Restated)
(E5)
(Note 43)
(K1 7%43)
Cash flows from operating activities REREEBZEHERE
Profit before income tax expense B PIT 1S B B S A & A 26,250 176,659
Adjustments for: P
Finance costs % E A 11,409 2,200
Interest income B WA (3,799) (22)
Depreciation e 20,767 42,286
Reversal of impairment loss on items of ¥ % - lENMREBER
property, plant and equipment EEERMD - (99,053)
(Reversal)/loss allowance of trade 2 RBIRNEIR
receivables, net (Bw),/ #E F5 (381) 154
Loss allowance of prepayment, net ENREBEREG  FE 1,235 -
Gain on disposal of items of property, TEME - - BMER
plant and equipment BEEE 2 W= (2,023) -
Compensation income from contract with &P & #) {8 U A
customer (10,126) -
Share of result of interest in an associate ~ JE{5 — R B & A AR
ey 8,982 286
Loss arising from amendments to AR EFEE] EE
convertible bonds &5 18 185 -
Gain on exercise the put option for the TR BRI DA D S B &
disposal of interest in an associate, DA E - FEE
net (1,054) -
Increase in financial assets at fair value AR EFAEBRZ L/
through profit or loss & EE - (1,406)
51,445 121,104
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL/ (M) 41,707 (35,077)
Increase in trade receivables E 5 e WK B L hn (215,900) (117,772)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TERFRIE ~ e R A gL
other receivables R SR 1 N (408,201) (37,332)
Increase in an amount due from the non-  J& U Bff B8 2 &) JF 22 F% A% R 3%
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary T8 #2110 (64,518) (1,324)
Increase in trade payables B 5 FE 5 IR 35 hn 242,406 91,452
Increase in other payables, accruals and  Efh JEfFIRZ « BT 3KE -
deposits received and deferred income Bz & KR I IR A S 0 153,485 133,262
Net cash generated from operations REXEBEE R FHE (199,576) 154,313
Interest paid AT F & - (101)
Income taxes (paid)/refund (B BEER (5,721) 8
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from  &RE£ (A E4L 2
operating activities REREFHE (205,297) 154,220

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
(Restated)
(E)
(Note 43)
(Kt it43)
Cash flows from investing activities REREXKzBEERE
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEY % - ENREIEE
equipment (17,836) (47,367)
Proceeds from sales of property, HEWE BMEREZHE
plant and equipment W 2= 2,732 -
Acquisition of an associate I B — B & A A - (23,040)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables &Y — &t B A &) FE 12 A%
due from the non-controlling shareholder A% 3 2~ £ fth J& Uk R 3¢
of a subsidiary B (35 ) 25,921 (134,592)
Interest received 2 U F B 1,429 22
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing & 2EEL (FTH)Z
activities R ] 12,246 (204,977)
Cash flows from financing activities REMEXEB2RERE
(Note 37(a)) (#1##37(a)
Proceeds from borrowings BE Z W= 200,000 -
Net cash generated from financing activity @& %2 EL 2R $ HE 200,000 -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash H&RIREZFEWE M,
equivalents (Rt ) F58 6,949 (50,757)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F£#I7 R & RBHEEEY
year 18,894 69,655
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash [EXZBHIFE S N
and cash equivalents ReEBYW 2T E 34 (4)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRZEERREEEY
year 25,877 18,894
Analysis of the balances of cash and BRERBSLBYEBR DM
cash equivalents
Restricted bank deposits SZRRHIEITFER 5,038 -
Cash and bank balances BeMBTERF 20,839 18,894
25,877 18,894

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F 3§

107



108

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION 1. QFEH
Huscoke Holdings Limited was incorporated in Bermuda as MEZERBERAANE R EFMAK
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are VURERRBRAG - ERGHERRZ
listed on the Stock Exchange. The registered office at the Frbm e RREHR  dMHEER
end of the reporting period is located at Victoria Place, 5th * Z 9 FE o B AR Victoria  Place,
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda and the 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
principal office at the end of the reporting period is located at HM 10, Bermuda R & ¢ & & iE &
Room 2301, 23/F., Tower One, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, 895k N1 & L E1E231E2301%E
Admiralty, Hong Kong.
At 31 December 2019, the directors consider that the R—_E—NF+_A=+—H E=
immediate and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be REASENEENGKERT A
Shun Wang Investments Limited, a company incorporated in IEFHREERAAI(—KREABRE K
British Virgin Islands. BHEAMEKIHAR)-
During the year, the Company and its subsidiary (collectively, RAFE KRR REMMB AR (571
the “Group”) were involved in the following activities: [RER]) P RIATHE -
- coke trading business; - EREZEH:
- coal-related ancillary business; and - KErRAEMBEEL: KX
- coke production business. - HEREEEH-
Information about subsidiaries FEMBARIZEH
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARARIEEMB AR ZFBMOT:
follows:
Issued
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered  equity attributable
Company name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
Rl BRITEER ARERMERE
NE LB ERLSE LS R = AR A Bak FTEEHK
Direct Indirect
B ik
Rich Key Enterprises Limited” British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Investment holding
Hong Kong
EECEERAA" REREZES BF 1% 70 REER
Pride Eagle Investments Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong
HMEREFRDR" REEZES /&% 1% 7T REER
Huscoke International Group Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Trading of coke
MEBEREEERAA B/ B 10,0007 7T BEEER
Herong Resources Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Trading of coke
MBERAERLDA R 10,0007% 7T BEER
Ocean Signal Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Assets holding
BHEEBRRA B/ BR 10,0007 7 BERE

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1. RRAEHGE)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BEMBATZER (&)
Issued
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Company name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
EmmL BROTEER/ ARERERE
AR GRS EL S E EREIES BOk TEXH
Direct Indirect
BE £
Joy Wisdom International Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 - 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong \
BRERERRF KEBRZBS /B 1,000 7T REZER
Huscoke International Investment Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
Limited
MEBRKRERR AR ER/BE 1T REZER
GRG Huscoke (Shan Xi) LTD People’s Republic of HK$715,000,000 - 90% Coal-related
(“GRG Huscoke")* (Note a) China (the “PRC")/ ancillary
Mainland China business; coke
production and
X _ coke trading
W78 5 A0 5 82 R A5 IR 2 A) FEARAE 715,000,0007% 7T sl ES
(I£&ME]) " (Hita) (@), HRERH EREEREE
EIR
Wealth Guardian Holdings Limited*  British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Investment holding
Hong Kong ‘
EHERERAR EBEUREE /BB 1E T REEK
Good Guardian Investments Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100% Investment holding
‘ Hong Kong ‘
ERKRERRAF" EBEUREE /BB 1E T REEK
Fruitful International Investments Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investments
Limited
ELERREFERAA BB/ BE 10,0003 7t RE
Joint Bloom Enterprises Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Investment holding
Hong Kong ‘
ABRCEBRAA" EBEUREE /BB E REEK
True Tycoon Limited* Cayman Islands/Hong US$1 - 100% Investment holding
Kong
HFBERRA Fews &8 E REEK
Heroic Global Enterprises Limited*  British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100% Investment holding
~ (Note b) ‘ Hong Kong B )
ERRREERBRAR (B ib) EBEUREE /BB E REEK
Bloom Wealth Investment Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
(Note b)
BB R EBRAF (M i) BV 1% T REEK

*

The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries are

not audited by BDO Limited, or another member firm of the

BDO global network.

. ZEWE R 72 0EE B KA

HEET 512

REE I ELIER

EN=N]

RAXBFETEER DR EZ S
—HKEEHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

a. GRG Huscoke is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture company

established in the PRC.

b. The companies were incorporated during the year ended 31

December 2019.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period, or at anytime during the

reporting period.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
for the year and formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2019

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases

DREW(E)
FHMBARZEN(H)
EX

a. SENZARTERIZFIAES

AL

b. FZERARBE_FT-AF+-A=T
—BLUFEFEMAT -

R|ER RN RERRNEAERE
ﬁﬁ%% RBRATMAHEREERZE

sz

e

§§$

ERIHARRETBRUFRNEE
BEAREREAGEEEEFER
RBOZARBIMERR - KRAFE
ERB NHEMHBARZFER
SAREREBHILE -

RNBERUBHRELEN(EEME

HREZHD

(@) RAFIT RETEEBUBH
SR -R-F-NFE-A—
BEX
AEEER-_F-NAF—H—H
MM FRRESHEERER
AT R RER :

EEUBMEER HE

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and

HKAS 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Prepayment Features and
Negative Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

110 HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZZEKRERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

2.  ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(@)

(i)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in accounting
treatment for lease accounting, primarily for accounting
for lessees. It replaces HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 17”),
HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC) — Int 15 Operating Leases-
Incentives and HK(SIC) -
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of

Int 27 Evaluating the

a Lease. From a lessee’s perspective, almost all leases
are recognised in the statement of financial position
as a right-of-use assets and a lease liabilities, with the
narrow exception to this principle for leases which the
underlying assets are of low-value or are determined
as short-term leases. From a lessor’'s perspective,
the accounting treatment is substantially unchanged
from HKAS 17. For details of HKFRS 16 regarding its
new definition of a lease, its impact on the Group’s
accounting policies and the transition method adopted
by the Group as allowed under HKFRS 16, please refer
to section (ii) to (iv) of this note.

2.

RAEBMBRELN(EFRME

#®
(@)

(i)

SR DE)

RAFET RIEETE B ER
HEA - R-F-NF—H-—
BEME)
EBUBHREERE165 - H
=4

KRB B EREERFE165
a2

BB REENEI6%R AHE
et (EEAABAZED
ZEFHREEBETREAES - &
BMREB G ENEI7TREE
((BEBETENFI7H] - BF
(BB BREREBEES) -~
REFITETCLTHRET A
HE BEH(EAREZES-
REFELRLEHE-BERE
BEAREZES) - RESE
T E S RBEZXRRBEAR
SHRB -EEABAZARE
BTHREHEIRPBRREER
NERAFEAEEERTEES
& ZRAFRDHOIINER B
HMEZHBEEARRKREBENE
EREHAEE - EHBAAZA
B S@EBARLEFES
ETERBEITRERTE - BH
ERVEMELERFE16RE A
ENFER HASEEFHK
FHRHEURE BT HRELE
Al 165 E TATAEBRR
ZBEREZFHE  BL2HX
M5 S (i) = (V) & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ % —

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2.

NF+ZA=+—BHILFE

ROEBEMBRELAN(EFRME

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) mEERDE)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 (@) IRATET REITEBUER
January 2019 (continued) HEH -R=-F—-NhE—-H—
BEM(E)
A. HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued) A FEBBHBHEEREI6H - #H
BE(#&)
()  Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued) () WWEBHIEREERE165
ZEE(E)

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative

AEBECRARATELER

effect approach and recognised the right-of-use assets
at the amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted
by the amount of any prepayments or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018 at the date of initial application. The
comparative information presented in 2018 has not
been restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 17 and related interpretations as allowed by the
transition provision in HKFRS 16.

The following tables summarised the impact of

&M WS ER 165 g
SNEERBZCEERER
REE AURERIRERAB
R - ZE-N\F+-A=1+—H
2B MBHNRATER 2%
& HH B8 2 1F fa] T8 A IR 3R 3k &
AHENRzER TN
FREJNEBRERL KRES -
I H#EBRIBERB G ERIE7
R E BB A 2R F165%
MABR MR EM AT ERERE
S

TRE|MBEERBMBRE

transition to HKFRS 16 on consolidated statement of ZEHIE1GHRE RN —N\F+=
financial position as of 31 December 2018 to that of 1 A=t+—HBZ=ZZ2—nF—A—
January 2019 as follows (increase/(decrease)): Aziea Bk 22808
m/ O AN T

Consolidated statement of financial R-E-HhE—H—HZ HK$'000
position as at 1 January 2019 RE BN & FET
Right-of-use assets presented in property, A\¥% - BE N REY R 2 F Bk

plant and equipment BE 12,801
Lease liabilities (non-current) HEBEGERE) 9,612
Lease liabilities (current) HEBRE(RS®) 3,189

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

1 January 2019:

Reconciliation of operating lease
commitment to lease liabilities

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. RNWEBN BT ER(EFRME
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) wEERADE)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 (@) RATET REIEBUER

January 2019 (continued) HEH -R=-F—NE—H—
BEME)

A. HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued) A FBEHBHEZERZEIGH - #

B(E)

()  Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued) () WWBEBEIEIREERE165
2B (E)

The following reconciliation explains how the operating LTEESBPHEE_—"ZT—)\F+

lease commitments disclosed applying HKAS 17 at —A=t—HBHEBRBEBg:tE

the end of 31 December 2018 could be reconciled BIE1I7H BB EHERE

to the lease liabilities at the date of initial application e ER-_FE—NF—HA—H

recognised in the statement of financial position as at 2B RARFRERZARE RE

REMEEREETHIR:

REMHEREREEEE HK$'000
iR TR

Operating lease commitment as of
31 December 2018
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as at
the date of initial application
Add: contract liabilities arising
from exercising an option
to extend a lease
Less: contracts outside the scope of
HKFRS 16 (Note)
Less: short term lease for which
lease terms end on or before
31 December 2019

Total lease liabilities as of

RZBE-NEFE+_A=+—HBHZK

BB AR 34,123
REXERABRRAABEALEERE

BERAhR

(242)
m:EITEREAEREE
ZEHAaE
8,296

BB B RS E R SB165% & E

AONZ & 8 ([ i) (29,221)
WHER-_E—hF

+-—A=+—Hzza]

ERZEHHEE (155)

R-ZFE-NAF—HA—BZ

1 January 2019 HEaGEESE 12,801
Note: The lease agreement is cancelled before the Hat: MEBRZENHEER®BB
commencement date of the lease. Accordingly, the R EUE - At - 2 MHE

lease is outside the scope of HKFRS 16.

EEEHHREERE16
SR ED & AN o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(@)

(i)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1
January 2019 is ranging from 4.9% to 5.3%.

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use
an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. A contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time when the customer, throughout
the period of use, has both: (a) the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the identified asset and (b) the right to direct the use
of the identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components, unless the lessee apply the
practical expedient which allows the lessee to elect,
by class of underlying asset, not to separate non-
lease components from lease components, and instead
account for each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for all each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single

lease component for all leases.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH

2.

ROEBEMBRELAN(EFRME
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B(E)

() WWEBHIEREERE165
ZEE(E)

RZE-NF—A—BZHEEY
BARREANERZHEBGER
JERZMEFHEAHEALZLER
RFEN F4.9%%E5.3% °

iy HEZHER

RBEE BV REERE165
MEAETRBETENR —RE
BRERA-—EHEEGEBEE)
UBBREBZEH0HE02—
By EXRPRERME AR
WA (N EEBE &5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(@)

(iii)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease
as an operating lease or a finance lease based on
the extent to which risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a lease asset lie with the lessor or the
lessee. If a lease is determined as an operating lease,
the lessee would recognise the lease payments under
the operating lease as an expense over the lease term.
The asset under the lease would not be recognised in

the statement of financial position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they are
operating leases or finance leases) are required to
be capitalised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but HKFRS
16 provides accounting policy choices for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term
leases and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value
assets and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.

RAEBMBRELN(EFRME

REEADE)
(@) HAHIT RETEBHBHR

(iii)

HEA -R-F-NF-A—
HEXM(E)
EENBHEERF 165 - H
B(#)
EREBEAZETERE
RIEE L G ERFITH - &
MAERBHEEERS HEIE
P R Bge B [2] e B2 1 AR A SR AR
AZHBARESEESBRLE
LHEIMEHEE - WHEE
EREERE  ABEABRHE
EHANRRKEEEETZHEE
MR R— AR HER
TZEEBTERABEANZY
Bk mR A FER

RIBE B REERIE165 -
EHRE(THRAKEEHEENR
ERE)ARMBERRENMER
EHREEEMNBERE  EE
BUBREENF16H R ER
RHSFTHREE AEED
BOBEHEENEER &
(VHRAEEREKEEZEEE
TERL - REBEEREEZETL
BEEEEEMRHAKBHEES
H D2 B 2 & #E R E B
REEMHERE - BZEH
ERACEENREREEY
NILERIEXH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(@)

(i)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (ii) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. The Group
measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the
right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liability.

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group shall use the Group’s incremental borrowing

rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(@)

(i)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

Accounting as a lessee (continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(@)

(iv)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied HKFRS 16
using the cumulative effect approach and recognised
the right-of-use asset at the amount equal to the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepayments
or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018. The comparative
information presented in 2018 has not been restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 17 and
related interpretations as allowed by the transition
provision in HKFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities at
the date of 1 January 2019 for leases previously
classified as operating leases applying HKAS 17 and
measured those lease liabilities at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019.

The Group has elected to recognise all the right-of-
use assets at 1 January 2019 for leases previously
classified operating leases under HKAS 17 as if
HKFRS 16 had been applied since the commencement
date, but discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. For all
these right-of-use assets, the Group has applied HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets at 1 January 2019 to assess

if there was any impairment as on that date.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT

2.

ROEBEMBRELAN(EFRME

REEADE)
(a) RAFT RBETEBUHER

(iv)

HEA -R-F-NF-A—

HEXM(E)
EENBHEERFI16% - #H
B(#E)

BIE

B ECRTa  REEERA
R HETEERBBVIBR
EHEAFIHR Y ESHEAR
LeHEHREAREE  UH
R-ZE—)\F+-_A=+—H8~
REMBHRRERNEERZA
E BB 2 AT A TE A RIE Bk RE AT
MENRZEBEELAR - RN
)\ FEHRIZILEBEERT
RENRBEBEEEGTE
B 1758 K & 7 Bl 75 3R &5 £ B
B AN 2 BB R FT AT 2
HEREETRSE -

AEBER-_ZT-NF—H—H
i 95 B ME & B & 5T A RISE7
MO BRRKEHEZHERR
MERE  WRHBTIHEHEMNK
ZHEERR=ZZE-—NLF—A—
Bz A AEEERNEIE)

AEREHEAE -

AEBEDEER_T-NF—A
—HApEAEBEE G ER
PR BRKEHEZRE
R AEEREEE  BOA
AU BHREERFI6HKARS
REEEEEMR - WFEMAME
ARBRERBRZESERN
FEBEIR - pLPATE L H(E A
BEMS  AKEER-FT—N
F-A-—HRERBESHER
£365% & E R E N HRN & B
ERBEMBIE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(@)

(iv)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

Transition (continued)
The Group has also applied the follow practical
rate

expedients: (i) applied a single discount

to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics; (i) applied the exemption of not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases with term that will end within 12 months of
the date of initial application (1 January 2019) and
accounted for those leases as short-term leases; (iii)
exclude the initial direct costs from the measurement of
the right-of-use asset at 1 January 2019 and (iv) used
hindsight in determining the lease terms if the contracts

contain options to extend or terminate the leases.

In addition, the Group has also applied the practical
expedients such that: (i) HKFRS 16 is applied to all
of the Group’s lease contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)
— Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease and (ii) not to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts
that were not previously identified as containing a lease
under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int4.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12,
Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect
the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.
Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether to
consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
based on which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax authority
will examine amounts that it has a right to examine and have
full knowledge of all related information when making those
examinations. If the entity determines it is probable that the
tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then
the entity should measure current and deferred tax in line
with its tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected
using either the “most likely amount” or the “expected value”
approach, whichever better predicts the resolution of the

uncertainty.

Amendments to HKAS 19 — Plan amendments,
curtailment or settlement

The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment
or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company should
use updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current
service cost and net interest for the period. Additionally, the
effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating
the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt
with separately in other comprehensive income.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets
with negative compensation can be measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income if
specified conditions are met — instead of at fair value through
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. RFHEEHBHESLEA((FBHII

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

REEADE)
(a) WM RETEBMBH

January 2019 (continued) HEH -R=-F—NE—H—
BEM(E)
Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests in BEBEERE28RIET AR E
Associates and Joint Ventures REREELEZREEZ

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long-term
interests (“LTI”) in associates or joint ventures which form
part of the net investment in the associates or joint ventures
and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied to these LTI before
the impairment losses guidance within HKAS 28.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2018 Cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to HKFRS 3 which clarifies that when a joint operator of
a business obtains control over a joint operation, this is a
business combination achieved in stages and the previously
held equity interest should therefore be remeasured to its
acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2018 Cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to
HKFRS 11 which clarify that when a party that participates
in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation which
is a business and subsequently obtains joint control of the
joint operation, the previously held equity interest should not
be remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.

ZIEERIRF  BERAMBREER
FORBARNBRNBE RAIRAE
TEZREFBZI A2 ZREZ
RAHEELXERES (R
@) WHREERE G ERIF285
HAZMERBRES ZAMEZEFRD
BaEREEMBRELEESR

S

EEBUBHEEAN —_F—AFE_F
—NFHYPZFENE - EEHF
ERRFIREEITR — ZBEH
REFENEBRER L 2EBTHE
A1l B BB M2 BEE B B &
MEDN - EPRERYEEMEREE
AISE3W ZER] - BRI BB B
EHRAZERNSHARER 2
BRI OREBRERZEBKA
BE R SR 45 B 2 BN 4 5 A 1 FE & 3
AEERUWEBRZARE-

EEBUBHEEAN _F—AFE_F
—NFHYPZFENE - EEHF
FREREBNEEETE - REAZH
REFEREBER L 2EBTHE
A1l B BB M7 2 BEF B B &
MEDN - ERERYEEMEREE
AIENEZER]  RIERTEB B2
BiEX REARZEHES —BEEZ
HAEEB 2T RERESHHRAXK
ZEEHRER KRR A ZRAEE N
EEHMAEZHRBEAZARE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F 3§

121



122

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2018 Cycle —
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to
HKAS 12 which clarify that all income tax consequences of
dividends are recognised consistently with the transactions
that generated the distributable profits, either in profit or loss,

other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2018 Cycle —
Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to
HKAS 23 which clarifies that a borrowing made specifically
to obtain a qualifying asset which remains outstanding after
the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended use
or sale would become part of the funds an entity borrows

generally and therefore included in the general pool.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a business'

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of material
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest rate benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 reform’

HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets
and HKAS 28 between an investor and

its associate or joint
venture®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

3 The amendments were originally intended to be

effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017. The effective date has now been deferred/
removed. Early application of the amendments of the

amendments continue to be permitted.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a business

The amendments clarify that a business must include, as a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs,
together with providing extensive guidance on what is meant

by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce
outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of “outputs” and
a “business” to focus on returns from selling goods and
services to customers, rather than on cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation
of “material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework, and incorporating
supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into the definition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 —
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of
the uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark
reform. In addition, the amendments require companies
to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 will replace HKFRS 4 as a single principle-based
standard for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts in the financial statements

of the issuers of those contracts.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent

of the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
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associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these REBERTEEHEPAEEZS MG
new pronouncements will result in substantial changes to the ol AEE g R R MG mE
Group’s accounting policies and financial statements. ZERKEE o

BASIS OF PREPARATION REEE

(a) Statement of compliance (a) AHEH

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Listing
Rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

()

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured at

fair values.

Basis of presentation

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in

which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which

case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a

liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to such
non-controlling interests even if this results in those

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The Group
reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the elements of control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position
which is presented within these notes, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investments is reduced to its recoverable amount on
an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received

and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated. The Group’s
investment in associate is accounted for under
the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment or a portion thereof is classified as held
for sale. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment. Except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses
when the Group’s share of losses of the investee equals
or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the
investee, which includes any long term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment

in the investee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 H %~ %

4.

“NEFE+ZA=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(d)

Associates (continued)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate is
measured as the excess of the cost of investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired associate. Such
goodwill is included in interests in associates. On the
other hand, any excess of the Group’s share of its net
fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of investment is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as an income.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which
is presented within these notes, an investment in
associates and joint ventures is stated at cost less
impairment loss. The carrying amount of the investment
is reduced to its recoverable amount on an individual
basis, if it is higher than the recoverable amount. The
results of associates and joint ventures are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on

the acquisition date, after re-assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, and whenever there is an indication that the

unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each
asset will not reduce the individual asset’'s carrying
amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the

year in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Construction in progress is stated at cost, which
comprises the related construction and borrowing
costs, if applicable, less any identified impairment
loss. The cost of construction in progress will not be
amortised until they are put into use and are transferred
to a specific category of property, plant and equipment
when the construction is completed.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the
date on which they are available for use and after
taking into account their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method. Where parts of an item
of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis and depreciated separately:

Leasehold land under finance leases
RIEREREFRECHE LM

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
year in which the item is derecognised.

(f) Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1

January 2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation model,
the Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the right-
to-use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
January 2019) (continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental

borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or rate, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed
lease payments or a change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.

(9) Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31
December 2018)
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31
December 2018) (continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised

as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value

of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease

commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are

analysed between capital and interest. The interest element

is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and

is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of

the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance

owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases
are considered separately for the purposes of lease

classification.

(h) Financial instruments

Financial assets — recognition and derecognition
Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire; or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control
of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group

continues to recognise the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets — recognition and derecognition
(continued)

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and an associated

liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Financial assets — classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade receivables

are initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (i) Mandatory FVOCI; (iii)
Designated FVOCI; or (iv) FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets — classification and measurement

(continued)

(i)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if
it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
arising from impairment, derecognition or through the

amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
cash and bank balances, restricted bank deposits,
trade and other receivables, deposits paid and
amount due from the non-controlling shareholder of a

subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets — classification and measurement

(continued)

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including

financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial
assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are
otherwise required to be measured at FVPL. They are
carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss
recognised in profit or loss, which does not include
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
Dividend or interest income is presented separately

from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it
is:

- acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

identified

instruments that are managed together and for

- part of a portfolio of financial
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern

of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition; or

- a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured at
FVPL include the financial assets disclosed in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities — recognition and derecognition
Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial liabilities — classification and measurement
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accruals, other borrowings, lease liabilities and
convertible bonds. All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, unless
the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on

financial assets that are measured at amortised
cost to which the impairment requirements apply in
accordance with HKFRS 9. At each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset
at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit
risk on that financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial
asset has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month

ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected
life of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

- past due information

- nature of instrument

- nature of collateral

- industry of debtors

- geographical location of debtors
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement of ECL (continued)

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the

carrying amount of the financial instrument.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the
financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.
(i) Information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without

taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);

4.
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Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial assets
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument

is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk
A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i it has a low risk of default;

(i)  the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash

flow obligations.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. EEEHBREE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) () =MEEREGE
Credit-impaired financial asset EERELHMEE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:
(iy  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(i)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
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event.
(i) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or (i) ERAZERABBBEERA
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s HE N A IR

financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(iv) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(v)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

(vi) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a

deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount based on historical experience of recoveries
of similar assets. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that
are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. Any

subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1))

(k)

Convertible bond

The component of the convertible bond that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability
in the statement of financial position, net of issue costs.

On the issue of the convertible bond, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market
rate for a similar bond that does not have a conversion
option; and this amount is carried as a current liability
on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option that is recognised and included in
shareholders’ equity, net of issue costs. The value
of the conversion option carried in equity is not
changed in subsequent years. When the conversion
option is exercised, the balance of the convertible
bond equity reserve is transferred to share capital or
other appropriate reserve. When the conversion option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
remained in the convertible bond equity reserve is
transferred to accumulated profits/losses. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Issue costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible bond based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and
equity components when the instruments are first
recognised. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible bond are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

(m) Revenue recognition

Nature of goods or services

The Group engaged in the manufacture and sale of medium
coal, coke and by products, sales of electricity and heat and
transportation service.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(i)  a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(i) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct
if both of the following criteria are met:

(iy  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(i) the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Revenue recognition (continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

(b) the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sale of medium coal, coke and by-products are recognised
at a point of time at which the customer obtains the control
of the promised asset, which generally coincides with the
time when the goods are delivered to customers and the title
is passed.

Sale of electricity and heat are recognised at a point of time
when they are transferred to the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e U HmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Revenue recognition (continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

Service income of transportation services is recognised at
a point of time when the goods transferred are received by
customers.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using

the effective interest method. For financial assets measured

at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective

interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the

assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross

carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-

impaired financial assets.

(n)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
(“equity-

as consideration for equity instruments

settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised

in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of

that period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Share-based payments (continued)
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
(the The
consolidated financial statements are presented in

entity operates “functional currency”).
the currency of Hong Kong dollars, which is also the

Company'’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

profit or loss.

The results and financial position of all the group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency (the “foreign operations”)
are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
. Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the

closing rate at the end of the reporting period.

o Income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rate.

° All resulting exchange differences arising from
the above translation and exchange differences
arising from a monetary item that forms part of
the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation
are recognised as a separate component of

equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation, which
includes a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, a disposal involving the
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest is no longer equity-accounted
for, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to the foreign operation that is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.

On the partial disposal of the Group’s interest
in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation
which does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity
is re-attributed to the non-controlling interests in
that foreign operation and are not reclassified to
profit or loss.

On all other partial disposals, which includes
partial disposal of associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control, the proportionate share
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity
is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)
At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment; and

° investments in subsidiaries and associates

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a

revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)
(continued)
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash
generating unit (see note 4(e)), discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating

unit.

(q) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

(r) Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contribution to Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme in Hong Kong are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. The assets of the Scheme held separately from
those of the Group in an independent administrated fund.
Contributions to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes in the PRC, which are calculated on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs, are charged as
expense when employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

®

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner
in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability
is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®)

Income taxes (continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in measuring
deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted, the
deferred tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would apply on
sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than through

sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except

when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly

in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Related parties

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)y is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the group or to the
group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v)

(w)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income over the years
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to
the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the
grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to profit or
loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset

by equal annual instalments.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.
Individual material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying

disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(a) Deferred tax liabilities
At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax
liabilities of approximately HK$5,593,000 (2018:
approximately HK$11,253,000) were provided for, in
relation to the withholding tax on the distribution of
retained profits of the PRC subsidiary to be remitted out
of the PRC in foreseeable future. Further details are set
out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Judgements (continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines whether property, plant and
equipment are impaired or the impairment no longer
exists and this requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units to which these assets
are allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose suitable discount rates in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Any change in the business environment may lead
to the change in expected future cash flows. The
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as
at 31 December 2019 was HK$576,422,000 (2018:
HK$570,644,000). Further details are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Depreciation
The Group depreciates
their

commencing from the date the property, plant and

its property, plant and

equipment over estimated useful lives,
equipment are ready for their intended use. The
estimated useful life reflects the management’s
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of the property,
plant and equipment. The depreciation will be changed
when the useful life is expected to be different from the
estimate and would affect profit or loss for the period

in which such change of estimate takes place.
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e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Judgements (continued)

(e) Loss allowance for ECL
The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance
for financial assets at amortised cost including
trade receivables, amount due from non-controlling
shareholder and deposits and other receivables, by
using various inputs and assumptions including risk
of a default and expected loss rate. The estimation
involves high degree of uncertainty which is based
on the Group’s historical information, recoverable
amount of collateral, past collection history of debtors,
concentration risk of debtors, the Group’s actual loss
experience, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of the financial assets at amortised
cost. Details of the key assumption and inputs used
in estimating ECL are set out in note 40(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and

has the following reportable operating segments:

(a) the coke trading segment — purchases and sales of
coke and coal;

(b) the coal-related ancillary segment — washing of
raw coal into refined coal for sale and for further
processing, and sale of electricity and heat which are
generated as the by-products during the washing of
raw coal; and

(c) the coke production segment — processing of refined

coal into coke for sales, and sale of coke by-products
that are generated during coke production.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit
before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except
that interest income and sundry income, corporate and
administrative expenses, unallocated other operating
income, unallocated finance costs and income tax expense

are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, restricted
bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, interest in an associate and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed
on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude other borrowings, lease liabilities,
convertible bonds for corporate use, deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities
as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted at cost plus
a certain percentage of mark-up.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. RESEEBRE)
Segment revenue and results THEHBARERE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HLEFE
Coal-related Coke
Coke trading ancillary  Production Eliminations Total
Rz E
ERE MEDE EREE 8 Bt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TR THER
Segment revenue R LON
- external sale - HMNEE 2,540 168,505 1,434,311 = 1,605,356
- intersegment sale -HEHEE - 108,288 - (108,288) -
Other income Hb g A - 45,878 - - 45,878
Total @t 2,540 322,671 1,434,311 (108,288) 1,651,234
Segment results DPEE - 861 97,849 - 98,710
Interest income and sundry | 8 A Ko 2 T8 I A
income 8,809
Compensation income from & 5 & 478 {8 4 A
contract with customer 10,126
Interest income from other  E {th fE Uk Z Ay FI| 5
receivables WA 3,639
Gain on exercise the put 1T A H BB L&
option for the disposal of & RAIEZM
interest in an associate, Wa 38
net 1,054
Unallocated other operating 7 7 B2 £ ft &5 & I A
income 12,321
Share of results from an  JE/E—RI B & DA
associate E3 (8,982)
Corporate administrative A& & 1§
expenses (note) BREMZ) (88,018)
Unallocated finance costs 7 7 fit 81 % & (11,409)
Profit before tax BR 0 A 1 26,250
Income tax expense FEHAY (11,547)
Profit for the year AEERF 14,703

Note:

Unallocated corporate administrative expenses mainly

include corporate’s staff cost and Directors’ remuneration,

legal and professional fee, PRC local tax and depreciation

of unallocated property, plant and equipment
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

gEsEENE)
DEBARESE(E

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
Segment revenue and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (restated (note 43))

HE_Z2—\F+-_A=+—8BLt*F
[E(E 5 it43))

Coke Coal-related Coke
trading ancillary ~ Production  Eliminations Total
R AAE
ERED MBS HFREE i @Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT FAT FHET THAT FAT
(Restated)
(E71)
(Note 43)
(K i#43)
Segment revenue DERA
- external sale - BONEHE 35,884 91,119 1,351,046 - 1,478,049
- intersegment sale -HBEEEE - 189,753 - (189,753) -
Other income H i e A - 41,316 - - 41,316
Total @5 35,884 322,188 1,351,046 (189,753) 1,519,365
Segment results DEES 315 (232,904) 504,755 (854) 271,312
Interest income and | EBWA R 5 IE
sundry income A 3,637
Corporate administrative A7) E % £ H
expenses (Note) (H72) (103,301)
Share of results from an  fE{h — & B & A A
associate ZEE (286)
Unallocated other RKOBEAMEE
operating income A 7,497
Unallocated finance RAOMHEER
costs (2,200)
Profit before tax B 354 A1 A 176,659
Income tax expense FTis Bl X (29,951)
Profit for the year KEE & F 146,708

Note: Unallocated corporate administrative expenses mainly include

corporate’s staff cost and Directors’ remuneration,

legal

and professional fee, PRC local tax and depreciation of

unallocated property, plant and equipment.

The revenue of coal-ancillary segment includes revenue from
transportation service of HK$986,000 (2018: HK$9,042,000),
sales of electricity and heat of HK$75,119,000 (2018:
HK$71,508,000) and sales of by-products of HK$92,400,000

(2018: HK$10,569,000).

Wit ALOERAEEERAFZEHER
FAIMB T AR EEZFH - ZRER
HXEF - A E T AR R

SHEYFE BERREHTE -

ik BEK B D B AREES
Bk 7% Ug A986,000/ t(= & — N\
% :9,042,000/8 Jr) * #H & EFE K #H
W A75,119,000% T(=Z T — A F:
71,508,000/ JT) & 88 & Bl E M W
A92,400,000% (= & — /A F:
10,569,000/ JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. RESEEBRE)
Segment assets and liabilities REEEREGHE
At 31 December 2019 R=ZZEB—-NF+=B=+—H
Coal- Corporate
Coke related Coke and
trading ancillary Production unallocated Total
& A8 B NEIDN
ExE M8 o 5 EREE ROWMOHE HE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT FExT FET FET
Assets BE 2,851 358,889 1,038,714 660,634 2,061,088
Liabilities aE 1,135 493,775 572,425 399,124 1,466,459
At 31 December 2018 (restated (note 43)) RZE—N\F+—A=+—H(E?
(M1 i#43))
Coal- Corporate
Coke related Coke and
trading ancillary  Production unallocated Total
B nER
ERE Bt B8 > 28 BREE AKOBESHE Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET FAET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (E5)
(Note 43) (Note 43)
(K7 5%43) (K1 it43)
Assets BE 755 260,471 793,263 457,356 1,511,845
Liabilities Bf&E 4,302 402,208 352,505 190,615 949,630

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other

than certain plant and equipment, financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss, certain prepayments,

deposits and other receivables, restricted bank

deposits and cash and bank balances; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments

other than certain other payables and accruals, lease

liabilities, other borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax

liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e U HmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Coal-
related

6.

REQEEMN(2)
HittoEER
BEZZ-NF+ZA=1+—HILFE

Coke Corporate and

ancillary Production unallocated Total
& % 18 BE AT K
MEBDE HEREE KOS HE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FTHET FTHET FTHExT
Additions of property, RE %
plant and equipment [ & & &% 999 2,791 14,046 17,836
Depreciation e 2,777 12,148 2,429 17,354
Compensation income BFALMHHE
from contract with A
customer = = (10,126) (10,126)
Interest income from £ b FE U IR F Y
other receivables M EMWA = = (3,639) (3,639)
Gain on exercise the 771 3274 H# A
put option for the k=3 /N
disposal of interest in S A UL 25 -
an associate, net F R = = (1,054) (1,054)
Share of results from &G —FE B & AR
an associate K245 - - 8,982 8,982
Unallocated interest KOoMEMEE -
expenses on TR ES R
other borrowings, HEBRBEZNE
convertible bonds 3
and lease liabilities = = 11,409 11,409
(Reversal)/provision of & 5 f& W ik 3% 5
loss allowance of (=N SR
trade receivables, net  (¥&[E) /& -
F B8 (6,305) 5,924 = (381)
Provision of loss H b B I 5K S 18
allowance of other B OFE
receivables, net = = 1,235 1,235
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REMBBRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. RESFERE)
Other segment information (continued) HitaEEN (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (restated (note 43)) HE-_Z— ) \F+_A=1+—HLFE
(B3 (K :F43))
Coal-
related Coke  Corporate and
ancillary  Production unallocated Total
B % AR NSIDY
MBS SEREE RXABDE BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E5)
(Note 43)  (Note 43)
(K7 7#43)  (K77#43)
Additions of property, HRE®ME - BE
plant and equipment K& 10,612 29,644 7111 47,367
Depreciation e 6,605 29,765 5,916 42,286
Share of results from  fE{E—FE & QR
an associate B E - - (286) (286)
Fair value changes on &2 REFTA
financial assets at fair #H# 2 & &
value through profit or  BEZ AR E
loss o) - - (1,406) (1,406)
Interest expenses on  BEIR ZiE -
discount bills, other HMEER
borrowings and BB ESC
convertible bonds MBEHX - - 2,200 2,200
Provision/(reversal) of & 5 & U ik 3¢
loss allowance of EEERES
trade receivables, net (@) - ;F&8 3,799 (3,645) - 154
Provision/(reversal) of #1%¥ - BE R
impairment loss on HEEBRAE
items of property, EEERES
plant and equipment  (# @) 268,943 (367,996) - (99,053)
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REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

6.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical Information

(a)

(b)

Revenue from external customers

The Group’s revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities and capital expenditures are predominantly
attributable to a single geographical region, the PRC,
which is the Group’s principal place of business and
operations during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018. Therefore, no analysis by geographical
region is presented. The revenue information is based
on the locations of the customers.

6.

gEsEENE)
HWEZEH

(a

KEIEFFZ 2%

HE-_Z-—NFER_ZT—\F+
“AZt+—BHLFE AEEZ
WA -HAX 2% BELSA
& UAREARIB RIS R
BE—#E - BB (REEZE
BEBLEGEMS) - AL I
BERMWEDN - WAERTY
BRERFAEME S -

Non-current assets (b) EFEEE
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Hong Kong aBE 2,746 3,764
The PRC A B 573,676 566,880
576,422 570,644

The non-current asset information is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes interest in an
associate and financial instruments.

Information about major customers

Revenues from external customers individually
contributing 10% or more of the total revenue from the
Group are as follows:

EHERDEEERDIIREE
EfENEE S BTEER
—EBEATICEERESRT
/E\_o

ERFEEFZESH
REEE P 2 W AE R & B
REFBW A Z10%K A £ K
EDOENE

2019 2018
—E-AF —ZZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Customer A EFPA =3 327,365
Customer B =FB 279,356 190,857
Customer C ®PC = 184,444
Customer D EFD 455,622 —*
734,978 702,666

* These customers did not individually contribute 10% or

more of the total revenue from Group in 2019 or 2018.

* FEZFER-FE—JFaf —
F—)VF I 85 & Bt A %
[E B A B910% 86 A _F °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. Y A K H At U A R Uk 25
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, WAEFARELEM 2 FEREA
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, and the MBRRE B E R E S IR iR
value of services rendered during the year. An analysis of B2 EE - WAREMKA Rz
revenue and other income and gains are as follows: DT
2019 2018
—E-AF ZZ-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Revenue from contracts with customers within 7 78 B 7 5} & % BI| 551558
HKFRS 15 HEAZEFPAHKA
Transportation service ERR% 986 9,042
Sales of electricity and heat SHEE &AL 75,119 71,508
Sales of medium coal, coke and by-products 4 &/ E « £ix &2l E & 1,529,251 1,397,499
1,605,356 1,478,049
Other income and gains, net Hihg ARW R - F5
Compensation income from contract with EPAEHWA Z/EERA
customer 10,126 -
Interest income from bank deposits, calculated R 1T71E & 2 Fl B A - £ A
using effective interest method BERFEEGFHE 160 22
Interest income from other receivables oAb WOIR 32 F B A 3,639 -
Governments grant (Note a) BB e (W ita) 45,878 41,316
Loss arising from amendments to convertible ] # % & 5 1& 1F E 4 M & 18
bonds (185) -
Sundry income MBI A 8,834 3,615
68,452 44,953
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

7.  REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. WARHMUW AR (ZE)
(continued)
Note: B 57
(a)  Government grant have been received for supplying heat in (@) B 5tR A B EE Y B RT E B)
the PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies 2 o BMBEEHZSELZ KREMKK
relating to these grants. et AEI o
The revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 BERMGERELENFISREEBAN 2T
is based on fixed price and recognised at a point in time. PEARATIEEEEBERTELNE
The amount of revenue recognised for the year ended 31 EREREER - FYV2ENEESRE
December 2019 that was included in the contract liabilities at FH #9188,452,000/8 T (=& — N\ ¢
the beginning of the year is approximately HK$188,452,000 170,341,000 ) R=F— L F+=
(2018: HK$170,341,000) A=1T—HLEFE®ERBEA-
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BKEHR
An analysis of finance costs are as follows: MBBEBRITWT:
2019 2018

—E-NF —T)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET

Interest on discounted bills ALIR R & A B - 101
Interest expenses on other borrowings HEfEEMN B 9,638 -
Interest expenses on convertible bonds AR E ST B 1,123 2,099
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (Note) HEBBEZNERZ (ML) 648 -
11,409 2,200

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as at 1 January Wit AXEBERZ=ZF—NF—HA—H
2019 using the cumulative effect approach. Under this FHRG &L NEREE
approach, comparative information is not restated. B ERE165 - IRIFU T

W ARBEIEBKIEEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. KH¥mE
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ ANEEZBRBEAENOR, GEA)T
(crediting): ElIE=ER SE N
2019 2018
—E-hE ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
(Restated)
(E5)
(Note 43)
(W1 7#43)
Auditor’'s remuneration % AN B & 1,300 1,050
Cost of inventories FE KA 1,429,499 1,232,228
Depreciation e
- Owned -BE 17,354 42,286
- Right-of-use assets (Note ¢) -FREEE(Midc) 3,413 -
Operating lease payments in respect T REAMERE
leasehold interests in land and rented Hm K ERE
properties (Note c) RIA (K 7t c) - 4,484
Employee benefit expense (including EERHFAX
Director’s remuneration): (BEESEMS) -
- Wages and salaries -ITENM¥H= 42,108 71,957
- Pension scheme contributions - RIRAE T K
(Note a) (Hfita) 12,797 23,360
54,905 95,317
(Reversal)/provision of allowance of trade BRI ER(ER)
receivables, net (Note b) B FBMW L) (381) 154
Provision of loss allowance of prepayments, FBft 1B &5 18 s - F 5
net (Note b) (W itb) 1,235 -
Reversal of impairment loss on items of mE - BEKRZEIEBEBRE
property, plant and equipment [E5 18 % [ = (99,053)
Gain on exercise the put option for the T R4 B #E LA S Bk 2 & )
disposal of interest in an associate, net B mW s - JFE (ML)
(Note b) (1,054) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME BERRKEZ
equipment W &5 (2,023) -
Fair value changes on financial assets at fair X AREFAEBRZ SR EE
value through profit or loss (Note b) ZAREEB (i) - (1,406)
Share of result from interest in an associate [E/H— B4 AR EE
(Note b) (W itb) 8,982 286
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

10.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

DIRE

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no
forfeited contributions available to reduce its contributions to

the pension schemes in future years.

These balances are included in “Other operating income, net”

in the consolidated profit or loss.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
cumulative effect approach. After initial recognition of right-
of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is
required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets,
instead of the previous policy of recognising operating lease
payments in respect leasehold interests in land and rented
properties incurred under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the

comparative information is not restated.

CTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant

to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),

(c) and (f) of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

10.

R ATE R ()

g

(@

(®)

(c)

R-FE-NFR-F—NF+=H
=+—H  FEELEAHEAR
KK [Z IR (K18 T 5+ 2V (R 2 2 0%
Wtk o

BRI AGE R Z [ B EK
A EEIA -

REEHERFR ZE XL
BB B HMEERF169E - ER=
E-NF—A—ANLEREHE
BER FNEBEEERABAEZ
BHEEEZNE  HRAUERE
BEHERBEFRIREEHEE
HLZTHMREEYRHE #a E
BEEHENKZBE » RIFULTT
JE A AKEFEREH -

EEM:

RiE £ AR A
383(1)(a) * (b) *

EBDBIEDE
(o) B () & 2 8] (B

BEENDER) ROIFE2MWE AR

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of FEEEFHFHOT:
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Fees e 4,591 2,663
Other emoluments: HAan i < -
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind - ¥ &  EZB K EWEF 3,315 3,472
- Pension scheme contributions - ROKTE 7T &8I 4 5K 56 29
3,371 3,501
7,962 6,164
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10. EEM&(Z)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hE+=-A=+—H
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefit scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
2= RIRER
we REYEARN BN BEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET FET FHERT
Executive Directors: WITES:
Zhao Xu Guang B e 845 3,315 18 4,178
Li Qinghua (appointed FEE(RZE—NF
on 10 June 2019) NATREZME) 1,452 = 11 1,463
So Chiu Fung B T8 1,066 = 18 1,084
Wang Yijun (appointed EHEEFE(R_ZT—HF
on 10 July 2019) tA+HEEZT) 508 - 9 517
3,871 3,315 56 7,242
Non-executive Directors: JF#1TE F :
Wong Siu Hung, =
Patrick 180 - - 180
Huang Man Yem BEX 8 180 = = 180
360 - - 360
Independent non- W FEITESE -
executive Directors:
Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie R FEF 120 — — 120
To Wing Tim, Paddy I AOR 120 = = 120
Wang Wei Hsin T4 120 = = 120
360 - - 360
Total HE 4,591 3,315 56 7,962

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10. ESH2(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT-\HF+=ZA=+—H
Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme
Fees benefit in kind  contributions Total
e 28 RIKEMN
ks RENER AR Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET TET
Executive Directors: HITES:
Zhao Xu Guang fich b 845 3,315 18 4178
Wong Siu Hung, Patrick B
(re-designated as non-executive (R=ZZ-\FmANA
Director on 9 April 2018) AERBENTES) 212 157 5 374
So Chiu Fung BRERZZ-N\F
(appointed on 7 September 2018) NALREZME) 394 - 6 400
Li Baogi (appointed on ER(R=F-N\%¥
9 April 2018 and resigned on MANBEZER
7 September 2018) RZE-NENALRAET) 543 - - 543
1,994 3,472 29 5,495
Non-executive Directors: ERITES:
Wong Siu Hung, Patrick BOBR-ZE-NEF
(re-designated on 9 April 2018) mANBHEE) 131 - - 131
Huang Man Yem EXNE 180 - - 180
31 - - 311
Independent non-executive Directors: BAUFRITES:
Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie R 120 - - 120
To Wing Tim, Paddy AR 120 - - 120
Lau Ka Ho (resigned on Axgr(R_2-)\F
14 December 2018) +ZA+tHmEBEF) 114 - - 14
Wang Wei Hsin (appointed on TEHARZZ-N\EF
19 December 2018) +tZRATHhREZME) 4 - - 4
358 - - 358
Total Mgt 2,663 3,472 29 6,164

HEZT-—NEFk=ZT—\E+=A
=+—HIEFE HMEEENELF
ERNEFAHE MAEEHER
FREESIANEMB S ERSEM
AREE 7 ZE) B E -

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
emolument of any director was waived or agreed to waive
and no emolument was paid by the Group to any director
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

11.

12.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 1. EBESHEE

The five highest paid employees during the year included AFEEZhAEERFEERE-2X
three Directors (2018: four, including Li Baogi who was NAEH(ZE—N\F % - 8FF
appointed as executive Director on 9 April 2018 and ER(ER_T - \FUANBEZRF
resigned on 7 September 2018 and So Chiu Fung who was RBTEERR_ZE-N\FNALALA
appointed as executive Director on 7 September 2018), BHE)R&HREER=ZE—N\FNLA
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 10 above. +TtHEZTRHTES))  EFHMF
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two BER EXHFE10 c REEHTWE
(2018: one) highest paid employees, who are not a Director, (ZE-NF:—RB)FARAEEZ

are as follows: B EECHFMFEOT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & - 2B K B W& T 1,209 677
Pension scheme contributions RKAE A 5T 4 5K 27 1
1,236 688

Number of employees
EE®E

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E)N\F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 70 £1,000,00075 7T 2 1

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
emolument was paid by the Group to any of the above two
(2018: one) highest paid individual as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as there
were no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT

12.

HE2_Z—hhFrR_ZE—N\F+=A
=t+—BILFE  AEEHERTM
FmB(ZE-N\F:—B)&aH
ATEZRERIBEEREBMARSE
Bz Rk E

FrE8Hmx
HRBEBLEERTORT - NBE
—E-NAFERZE-NF+A=T
—BIEFEAEREENSHAEE
1 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12.
The income tax provision in respect of operations in the
PRC is calculated at the applicable tax rates of 25% on the
estimated assessable profits for the year based on existing

legislation, interpretations and practices.

FRi8 BB (&)

R B 2 B8 B R S BT
BRED - RERER AR EN
i 8 3B 5% F $ AR 25% 2 1 I Bt
o

2019 2018
—E-hAF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
Current — Hong Kong BNER - &/ = -
Current — The PRC BER - 17,564 5,440
Charge for the year REEZH

Over provision in prior years BAFTEHBERE (385) -
17,179 5,440

Deferred tax (credit)/charge for the year FRIELHE(HKR),/
=3 (5,632) 24,511
Total tax expenses for the year AEEHAFERX 11,547 29,951
For the year ended 31 December 2018, included in RZE-NF+ZA=+—HLHF
deferred tax charge was approximately HK$11,886,000 E-RER IEE AL A11,886,000
(equivalent to RMB10,000,000) in relation to provision 7 7T (F8 & W A R #10,000,0007T)

for 10% withholding tax of approximately HK$5,063,000
(equivalent to RMB4,500,000) on dividend attributable to
the Group of approximately HK$50,634,000 (equivalent to
RMB45,000,000) out of dividend declared by GRG Huscoke
(Shanxi) LTD of approximately HK$56,260,000 (equivalent to
RMB50,000,000).

ERLUASENEZERERAAE
iR B9 B B 4956,260,00058 JT (16 5 7
A R #50,000,00070) & 4 &£ E &
1l i% B 4950,634,000/8 7T (S R A
K ¥45,000,0007T) #310% T8 0 £ #
1% #75,063,000% 7T (HF KX AR
4,500,0007T) fH 8 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. FEHiEXE)
A reconciliation of tax applicable to profit before tax at the b /N DS N Sl = NS A
statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company EREERZEEMEGTE 2 RBAE T
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax BACHEERERS (ER)ZH
expense/(credit) are as follows: IS N
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z-—NF+-A=+—-HLHF
E
Hong Kong The PRC Total
BB H Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FTEx
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(ER)/
5% 7 (34,714) 60,964 26,250
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEFTEZ
T 1E (5,728) 15,241 9,513
Tax effect of expenses not A 2
deductible for tax purposes Mg 2 6,334 13,792 20,126
Tax effect of income not subject to HERFAIW A Z
tax purposes iR (2,088) (11,469) (13,557)
Tax effect of share of result of an  FE(RE & N A ¥ &
associate ¥ 1,482 - 1,482
Over-provision in prior year TFEEBERE - (385) (385)
Withholding tax on undistributable & B[ &8 2 &
profits of the PRC subsidiary DA DK 5= ) 2
B = (5,632) (5,632)
Tax expense 750 T8 A 32 - 11,547 11,547

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

12.

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. FiIBHAXE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHE-_Z—-N\F+-A=+—HIEHF
53
Hong Kong The PRC Total
55 H e HEt
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FAET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (E5)
(note 43) (note 43)
(H13£43) (H1i#43)
(Loss)/profit for the year RNEE (BB,
il (29,302) 205,961 176,659
Tax at the statutory tax rate WEEMEFHEZ
18 (4,835) 51,490 46,655
Expenses not deductible for tax ENCIE kvl -3 6,053 5,304 11,357
Income not subject to tax BARB 2 A (1,371) (26,780) (28,151)
Tax effect of share of result of an  FE/E — B & A A
associate XENBBEE 47 - 47
Tax losses utilised from previous BT IE
periods &5 18 - (11,843) (11,843)
Withholding tax on undistributable /8 B} /& A &)
profits of the PRC subsidiary AR S F) 2
TE N - 11,886 11,886
Tax (credit)/expense MEER),
B X (106) 30,057 29,951
EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BREN

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$9,761,000, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 2,778,693,956 in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the calculation
of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$129,118,000 (Restated) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 2,608,007,725.

BREABFNSBEHREBEARRE
BAEIEARFEREF 9,761,000 7T ¢
UWEEBEEZFTE-—ALF+A=+—
HIEFEE#HT T AR ME T
2,778,693,956 % 5T & °

HE_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HLF
B BREARFSEIREAAR
B AN EIERFEE 3@ H129,118,000%
T (EY) RFREETEBRMEF
9 #2,608,007, 7250 51 & -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13.
The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is based on the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company,
adjusted to reflect the interest and profit arising from
amendment to the convertible bonds. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used
in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

sRERNZ)
HEZZT-—NFkZZT—N\F+=A
T+ —HALEFESRESRTNTEAR
RAEBAEBERFESFEHE - I
ERABRUARMEBITIRRESME
EZMBERGER o EMFEFSRER
BT - ARFTE L @A mE T
RENBETEBREE  UEREH
WRARBABETCHRELBRA
TRRFEEERERTZET®ERM
Y E o

2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(E7)
(Note 43)
(Bt 5£43)
Earnings vl
Profit attributable to owners of the TEERERET
Company used in the basic earnings RRAZARA
per share calculation wAE AR RAH 9,761 129,118
Add: Interest expense on convertible m-amRESFm
bonds BB X 1,123 2,099
Profit attributable to owners of the ESREERMNEA
Company used in the diluted earnings ZARRNEHA ANEN
per share calculation s ) 10,884 131,217

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13. BR(ER) BRE)

Number of shares

BRHEA
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Shares: B
Weighted average number of ordinary AEERERREF
shares in issue during the year used KAZFABET
in the basic earnings per share T AR A Y E
calculation 2,778,693,956 2,608,007,725
Effect of dilution — weighted average ey ® — TR
number of ordinary shares: T8
Convertible bonds (Note) AR E 7 (A i) 108,026,135 144,256,976
Weighted average number of ordinary FrTEEREERFNEA
shares used in the diluted earnings per 2% A% hn#E F 19 &
share calculation 2,886,720,091 2,752,264,701

Note: Share options were not considered in the effect of dilution B a7 -
as it had no diluting effect on the basic earnings per share
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018 and were ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings

per share.

HARERZ_F—NFF+ A=+
—AR—FE-NESZHA=+—
HiEFE - 8B K EF 1 44
HEE  LERAETHERA
BEZE WEFAEIRBER
FlbF KRG ZE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. YME- -BERRE
Other
properties
leased for own Furniture
Land and use carried Leasehold Furnaces and  Plantand  Computer and Motor ~ Construction
building atcost improvement infrastructure machinery equipment  fixtures  vehicles  in progress Total
RAATIR
EREE BRR
THhREF HbyE  BENAR  KHERER BEREE  BERE %E RE ERIR @it
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
T FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FET T T FEL
Cost RAE
At 1 January 2018 WZZ-\§—-F-H 369,372 - 1,653 485,726 568,038 73,595 360 47,879 - 1,546,623
Additions RE - - - 2,458 7677 1,007 15 4,215 31,995 47,367
Exchange realignment EHf#% (17,365) - - (22,963) (7.111) (3,513) - (2284 (1706) (74,942
At 31 December 2018 R-F-\§+-A=+-H 352,007 - 1,653 465,221 548,604 71,089 375 49,810 30,289 1,519,048
Impact on initial application of ~ M EAEEH K REEE
HKFRS 16 (note 2(a) All)) 165 2T & (Wi 26)A0) - 12,801 - - - - - - - 12,801
At 1 January 2019 352,007 12,801 1,658 465,221 548,604 71,089 375 49,810 30,289 1,531,849
Additions - - - - 4,644 - 33 433 12,726 17,836
Disposal - - - - - - - (7,002) - (7,002)
Exchange realignment (2,065) (58) - (2,729) (3,250) (#17) - (225) (250) (8,994)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-R=+-H 349,942 12,743 1,653 462,492 549,998 70,672 408 43,016 42,785 1,533,689
Accumulated depreciation BifHE
At 1 January 2018 RZF-N\§-R-H 120,613 - 451 363,772 452,525 71,761 58 42,289 - 1051469
Provided for the year FNEE 9,774 - 553 19,464 9,837 294 74 2,290 - 42,286
Provision/(reversal) of impairment Al {E &5 B & &/ (B E)
loss 123,606 - - (255,727) 20918 (2,587) 1 243 5493 (99,053)
Exchange realignment EXAE (12,787) - - (4,493) (23,391) (3,252) (1) (2,081) (293)  (46,298)
At 31 December 2018 and RZB-NEtZAZt-AR
at 1 January 2019 ZZ-AF-A-R 241,206 - 1,004 123,016 468,889 66,216 132 42,741 5,200 948,404
Depreciation charge for the year FRFTEXH 4,204 3413 552 10,293 1,021 173 78 1033 - 20,767
Disposal e - - - - - - - (6.299) - (6,293)
Exchange realignment Effg (1,440) 6) - (790) (2754) (386) - (204) (31) (5,611)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF+-F=1+-8 243,970 3,407 1,656 132,519 467,156 66,003 210 37277 5,169 957,267
Net carrying amounts REFE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-R=+-H 105,972 9,336 97 329,973 82,842 4,669 198 5,739 37,596 576,422
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\§+ZA=t-8 110,801 - 649 342,205 79,715 4873 243 7,069 25,089 570,644
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B &~ % —

14.

NF+ZA=+—HIEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Impairment test on property, plant and equipment
At 31 December 2019, the Group assessed there is
no indication that impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for property, plant and equipment no long
exist or have decreased. Accordingly, no reversal of
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment is
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2019.

For the purpose of impairment testing, property, plant
and equipment have been allocated to two cash-
generating units, being the coal-related ancillary

segment and coke production segment. The carrying

14.

ME- - BERR

(@)

RE (&)

ME - -BERREBEZEENR
RZZE—-NF+_HA=+—H"
AEEFERETRBERLY
X BWFEREREREEHRE R
RZBEBEBRTBFERLD

B e Bt - BE-T-NAEFT
“AZtRZEEAEER
WE - BERREZREERE
B -

RBEBARMS WE - BE
HBEEIEEMERSELE
B B RAAREM B 9 E R
EREEDE RZZT—N\&F

amounts of property, plant and equipment as at 31 +ZA=+—H8 2BEEHE
December 2018 allocated to these units are as follows: BU2ME - BEREHE 2K
HEEMT:

2018
— N\
HK$'000
FHET
Coal-related ancillary segment HIxABEHE D 81,449
Coke production segment E)‘i? | 432,926
Unallocated Ko H 56,269
570,644

Coal-related ancillary cash-generating unit BREBENEREEELE W

At 31 December 2018,
coal-related ancillary cash-generating unit was determined

the recoverable amount of the

based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a 5-year
period which is assessed and approved by senior
management with reference to the physical conditions of
property, plant and equipment at the current status and
the expected obsolescence and retirement based on prior
year experience. The pre-tax discount rate to the cash flow

projections was 25.2%.

RZE—NF+ZA=+—8 ' &K
HEMBReEESEN 2 KRESE
ERBEAEAFSESE  KARE
RREREBT2ENE  BERKE
BRiZEBRRRAARBREBEFEL
5% TE AT 2 PR B KR BE 18 BT AT ME I At
ERESFHR UV BEEARER
RensElflmEE RenEHE
Al 2 B AT BE 3R K /25.2% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(a) Impairment test on property, plant and equipment
(continued)
Coal-related ancillary cash-generating unit (continued)
Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the coal-related ancillary cash-generating unit as at
31 December 2018. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow

projections to undertake impairment testing:

Budgeted manufacturing capacity utilisation rate — The rate is
determined on the basis of the average actual utilisation rate
achieved in prior years, decreased gradually for tightening
of production safety and environmental protection measures.

Discount rate — The discount rate used reflects specific risks

relating to the coal-related ancillary cash-generating unit.

Raw materials purchase costs, production costs and product
selling price inflation — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to costs and price inflation is the forecasted
inflation indices of the budget year.

Coke production cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the coke production cash-
generating unit as at 31 December 2018 was determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a 5-year
period which is assessed and approved by senior
management with reference to the physical conditions of
property, plant and equipment at the current status and
the expected obsolescence and retirement based on prior
year experience. The pre-tax discount rate to the cash flow

projections was 27.6%.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH

14.

ME - BERREE)
(@ ME -BRERREZHREHNR
(%)
BRI B R 2 EL Em(E)
RZZF-N\F+_A=1t—H KK
HEMBReELEM 2EREE
BNZAOHEBAIERR - U THAE
BEEETREANARRERERE
BRAMEZEBERMRK:

BEEREAR-EBETFEENZ
FHEREREXRELEMEE 2T
Z-DRABERELEER 2 RIRER
EERMELRD -

BRIR R - Pt Az BAER R R AR A
AMEReELEMZBERR

EMBRERAN FERARERE
ERR-BESEEZRARERE
REEMERZEE  NEEFEZ
ERE AR B -

ERLEERTELEN
R-ZZE—NFE+-A=+—H &Er
SERGELBEMZIJKROSEDR
BEAEENERFE  KAGREE
EB2EZWE BEKRBEIZER
AR A R AR 5B 1 F E A8 B 2 T8 A
BRE KRB FTET b R BLE R ESF
HEvUBEE RS REEAM
BT ReRsBAZHABERA
27.6% °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Impairment test on property, plant and equipment
(continued)

Coke production cash-generating unit (continued)

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation

of the coke production cash-generating unit as at 31

December 2018. The following describes each key

assumption on which management has based its cash flow

projections to undertake impairment testing:

Budgeted manufacturing capacity utilisation rate — The rate
is determined on the basis of the average actual utilisation
rate achieved in prior years, increased gradually for expected
revival and improvement in market.

Discount rate — The discount rate used reflects specific risks
relating to the coke production cash-generating unit.

Raw materials purchase costs, production costs and product
selling price inflation — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to costs and price inflation is the forecasted
inflation indices of the budget year.

In light of the favourable market circumstances of coke
production, the coke production segment recorded operating
profits during the years ended 31 December 2018. The
recoverable amount of the coke production segment as at
31 December 2018 was approximately HK$432,926,000.

On the contrary, the coal-related ancillary segment recorded
operating losses during the year ended 31 December 2018
as a result of continuous tightening of the production safety
and environmental protection measures on the coal-related
ancillary business by the relevant governmental body in the
PRC which significantly diminished the Group’s revenue from
coal-related ancillary segment. The recoverable amount of
the coal-related ancillary segment as at 31 December 2018
was approximately HK$81,449,000.

Based on the results from the discounted cash flows, the
Directors considered a reversal of impairment loss on items
of property, plant and equipment of HK$367,996,000 in
the coke production segment and additional impairment of
HK$268,943,000 in the coal-related ancillary segment were
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2018.

14.
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EREEREEL EM(E)
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HEEHKAEIEEEK - U TEMER
BETHREAASRERERER
RFE 2 BB EMER

FEEEREAE - RBTEFEER
ZFHBEREREAEEMEE 2
Ko DRBEHMSERRERME S
KB e

BRI - rEM 2 MR X RRE &
REERSELABUZBERR -

RMERBRA  EEKRARERE
F@Hﬁ BESEEXRARERAE

IREEMERZERE  NHBEEFEZ
TEORI 5B AR 5 B

EREREETAEN #HEZZT
—NFILFE EREEDHEHEL
E/ﬁﬁﬂ °© ‘<_’§*)\$+_ﬂ:+*
H fREESDEZITREZEOA
432,926,000/8 TC °

Bk #E2=F—N\F+=-A=+—
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BISEEEE  AEMARREAER
REFXRBEAWBS B ZHA - Hix
HEMNBYER=_ZE—\F+=A=
+—H 2z AU B & %84 A£81,449,000
BT °

BIEFRRREREZER AREE
ERABEREENBEZVE BEXK
% 5578 B R 1B I8 18 8 [21367,996,000
B R EKBEWNE D EEINLE
268,943,000 LIV RNEE=T —\F

+-A=+—HIFEREBZHER -
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REMBBRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. ME- -BERREE)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FHHEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use RIEMEERENE D 2 E AR
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: BEZIRABEI>NOT:
Other
properties
leased for own
Land and use carried
building at cost Total
AT 1R 1F
BRAMEER
THREF Hftt4p % Bt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(B #t) (B #t) (B #t)
At 1 January 2019 —E-NF-A—H 9,824 2,977 12,801
Additions NE - -
Amortisation fiigis (861) (2,552) (3,413)
Exchange realignment ERACE: (52) - (52)
At 31 December 2019 —E-NF
+=ZA=+—-A 8,911 425 9,336

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its land and office premise through
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 2 to 10 years. None of the leases
includes an option to renew and variable lease

payments.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT

AEBZEBEOBZCESS
HibMEERE LR MB DG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

15. GOODWILL 15. HE
HK$'000
FAT
Cost: PN EE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, RZE—N\FE—H—H"
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 —E-NF+ZHA=+—8"
—E-NF-A—HK
—E-NF+ZRA=t—H 2,269,645
Accumulated impairment: 25 RE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, RZTE-N\F—H—8"
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 —E2-N\F+=ZHA=+—H"
—E-NEF—-A—HBEK
—E-hF+ZHA=1+—H (2,269,645)
Net carrying amount: R E A
At 31 December 2019 and 2018 RZE-NFK
—E-NF+-_A=+—H -
16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 16. M—RBE AT 2%
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(E5)
(Note 43)
(Kt it43)
Share of net assets of an associate [E{h— B E AR EEFE - 67,018
Goodwill B = 12,772
- 79,790
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

16.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
Details of the associate at the end of the report period are
as follows:

Principal
Place of place of
Name of associate incorporation business
BERNRERE M E FELERME

R—RIB S QR 2 s ()
RBEEAR B EARFEMT

Proportion of value
of registered capital

indirectly held by the Principal
Company activities
AN 7 8 $E P R R
PR 2 B {8 P 4k Ee ) FTEXH
2019 2018
—E-hE —T)\F

EDB Holding Limited
("EDB")

EDB Holding Limited
(TEDBJ)

Cayman lIslands The PRC

HEHS HhE

The Group had the power to appoint two out of nine directors
of EDB in accordance with the Articles of Association of
EDB, therefore the Group is deemed to have significant
influence over EDB.

In July 2018, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Purchaser Subsidiary”) entered into sales
and purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with an independent
third party (the “Vendor”) in which the Purchaser Subsidiary
agreed to buy 10% of the Enlarged Issued Shares (defined
below) of EDB, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with principal subsidiaries engaged in provision
of software services in the PRC, at consideration of
approximately HK$33,756,000 (the “SPA Consideration”)
by allotment of 129,831,263 ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Consideration Shares”) to the Vendor at the market
price of HK$0.26 each (the “Acquisition”).

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH

= 20.5% Software service
provider

B BR 75

RNEEAEBRIZEDBA K =240 A
REEDBAEBESZFTZME » Bt
REBWRSHEDBATHEATE
5 o

RZZE—N\F+LH AR —HEE

2EMBRAR(ERHBLR])E—
2BUE=T(ERDILEEHZ

(BEEWHZE]) EFEHTHNBEARR
EMBEEDB (—HENH2HF MK
VZRRHETEMNBARRHE
ERETERSE) W10%ZEBAD

BIRM(EERTIX) REAY
33,756,000/ c((E&EHENRE]D -

# BB MEFR0.26ETTHE 7 A
££129,831,263 AN A EE Ak ([ E
B D&EM(WEEED -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

16.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

In July 2018, the Purchaser Subsidiary entered into share
subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”)
with EDB, its major shareholder and the ultimate
beneficiary of EDB to subscribe for 13,556,527 ordinary
shares of EDB, representing 10.5% of issued shares of
EDB (the “Enlarged Issued Shares”) at consideration
of RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$68,048,000) (the “Subscription”). The details of
the Acquisition and Subscription were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 20 July 2018.

Under the SPA and Subscription Agreement, the Vendor
and EDB will be obliged to compensate to the Purchaser
Subsidiary when the guaranteed profit of EDB and
its subsidiaries (‘EDB Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2018 (“EDB Contingent Consideration”),
subject to audit of the consolidated financial statements of
EDB Group prepared in accordance with HKFRSs cannot be
achieved. Pursuant to the terms of the SPA and Subscription
Agreement, EDB has irrevocably and unconditionally
guaranteed the Purchaser Subsidiary that the audited
consolidated net profit excluded the non-recurring profit or
loss of EDB Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2018 shall be at least RMB25,000,000. In the event that the
audited consolidated result is less than the guaranteed profit
(the “Shortfall”), EDB shall return the premium portion to
Purchaser Subsidiary in cash. The premium portion shall be
calculated as follows: (SPA Consideration + Subscription) x
Shortfall/RMB25,000,000.

16.

R—EBEATZ2EES (E)
RZFE-NFLtH BEHTHBRAE

EXrZRFEDBMEDBY & & ¥ &
Aﬂﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁw ([REWHZED
R B EDB 213,556,527/% % &
" {EEDBE #E TR H 210.5%(%‘%
?Ejzaﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁn CTREABARE
60,000,0007T (18 & 7 4968,048,000
BNRESE]) - WESERAE
FEZHABRARARIBHAE=ZZT—N
FLtAZTHZRAGHESR -

BEEEHERRAEBGE BAIR
EDB 578 REDB & H Kt & A 7] (fEDB
£E@BE=-T—\F+=_A=+—
BIEFEZRERH (ZEDBEEIR
BEEVBEHREENREZZRAY
BRERZBZIMEAR) ReeERRHY
B 75 i 8 A A 4 8 ([EDB R A AX

B -REBEEHZLRBEWHZ
iR 5% - EDBE A AT B[] K B {6k 1 10 1)

BB ARRE EDBEEREZE
—ZEZ-\F+ZA=+—BHLTHKF
EHEBEZEEHEFN(TRIEELE
Mig %) fE B E D A R %25,000,000
Lo MG BIZBEEBE L NREFRF
([ER%8)) - RIEDBE LAIR & = 504
BIDRETFEHMBRR o 5= EE
DHFEFENT  (BEEHANRES
REEEIE) XEEE A R25,000,000
5T o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

16.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Besides, there is protective clause in which the Purchaser
Subsidiary can request the Vendor and the major
shareholder of EDB together with its ultimate shareholder
to repurchase partial or all the sale or subscribed shares
The

Consideration Shares are pledged to the Company until

when certain conditions occur (“EDB Put Option”).

all the post-acquisition obligations of the SPA and the
Subscription Agreement are satisfied. Details have been
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 20 July
2018. Pursuant to the terms of the SPA and Subscription
EDB has

guaranteed the Purchaser Subsidiary that the sum of audited

Agreement, irrevocable and unconditionally
consolidated net profit excluding non-recurring profit or loss
of EDB Group for the financial years ended 31 December
2017 and 2018 are larger than RMB30,000,000; and the
audited consolidated net profit excluding non-recurring
profit or loss of EDB Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2019 is larger than RMB20,000,000. In the event
that the certain conditions is occur, Purchaser Subsidiary can
exercise the Put Option within 3 years after the completion of
the acquisition and the SPA Consideration and Subscription

will be returned to Purchaser Subsidiary.

The Acquisition and the Subscription were completed on 30
November 2018 when the Consideration Shares have been
issued to the Vendor and the sale shares and subscribed
shares of EDB have been transferred and issued to the
Purchaser Subsidiary. As the Group is deemed to have
significant influence on EDB, EDB is considered as an

associate of the Group.

As at 31 2018, the Group has settled
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$23,040,000)
in accordance with the terms of the Subscription Agreement.
The outstanding consideration of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent
to other payables approximately HK$45,008,000) was

December

recognised as other payables to an associate (Note 24).

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH

16.
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16.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

EDB Contingent Consideration is classified as financial
asset and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
At the acquisition date, the fair value of EDB Contingent
Consideration arrangement has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out by an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group. The fair
value of EDB Contingent Consideration on the acquisition
date was approximately HK$8,406,000. At 31 December
2018, the fair value of EDB Contingent Consideration to be
HK$10,532,000 (Note 17).

EDB Put Option is classified as financial asset and measured
at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value of the
EDB Put option arrangement has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out by an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group. The fair
value of EDB Put Option on the acquisition date was
approximately HK$13,322,000. At 31 December 2018, the
fair value of EDB Put Option to be HK$12,209,000 (Note 17).

According to HKAS 28, the Group should account for its
interest in the associate, EDB, using the equity method.
In 2019, EDB has completed the audit of its consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, as stipulated in the
SPA and the Subscription Agreement. The management

obtain reliable audited financial information of EDB for
accounting for the Group’s interest in EDB, using the equity
method, as at 31 December 2018. Accordingly, prior year
adjustments have been made and certain comparative
amounts as at the year ended 31 December 2018 have
been restated to reflect the recognition of the interest in an
associate and financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (Note 43).

16.

F‘\_Fﬁ zk**/'\jz*ga-&/gg—?d

EDBRAREBHE S B ASHMEE * I
LARBEEEEEHAAEHIE
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16.

NF+ZA=+—BHILFE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
27 June 2019, based on the audited consolidated financial
statements of EDB, the aggregate audited consolidated
after-tax net profits of EDB attributable to its shareholders for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and the year ended 31
December 2018 had not been reached. As such, on 27 June
2019, the Group issued written notifications to the vendor
and guarantor to exercise EDB Put Option under the sale
and purchase agreement and the subscription agreement
respectively. EDB ceased to be an associate of the Group
with effect from 27 June 2019, the date of the notifications.

After executing the EDB Put Option on 27 June 2019, EDB,
the Vendor and the Purchaser Subsidiary entered into a
settlement agreement (the “EDB Settlement Agreement”)
on 6 September 2019,
would return the EDB shares to the Vendor and get back
the Consideration Shares and the Subscription as well as
the derecognition of the EDB Contingent Consideration.
After that, EDB, the Vendor and the Purchaser Subsidiary
would not have any further obligations and rights as stated
in SPA and the Subscription Agreement,
derecognition of the EDB Contingent Consideration.

in which the Purchaser Subsidiary

as well as the

As a result, a gain on disposal of an associate of
HK$23,795,000 was recognised. Loss from execution of
EDB Put Option and derecognition of EDB Contingent
Consideration of HK$10,532,000 and HK$12,209,000 were
recognised respectively during the financial year ended 31

December 2019.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

16.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

16. R—EBEQT 2= (F)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group REBEE-FT-NF+=-_A=+—H1t
exercised the EDB Put Option, derecognised the EDB FE  AEETEEDBRIGHIRE - &

Contingent Consideration and a net gain on disposal of an

associate of HK$1,054,000 was computed as follows:

I FEREDBR AR BM & — M2

N A HY Uk 28 % 581,054,000 JT T 5t

HEWT
HK$’000
FHET
Interest in an associate as at 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—HA—H
N /NI 79,790
Share of results from an associate for the year HE-_T-—NF+=ZA=1+—H
ended 31 December 2019 IFFERE—EBERFZ
EY (8,982)
Interest in an associate as at 27 June 2019 RZFE—NFARAAZ+EH
A EA/NET I X 70,808
Less: return of Subscription B RIER (67,338)
Less: return of Consideration Shares B RERDED (27,265)
(23,795)
Gain on disposal of an associate HEBE QAR 2w S 23,795
Exercise the EDB Put option 71{EEDB R H B (10,532)
Derecognise the EDB contingent consideration 4| T REDBEL AR (E (12,209)
Gain on exercise the put option for the disposal of 1718 R A HAfE LA B E ML A F)
interest in an associate, net (Note 9) oW FREMWA) 1,054
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 16. R—HEBEQXT2ER(F)
The aggregate amounts relating to EDB, which is considered ERAREBGENBRKR 2B H
as a material associate of the Group, that have been included EDB (# & AAEE 2 EEHENA])
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements as extracted S (B EBEEDBI B K)
from relating financial statements of the EDB are set out Ed| BN
below:
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FHET
Assets and liabilities EERBRE
Current assets BN A E 63,016
Non-current assets FEREEE 375,035
Current liabilities MEBAR (111,135)
Non-current liabilities FEMEEE -
Net assets BEFR 326,916
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in an associate: AN B — & Qa2
T % 2 H R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBEEBELE 20.5%
Group’s share of net assets of an associate AEEEL—BBEQRZ
BEFE 67,018
Goodwill on acquisition WHE R R 12,772
Carrying amount of the investment KEZIREE 79,790
Other disclosures HiEEEIE
For the period from date of acquisition to BElREERET_A=1T—H
31 December 1EHA R
Revenue A 19,567
Loss and total comprehensive income EE R EE W B (1,395)
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REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17. BAREFABREZEREE
PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
—E-NEF ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
(Restated)
(E7%))
(Note 43)
(K7 7%43)
Private club debenture FLAEFES
- fair value measured at quoted price - ER TS RME
in active market AEZANE 1,508 1,508
EDB Contingent Consideration (note 16) EDBEKRRAB (f7:£16)
— at fair value i /N1 - 10,532
Derivative financial instruments (note 16) #7144 &t T & (f1:#16)
- unlisted EDB Put Option - JE L TEDBRA HiE = 12,209
1,508 24,249

Detailed information in relation to the fair value measurement
of the items above are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

tHRBEBZAREFERMIFHAE

KB P FE39 ©

18. INVENTORIES 18. &E
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FHET
Raw materials R # 12,162 44,439
Work in progress £ & 27,265 35,691
Finished goods 2K fh 4,032 5,247
43,459 85,377

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#

193



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. ESEIIRER
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Trade receivables: H 5 M URIR 3K -

- third parties -%=5 320,159 159,262
- related companies - BiERT 142,660 86,683

- non-controlling shareholder of - — KB AR
a subsidiary FEFE R AR R 233,149 170,076
695,968 416,021
Bills receivable B E & — 3,938
Less: loss allowance W RS (52,187) (52,876)
643,781 367,083

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their

fair values.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (net of loss
allowance) by invoice date at the end of the reporting period

EZREIRR ZIREEEEQER

o

\
/

D

RBEMR REZAHR2N2ES
JE U R SR (0 B B 1R BB 4) 2 IR e D AT

is as follows: N
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT
Within 3 months =@mARA 251,163 171,992
3 to 4 months —Z= M@ A 55,158 -
Over 4 months 8 38 Y {E A 337,460 195,091
643,781 367,083

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and
loss allowance for trade receivables are set out in note 40(b)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %=~ %

—“NEF+-A=+—HIEFE

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. FENFIE - BE R EMEWKRIKRXR
RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
—E-NEF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other receivables due from the non- JE W — B B A
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary FE 1= Hﬁﬂx%Zﬁm
& 5 i SR 248,377 273,368
Prepayments and other receivables due [ERFE R a2 FE T
from related companies SRIA Ko H b fE IR 51 100,533 11,464
Prepayments, deposits and other FEUW E fh A+ 2 B
receivables due from other parties WIE - e REM
(Note) & W R R (AT 72) 434,819 93,502
Less: loss allowance B 1R B (13,688) (12,526)
770,041 365,808
Note: The balance included prepayments to suppliers of raw Wit e BRI E R AR
materials for the coal-related ancillary and the coke EERERBITRIMEER B
production businesses which are unsecured, non-interest- 308 - TELA - TERE I
bearing and are to be settled with future purchases. KAKBEZANT -
The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables e Kk H A pEROR R 2R EE R A
approximate their fair values. NAEEE -
21. AMOUNT DUE FROM THE NON-CONTROLLING 2. BWKMBAREERRERANE

SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Current Bl HA
Trade receivables B 5 EWIR (T 219)
(note 19) (Notes a and c) (B atalkc) 233,149 170,076
Other receivables H b 8 WO SR (B 52 20)
(note 20) (Notes b and c) (Hfatbkc) 248,377 273,368
481,526 443,444
The carrying amounts of the above balances approximate AR ZIREEREE QR ADERE ©

their fair values.
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21.

AMOUNT DUE FROM THE NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Note:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The balances are trade in nature, non-interest-bearing and
have a credit term of 120 days (2018: 120 days), which are
similar to those granted to major trading customers of the
Group.

The balances are advances to the non-controlling
shareholder, which are non-interest-bearing and repayable on
demand.

On 31 December 2018, the GRG Huscoke (Shanxi) LTD [l]7G
S EMEZEEE ARG, an indirect 90%-owned subsidiary of
the Company (‘JV Subsidiary”) entered into a debt transfer
agreement with Xiaoyi Jinyan Electricity Coke Chemical
Company Limited* ZZ& & & &k THRL A (Jinyan
Electricity’), Xiaoyi ILNG Natural Gas Production Company
Limited* Z & T & B & FAN AR EE R 2 E] (“Xiaoyi ILNG”)
and Shanxi Jinyan Energy Technology Company Limited* |1/
iz HEE )R G R\ E] (“Energy Technology’) (the “‘Debt
Assignee”), and Mr. Wen Kezhong* & 72 &5 4, pursuant
to which the JV Subsidiary, the Jinyan Electricity and Debt
Assignee agreed to assign the trade and other receivables
from the Jinyan Electricity of approximately RMB365,826,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$411,627,000) together with
aggregate amounts due from its affiliates of approximately
RMB36,477,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$41,044,000)
to the Debt Assignee (together the ‘“Assigned Debt’) (the
“Debt Assignment’).

Further details of the Debt Assignment are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 3 January 2019. The Debt
Assignment is only pursuable subject to the fulfilment of
certain conditions including the approval from the Stock
Exchange and the approval of shareholders of the Company
at a special general meeting (“SGM”). According to the Debt
Assignment, the Assigned Debt is interest-bearing at 5% p.a.
and the Debt Assignee shall repay the Assigned Debt within
1 year from the date of the Debt Assignment together with
accrued interest. A conversion right is also granted to the JV
Subsidiary which can partially or fully convert the Assigned
Debt to not more than 12% of the enlarged registered capital
of the Debt Assignee by subscription of new registered
capital or transfer of existing registered capital held by Xiaoyi
ILNG within 1 year from the date of the Debt Assignment.
The Assigned Debt is secured by 12% registered capital of
the Debt Assignee held by Xiaoyi ILNG and the personal
guarantee from Mr. Wen Kezhong* )8 72 & 7t 4.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT

21.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

21.

AMOUNT DUE FROM THE NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Note: (continued)

(c)

(continued)

For the outstanding balances with the affiliates of the
non-controlling shareholder at 31 December 2019, please
refer to Note 36(b)(ii).

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 5 November 2019, the Company entered into a New
Framework Agreement with JV Subsidiary, Jinyan Electricity,
Xiaoyi Jianeng Coal Chemical Technology Development
Company Limited* 2 & 1 52 BE B ML FI # B & H R 2 7],
Energy Technology, Xiaoyi ILNG, Mr. Yang Linhai* # &
JE4 and Mr. Wu Tangjun* & =1 55 4% pursuant to which
the Company and/or designated company within the Group
intend to acquire and to subscribe for the share capital of
Energy Technology such that the Company will be interested
in a controlling shareholding stake of more than 50% of the

enlarged share capital of Energy Technology.

Pursuant to the New Framework Agreement, the parties
shall negotiate and enter into formal agreement(s) pursuant
to the major business terms, as set out under the New
Framework Agreement. Subject to the entering into of the
relevant formal agreement(s), one of the major business term
is Jinyan Electricity, Energy Technology and JV Subsidiary
intend to update the amount of the Assigned Debt from
AMB402,303,023 as at 30 June 2018 to RMB448,087,108
as at 30 June 2019 and the JV Subsidiary shall be entitled
with a conversion right to convert the indebtedness into not
less 12% of the enlarged issued share capital of Energy
Technology. The final conversion percentage will be subject

to the valuation of Energy Technology.

New Framework Agreement is subject to the fulfilment of
certain conditions including the approval from the Stock
Exchange and the approval of shareholders of the Company
at a SGM.

FE W Bt B R Bl FEIE AR IR SR FRIE (4F)

Hyat: ()

(c)

(%)

FH—F— NFf+ZA=+—HH
FEFE SRR R 2 2 7] 4 K (B 4 B
5 - 2R B 536(b)(ii) °

WM A NT] = FE—NE
(=R Ny = YN
RE] - BHET)  EEMERNE
BBEEFEERAG - EFREZ - F
BEE - BB ERBREEEE
ATV —(PAIER G B AR
AR EFEFAANZIETRAEE
YR SRR R R IRA - (B AL
A #5 B RE R B 1 AS 1B K 18 R AKX
50% A £.2 R -

RIEFTHER [ - GTHIE T FIRIE
HERG#H T EHEELER
HEBIWF VLA % o KRG

TERIER sk —HE BB RN
BEEN  BEFEMEREENER

AEEEFEEEEFE  HE
EFoT-NFNA=ZFTHAZARHE
402,303,023t £ # 2 = F—LFN
HA=+HZ A K#448087,1087T
HBEENE R HHERENGE
FEEE 1B LR BT L R2% i 4
BEAEETRA - RIEZIBE S
#5ZIR R BE IR B B9 1518 o

FERGFERGE TIRIF(EEH

K P #ER AR R RIS
RELME)ERKE  HAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

22. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK 22. ZRHFRITER RAERRTER

BALANCES

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHE T

Restricted bank deposits Z IR SR ITE R 5,038 -
Cash and bank balances BeMRTER 20,839 18,894

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank balances of
RMB4,504,000 (equivalent to HK$5,038,000) (2018: Nil) have
been frozen according to the civil ruling issued by a court
in the PRC in relation to dispute in respect of purchases
agreements between a subsidiary of the Group and it's
supplier. The restricted bank balances were denominated in
RMB.

At 31 December 2018, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to HK$718,000. RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances
approximate their fair values.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT

W-Z—hE+-A=+—8  RiEF
B 7 B 5t AN 5 [ — R BT 8 /A A B L
EEzEANKBIHEMEE 24 BT
BHoREHRT  FAEEBRITEHKA
R ®4,504,0007T (18 % 525,038,000
BN ZE—N\F E)FERE - R
FIRITRBRIUARESE -

R_E2-—NFE+-_A=+—8 &%
BEUARBFECRERBITE T
ME BT R & 8iET18,0008 T ° A
REIELBRABEMER - AW -
1B 55 H B A b O BE B A I K% A1 BB
@hE - BEERMEEEKD A5 E
WHEF S BXEREINEESE 2R
THEARBLIBRBEME -

RITREBERBHBITFERNED
FEMERERA B - BFAKEANE
RedFf FENF-—RE=Z@AT
FIEARR 0928 B E 377 3% - IR HIE
IR A R BRI B - RITREBREFNR
EABYEHELWERAFENR
1T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. BESEMFIRR
2019 2018
—E-hAF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
Trade payables due to other parties EREMALZES
JE& {5F R 3R 366,162 231,893
Trade payables due to related companies JENEIE AR Z B S
JE& {5F R 3R 110,496 5,433
476,658 237,326
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RIEMR BEERHFAEZES
reporting periods, based on the invoice date, is as follows: FERIRR IR DT AT
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 3 months =EAR 266,073 152,193
3 to 4 months == H{EA 18,440 1,582
Over 4 months i 3@ P & A 192,145 83,551
476,658 237,326
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally B S REFIIR AT B R —/E K120
settled on 120-day terms (2018: 120-day). HRBE(ZZE—/\F :1208) -
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their B HEMNIRR 2IREE S LA A EHE
fair values. f e
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

24.

OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS

Hit BAIRK - BEIRE - EWRIR

RECEIVED AND DEFERRED INCOME EREEZEWA
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Other payables and accrued charges Hfh FE IR 5K % BB AT
EH 422,073 369,416
Amount due to an associate (Note a) P& — R B & A 7 08
( ﬁ/v‘si*a) - 45,008
Contract liabilities (Note b) e BE A ED) 313,239 214,700
Deferred income (Note ¢) EEW A iEe) 5,034 5,063
740,346 634,187
Less: Current portion R BIEAEf (735,312) (625,982)
Non-current portion JERNERE 5,034 8,205
The carrying amounts of the other payables and accrued HihENIRA R EFTRIE ZIREE
charges approximate their fair values. BHAAERS
Note: Bt
(a)  The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable (a) FIHAERELF  £ERARZ
30 working days after the completion of the subscription BT A0 TEA ST -
agreemem‘.
(b)  The movements (excluding those arising from increases and (b) REEHHREERE 159 HE A

decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract HEFZAENELE AL BEE
liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 (7T 6172 18 [a] € /2 74 7 38 i & )7 22
during the year are as follows: EEZEZB)WMT -
2019 2018
—E-hF T -N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

At 1 January Hn—A—H 214,700 199,108
Recognised as revenue R AW A (188,452) (170,341)
Receipt of advances U B 24 51 288,948 196,698
Exchange realignment FE X 3H & (1,957) (10,765)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 313,239 214,700

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

24.

25.

OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS 24, HMEMSIRR - BrFIE - SR

RECEIVED AND DEFERRED INCOME (continued) ERIEZEWA(Z)

Note: (continued) Bt st ()

(b)  (continued) (b) (&)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, none of the REZF-NFR-ZF-NFF+=

contract liabilities that are expected to be settled after H=+—H BRI EEH

more than 12 months. HREE B121E A 16 )5 18.2 & 47
=F-

(c) Deferred income represented government grant to (c) BHERAIEGERIERENRTIRK
subsidiaries in the PRC with attaching conditions to be T B B 2 72 BT A B % (HT
complied with, in respect of the construction of atmospheric R FIRNE)  EAERATE TR
monitoring system, which will be recognised as other income R TFHRFERBEMMPA -
when all the required conditions are complied with.

OTHER BORROWINGS 25. Hitig &

Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Maturity 2019 rate Maturity 2018
BIRFE A —F-hE EERAE A —T-N\E
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FET
Unsecured other EEAEMBEE FE3.51%
borrowings 0%-10% 2020-2022 218,188 p.a. 2020 18,188

Analysed into: V=R

Within 12 months +=EAR 18,188 -

In the second year after the 78 A 3§ & Hi &

reporting period E_FER 200,000 18,188
218,188 18,188

Other than a borrowing with the carrying amount
of HK$5,807,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$5,807,000) which is denominated in US$, all other
borrowings are denominated in HK$. The carrying values of
other borrowings approximate their fair values.

BR-_ZE—NF+_AF—%%E
& /5,807,000 (= F — N\ 4
5,807,000% T) 2 fE E LA X T &t &
O B HMAEE LS TEHE - Hib
BEZEAEEEARBERS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ % —

25.

26.

NF+ZA=+—BHILFE

OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 25. H{fgE(£E)

As at 31 December 2019, included in other borrowings were RZE—NF+ZA=+—H" &

loans from a former Director, who resigned on 7 September AHEMEER—BHEARAIES

2018, of HK$1,751,000 (2018: HK$1,751,000) and a Director ER=ZFE—NFNLAEEEE

of GRG Huscoke of HK$3,195,000 (2018: HK$3,195,000). § 1,751,000 T(Z T — )\ F:

1,751,000 D) R e BN —REF
& 73,195,000 7T (ZF — /\F :
3,195,000/ 7T.) °

During the years ended 31 December 2018, the Group has REBEE_ZE—N\F+ZA=+—HIE

been negotiating with lenders and certain creditors of the FE AEHE-—EBEHEFRARNTEEH

Group to restructure and extend the Group’s indebtedness. ETEBAETED LWEARE

MAREEER -

(@) On 28 December 2018, the Group entered into (a RZZE-NF+—A=Z+NR-
agreements with lenders to further extend the REBEER AL HE
repayment date of other borrowings under the same 2 FE [R5 50 — *H%ﬁ@ﬁ&
terms for 1 year to 31 August 2020. JEEBHER—FE-_ZT=

ZENA=+—H-

LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HEA®R

The following table shows the remaining contractual TRIWTAEERRERERE

maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the P mEERFE16RBERR I HEE

current and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16: BEZHRTEHREHA:

At 31 December 2019 R-ZEB-AF+ZA=+t—H

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
REBEENRK bS|p=\ BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET TERT
Not later than one year —F2ZR 1,570 (436) 1,134
Later than one year and not later —Z%—4F
than two years 1,119 (397) 722
Later than two years and not later —Z& R
than five years 3,356 (966) 2,390
More than five years 8 8 h 6,059 (747) 5,312
12,104 (2,546) 9,558

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

26.

LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 26. HEAEE)
At 1 January 2019 R-—ZE—-—NF—H—H
Minimum
lease
payments Interest Present value
SEMERK A RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FAET FAET
Not later than one year —F2ZNA 3,836 (647) 3,189
Later than one year and not later —Z_—4F
than two years 1,577 (439) 1,138
Later than two years and not later —Z%& R
than five years 3,376 (399) 2,977
More than five years BB R F 7,220 (1,723) 5,497
16,009 (3,208) 12,801

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
cumulative effect approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17. These liabilities have been
aggregated with the brought forward balances relating to
leases previously classified as finance leases. Comparative
information as at 31 December 2018 has not been restated
and relates solely to leases previously classified as finance
leases. Further details on the impact of the transition are
set out in note 2(a)A(i). The present value of future lease

payments are analysed as:

AEBERARFATEZARERE
BMBHRELENFIRLRBFER_-Z
—NFE-A—BZEEER - AER
ERREFBSTENBITRIES
REMECHERBM o HERE - %
FRECESERIPBEAREREZ
HEMRBzEAEES - R_F—N\
FtA=+—"HZHEBEHLRE
JINHEREMDBEAREREZH
EEW - AHBRCFEZE—FH
15 & R M FE2(a)Ax) © KRR E TR
ZHREDWNA:

31 December 1 January

2019 2019

—E-NF —ET-NF

+=ZBA=+—H —H—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Current liabilities mEBE 1,134 3,189
Non-current liabilities FEMEBEE 8,424 9,612
9,558 12,801
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

27. DEFERRED TAX ASSET/(LIABILITIES)

Depreciation
allowance
in excess

of related

27. BEMREEE (BE)

Undistributed
profits of a PRC

Loss available
for offsetting

against future

depreciation subsidiary taxable profits Total
AEEEARR
HBBERETE —BPEMEAR ERBEMNZ
ZITERE 2 K5 s R BB st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT T FERT FERT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—\F
—H—H (106) - 12,646 12,540
Deferred tax credit/ FREBZEAER
(charged) to profit or (B &L
loss during the year TiIE 106 (11,886) (12,731) (24,511)
Exchange realignment M H - 633 85 718
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F
and 1 January 2019 +=BA=+—AH
R=ZZB-IF
—-A—H - (11,253) - (11,253)
Deferred tax credited to FREEZAIKZ
profit or loss IE % B 18
during the year = 5,632 = 5,632
Exchange realignment B 5P = 28 - 28
At 31 December 2019 R=ZZE-hF
+=A=+—8 = (5,593) = (5,593)

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

27.

DEFERRED TAX ASSET/(LIABILITIES) (continued)
Undistributed profits of a PRC subsidiary

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding tax on dividends distributable
by the subsidiary established in the PRC in respect of

earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2019, deferred tax liability in respect
of HK$5,593,000 (equivalent to RMB5,000,000) (2018:
HK$11,253,000 (equivalent to RMB10,000,000))

been provided. In the opinion of the Directors, the

has

remaining undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiary of
HK$543,095,000 (equivalent to RMB485,513,000) at the
present time, are required for financing the continuing
operations of the entities and no distribution would be made
in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, no provision for

deferred taxation has been made in this respect.

Loss available for offsetting against future taxable
profits

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$145,062,000 (2018: HK145,062,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these tax losses as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the above amounts
can be utilised.

27.

EEHREEE (AE)E)

—EPENBEATRZT SRR
BEPESCEMESHE  RPEK
UZHNERERBINEEETIRZ
B BEUR10% 2 BT - BB E A
—EENFE—F—RABER WEA
R-ETELE+-_F=+—BR2ZR
) o fiw R BB RN B E FTB R A
BB BRBEGEL - BIER 2B
MEAgEEA - RAEEME - BA
MEEI10% - AEERA Y FR N FEH
R ZMWBRRR_ZEENF—A—
HAREAMAIHEIIERBE ZEFE
EEMHZEME -

RZE—-—NF+ZA=+—HB" B
E IR 3 7% 18 8 & # 5,593,000
7 7T (FH % X A R #5,000,00070) (=
T — )\ £ : 11,253,000/ Jt (M0 & 7
A K #10,000,0007T)) - EER A
BRI BEMMEBE AR 28T T2 K &
#1543,095,000%8 L (HHE R A R
485,513,0007T) B T T B8 —irﬂ«
C WA R B ARRETEDIR ©
k I 48 B UL 1F R Lmﬁﬁﬁ

AHEERERRERHEERN ZE
B
AEEBRBEEEEZHEBREA
145,062,000/ (= T — J\ F:
145,062,000/ 7T) - AT M BR AR A 1
KEEEEEZARIZRRERM
i Al e

I 4 Bt bt TR B 1R R SRR X TR IR
BE ARAKERSTAAEERE
AREE M AT B B SR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. A&
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FET
Authorised: ERE
20,000,000,000 20,000,000,000% (=& — )\ :
(2018: 20,000,000,000) 20,000,000,000/% )
ordinary shares of EREBECOBIT(ZE—/\F:
HK$0.01 each BREMBOIEL) ZERAR
(2018: HK$0.01 each) 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE:
2,870,713,497 2,870,713,497TR (ZZE — N5 :
(2018: 2,726,456,521) 2,726,456,521%) 28,707 27,264
Number of
shares in Share Share Treasury
issue capital premium share Total
BET
RAEE %N R 175 B EFRH Bt

HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

At 1 January 2018 RZZE-NE—F—H 2596625258 25,966 341,361 - 367,327
Share allotment (note a) BB % iZa) 129,831,263 1,298 32,458 - 33,756

At 31 December 2018 and RZZE—NF

1 January 2019 TZA=+-BER
—E-NEF—-A—H 2,726,456,521 27,264 373,819 - 401,083
Conversion of convertible RBTaRES
bonds (note 32) (Hi232) 144,256,976 1,443 - - 1,443
Transfer of Consideration BEREBERH
Shares (note 16) (Hit16) - ~ - (27,265) (27,265)
Distribution of treasury 2R E 7 B )
shares - - (27,265) 27,265 -
At 31 December 2019 —ZE-NE
+-A=1+—H 2,870,713,497 28,707 346,554 - 375,261
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28.

29.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Note:

(@) Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement entered into between
the Company and an independent third party in July 2018,
the Company issued 129,831,263 ordinary shares at market
price of HK$0.26 per share as consideration for acquisition

of issued share of an associate (Note 16).

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the
share options issued under the schemes are included in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the share option scheme
include the directors and employees of the Group. A share
option scheme became effective on 31 May 2002 and
expired on 31 May 2012 (the “2002 Scheme”).
share option scheme was adopted and became effective
on 28 March 2013 (the “2013 Scheme”). Unless otherwise

cancelled or amended, the 2002 Scheme and 2013 Scheme

A new

(collectively, the “Share Option Schemes”) will remain in

force for ten years from the effective date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Share Option Schemes
was an amount equivalent to, upon their exercise, 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the respective dates
of approval of the Share Option Schemes. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options granted to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Schemes within
any 12-month period was limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting of the Company.

28.

29.
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29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in

a general meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. Options may
be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the share

options to the end of the exercise period.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the Directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant of the share options; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares
of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings of the
Company.

Under the 2013 Scheme, options were granted to eligible

participants and there were outstanding (but not vyet

exercised) options to subscribe for a total number of
10,400,000 shares as at 31 December 2018, representing
approximately 0.4% of the issued share capital of the
Company at that date and the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements. The outstanding options
granted under the 2013 Scheme shall be subject to the
provisions of the 2013 Scheme and Chapter 17 of the Listing

Rules.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %

29.

—E-NF+ZA=+—BLEFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 29. BEARHAMETEI(E)
2013 Scheme —E—-=f:8
The following share options were outstanding under the 2013 FR - BE_Z—=F:8HKTE
Scheme during the year: ZHEIRERRENTS
2019 2018
—E—-NEF AN:S
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
MEFY BREE miETFE  BREE
TREE E4= TiEE A
HK$ per share ’000 HK$ per share ‘000
gRET TR BRET F i
At 1 January RN—H—H 0.66 10,400 0.66 10,400
Lapsed during the year 4Rk 0.66 (10,400) - -
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H - - 0.66 10,400
During the year ended 31 December 2019, 10,400,000 HE_Z—-hF+=ZH=1— ElJJ:’EE
share options lapsed at the end of the exercise period in e 10,400,000@%%*&%: Z
accordance with terms of the 2013 Scheme. FE B ZIEREK -
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no share options HEZZ-N\F+H :+* Hik5F
were lapsed/exercised in accordance with terms of the 2013 E-oHEERARERE = Ei%
Scheme. As at 31 December 2018, the exercises price of Bl 2GR ELTE - E"_7
2013 Scheme is HK$0.66 per share, the number of option F+-—_A=+—8" _?—:iaﬂéﬂ
is 10,400,000 and the exercise period is 6 September 2014 Z1TEEAEFBR066E T - B AR

to 5 September 2019.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

# H A10,400,0000 R HEITFEH A =
Z-MENARNBEZZ-AFHIA
AH -

01 44 18 T R B AT S AR A ) 2 BB
ZEMARE BB - BAR N 2 AT 58
AFHE -
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30. RESERVES 30. f#fE
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company RANBEBERANEE Z2E&FIFW0
during the year are as follows: T
Share Capital Convertible
Share Treasury Contributed  Special option redemption bonds Accumulated
premium share surplus  reserve  reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BRSE RAEE TERES
BROEE EERH  HAABRH HAlkE i L i ZitFB @it
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TER TET TET TEx TEx FET TEL TERT
Note (a) ~ Note (b)
Mt M)
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E—-A—H 341,361 - 1,689,847 17,275 2,509 85 368 (2,141,400)  (89,955)
Loss for the year and total AEEBERAFE
comprehensive expense 2ERXEE
for the year - - - - - - - (19,828)  (19,828)
Share allotment et i & 32,458 - - - - - - - 32458
At 31 December 2018 and 1 RZZE-N\E
January 2019 +ZA=t-BRk
“T-N5-A-B 373,819 - 1,689,847 17,275 2,509 85 368 (2,161,228)  (77,325)
Loss for the year and total FRNBEERTEE
comprehensive expense 2ERZBE
for the year - - - - - - - (17,700)  (17,700)
Extinguishment of 2017 BERZZT—tF
Convertible bonds MERES - - - - - - (368) - (368)
Recognition of 2019 BERRBZZF-NE
Convertible bonds ABRRES - - - - - - 12 - 12
Conversion of convertible bonds % # [ # & & % - - 41,834 - - - (12) - 41822
Transfer of consideration shares # 2 &7 - (27,265) - - - - - - (27,265)
Distribution of treasury shares %k B R (27,265) 27,265 - - - - - - -
Lapsed share option BAMZ B EE - - - - (2,509) - - 2509 -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-N%E
+-A=t-8 346,554 - 1731681 17275 - 85 - (2176419  (80,824)
Notes: Bt a7
a. The contributed surplus represents the excess of the value a. REBRE-NN—FLRE]ZEE
of shares converted upon conversion of the 2008 Convertible 40 + A BERIEL L —FFN
Bonds and 2019 Convertible Bonds over the nominal amount FARRERR ZF—IF 2R
of the ordinary shares issued pursuant to section 40(1) of the (& BF 8 18 2 IR (7 1B 1B & 1 B 7T
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and the credit arising from the THEREE EER AR EMES
capital reorganisation. PR o
b. The special reserve represents the difference between the b. FE Bl 57 15 75 B BB 23 A AN 23 AU B

nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries at the date when
the shares were acquired by the Company and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.
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31. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON- 31.
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-

controlling interests are set out below:

BRAEEARFERESZHZENE
L]

RAEAFERES ZAKENEB
NEIZFHBEINDT

GRG Huscoke EEME
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-N\F
Percentage of equity interest held by R+-_A=+—82
non-controlling interests at FE VL IR # 25 P 15 AR
31 December Bkt 10% 10%
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit for the year allocated to DB EFEERER
non-controlling interests NFE s A 4,942 17,590
Accumulated balances of non-controlling 7 ¥ & B Hf =~ JF 4% A% 4
interests at the reporting date = REH A 53,109 48,487
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31.

32.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON- 31. BEEAFEREZZHFZENRE
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) AE (&)
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue WA 1,605,356 1,478,049
Other income and gains HAb WA R s 68,969 144,001
Total expenses gL (1,624,905) (1,446,146)
Profit for the year NEE i F 49,420 175,904
Total comprehensive income for the year AN 2K 25 25 51,487 147,312
Current assets mEEE 1,204,759 853,996
Non-current assets EREBEE 573,577 566,880
Current liabilities mEBE (1,217,412) (961,520)
Non-current liabilities FEMEBEE (29,834) (16,315)
Net cash flows from operating activites HREZEEK RS
e R 11,034 160,247
Net cash flows used in investing activities BRI E XK 2R &
i (6,697) (159,529)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents & M8 & 5B ¥
F R 4,337 718
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 32. WRRESR

2016 Convertible Bonds

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into between
Kailuan (Hong Kong) International Co., Limited and the
Company on 13 April 2016, the Company issued convertible
bonds with a principal amount of HK$43,277,000 (the 2016
Convertible Bonds) to Kailuan (Hong Kong) International
Co., Limited on 2 November 2016. The 2016 Convertible
Bonds bear interest at 2.5% per annum, mature 1 year from
the issue date and are extendable for one additional year
subject to the agreement between the Company and the
bondholder. The 2016 Convertible Bonds carry a conversion
right entiting the holder to subscribe for the Company’s
shares at a conversion price of HK$0.06 per share.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT
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32.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

2016 Convertible Bonds (continued)

The 2016 Convertible Bonds are convertible at the option
of the holder into the Company’s ordinary shares during the
period commencing from the seventh business day prior
to the maturity date and expiring on the date immediately
before the maturity date, provided that the conversion does
not trigger off a mandatory offer obligation under Rule 26
of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers and the
public float of the Company’s shares shall not be less than
25% of total issued shares of the Company, in which:

(i)  The bondholder has a right to convert up to 50% of
the principal amount of the 2016 Convertible Bonds
into the Company’s shares at any time throughout the
conversion period at its sole and absolute discretion;
and

(i) The bondholder has a right to convert the remaining
50% of the principal amount of the 2016 Convertible
Bonds subject to the consent of the Company.

The Company has a right to redeem the whole or part of
the outstanding 2016 Convertible Bonds at 100% of the
principal amount and accrued interest at any time before
the maturity date by giving the bondholder not less than 14
days prior notice during the outstanding period.

On the maturity date, any of the 2016 Convertible Bonds not
converted or redeemed during the tenure will be redeemed
at 100% of the principal amount with accrued interest.

As a result of the share consolidation in May 2016, the
conversion price of the 2016 Convertible Bonds was
adjusted from HK$0.06 per share to HK$0.3 per New Share
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 2016 Convertible
Bonds. The number of shares upon conversion would be

adjusted in accordance with the adjusted conversion price.

The fair value of the 2016 Convertible Bonds as a whole was
HK$38,340,000 on the issue date of which the fair value
of the liability portion of the 2016 Convertible Bonds was
HK$38,190,000 and the equity portion was HK$150,000.

32.
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32.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

2016 Convertible Bonds (continued)

On 30 December 2016 (the “2016 Amendment Date”), the
Company and Kailuan (Hong Kong) International Co., Limited
entered into an agreement whereby the maturity date of the
2016 Convertible Bonds was extended to 2 May 2018 (the
“2016 Amendment”). Other than the maturity date, all terms
of the 2016 Convertible Bonds remain unchanged. In light of
the terms of the 2016 Amendment, the Company reassessed
the fair values of the 2016 Convertible Bonds at the 2016
Amendment Date. The values of the liability component
and the equity components at the 2016 Amendment Date
were determined at HK$36,835,000 and HK$150,000,
respectively. The effect of the 2016 Amendment was a gain
of HK$2,303,000 which was recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The fair values of the liability component of the 2016
issue date and the 2016
Amendment Date were estimated using an equivalent market

Convertible Bonds at the

interest rate for a similar note without a conversion option.
The respective residual amounts are assigned as the equity
components and included in the convertible bonds reserve.

On 22 December 2017 (the “2017 Amendment Date”),
the Company and Kailuan (Hong Kong) International Co.,
Limited entered into an agreement to vary certain terms
and conditions of the 2016 Convertible Bonds (the “2017
Amendments”). The amendments included but were not

limited to the following:

(i)  the maturity date of 2 May 2018 was extended to 31
August 2019;

(i) the conversion period was changed to the period
commencing from fulfilment of conditions precedent of
the 2017 Amendments up to 31 August 2019; and

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH
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32.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

2016 Convertible Bonds (continued)

(iii)  the holder of the 2016 Convertible Bonds will have
the right to convert 100% of the principal amount of
the 2016 Convertible Bonds at any time during the
conversion period.

Further details of the 2017 Amendments are set out in
the Company’s announcement and the circular dated 22
December 2017 and 15 January 2018, respectively.

The 2017 Amendments were approved at the SGM held on
5 February 2018 and other conditions were fulfiled on 5
February 2018.

The 2017 Amendments constituted a significant modification
and was accounted for as an extinguishment of the 2016
Convertible Bonds and an issue of new convertible bonds
(the 2017 Convertible Bonds). In light of the terms of the
2017 Amendments set out above, the Company reassessed,
as at the 2017 Amendments Date, the fair values of the 2016
Convertible Bonds and the 2017 Convertible Bonds. The net
effect of the 2017 Amendments is the recognition of a loss
of HK$188,000 charged to profit or loss.

The carrying amount of the liability component of the
2017 Convertible Bonds as at 31 December 2018 was
HK$43,526,000. It was calculated by discounting the future
cash flows at the prevailing market interest rate at the end
of the reporting period which conducted by an independent
professional qualified valuer, by using Black-Scholes Partial

Differential Equations.

32.
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32.

NF+ZA=+—BHILFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

2016 Convertible Bonds (continued)

On 8 March 2018, Kailuan (Hong Kong) International Co.
Limited transferred the 2017 Convertible Bonds to its
immediate holding company, Rontac Resources Company
Limited, with all terms remained unchanged.

There was no conversion or redemption of the 2017
Convertible Bonds during the year ended 31 December
2018.

On 13 February 2019 (the “2019 Amendment Date”), the
Company and Rontac Resources Company Limited entered
into an agreement to vary certain terms and conditions of
the 2016 Convertible Bonds (the “2019 Amendments”). The

amendments included but were not limited to the following:

(i)  the maturity date of 31 August 2019 was extended to
31 August 2020;

(i)  the conversion period was changed to the period
commencing from fulfilment of conditions precedent of
the 2019 Amendments up to 31 August 2020; and

(i) the holder of the 2016 Convertible Bonds will have
the right to convert 100% of the principal amount of
the 2016 Convertible Bonds at any time during the

conversion period.

Further details of the 2019 Amendments are set out in
the Company’s announcement and the circular dated 13
February 2019 and 20 March 2019, respectively.

The 2019 Amendments were approved at the SGM held on
9 April 2019 and other conditions were fulfilled on 9 April
2019.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH
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32.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

2016 Convertible Bonds (continued)

The 2019 Amendments constituted a significant modification
and was accounted for as an extinguishment of the 2016
Convertible Bonds and an issue of new convertible bonds
(the 2019 Convertible Bonds).
2019 Amendments set out above, the Company reassessed,
as at the 2019 Amendments Date, the fair values of the 2016
Convertible Bonds and the 2019 Convertible Bonds. The net
effect of the 2019 Amendments is the recognition of a loss
of HK$185,000 charged to profit or loss.

In light of the terms of the

The carrying amount of the liability component of the
2017 Convertible Bonds as at 31 December 2018 was
HK$43,526,000.

The fair value of the liability component of the 2019
Convertible Bonds as at 9 April 2019 of HK$43,075,000,
was calculated by discounting the future cash flows at
the prevailing market interest rate at the end of respective
reporting periods which conducted by an independent
professional qualified valuer, by using Black-Scholes Partial

Differential Equations.

On 27 May 2019 and 31 December 2019, convertible bonds
of HK$18,000,000 and HK$25,277,000 were converted into
60,000,000 and 84,256,976 ordinary shares respectively.
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/43,526,000 7T °

—E-NAFABRRESFZBEE
RZE-NFOANBZRAAE
43,075,000 TR PN EB R SR 2
WITMIHF EBLIBARKIB R E5T
o ERBEIEXSERMERME
T A EBEIR-FRIMRES A
R

W

Ztml

RZE-NFRAZ+EHEZ
NFE+=A=+—H " 18,000,000/
7T £.25,277,0007 T 2 Al # iR (& 25
Bl 7,4 /60,000,000 % }.84,256,976
fREmmk e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 32. WERES(Z)
2016 Convertible Bonds (continued) _E—/‘—\ﬂ’—_ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁz%(%ﬁ)
An analysis of the liability and equity components of the —tFARKRESFCABRER
2017 Convertible Bonds on the movements during the years =) Z;v WREBEEZZTE-NFRZZ
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows: —N\F+_A=T—HLEFEZEH
LUNNE
Liability Equity
component component Total
EERD EmBD #Er
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-N\F—H—H 41,427 368 41,795
Interest expense of the T+ FARKRES
2017 Convertible Bonds Z N B X 2,099 - 2,099
At 31 December 2018 and RZTE—N\F
1 January 2019 ‘?’:)EJ +—8xk
—h&F—H—H 43,526 368 43,894
Interest expense before the 2019 ﬂif FIRIZ
Amendments ﬂ BRX 413 — 413
Transfer of interest expense to other #5588 8 &= H th
payables FE A IR 3N (1,405) — (1,405)
Extinguishment of the 2017 EERZZE—LF
Convertible bonds AR E S (42,534) (368) (42,902)
Recognition of 2019 Convertible PRI _ZE—NF
bonds CE:L 32 43,075 12 43,087
Interest expense of the —NFEABRES
2019 Convertible Bonds ZH B 710 - 710
Transfer expense to other payables & # 5 s 2= H {th f& {+
IR (520) - (520)
Conversion of 2019 Convertible R T —NF Rk
Bonds &% (43,265) (12) (43,277)

At 31 December 2019

218 HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZZEKRERAT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %=~ %

33.

34.

—“NEF+-A=+—HIEFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33. REHERE
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) REHEXRIE
As lessee fEBARBA
The Group leases certain of its leasehold interests in land AEERBELKEHELHBEESRT
and properties under operating lease arrangements. Leases THRERMECHEREZ MEH
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to EBRHERE—ZE+F -
ten years.
At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum RZEBE-—NF+ZA=+—H8 K&
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases ERETAMELEHE ZRRE
falling due as follows: KHESABEINHOAT
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FET
Within one year —F K 9,906
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_FEFRF(BREATF
WA B M) 24,217
More than five years AFME -
34,123
The Group is the lessee in respect of land and properties REBEABERREBERBSFERFE7
which was previously classified as operating leases RO AKEHEN T HEMED
under HKAS 17. From 1 January 2019 onwards, future AEBEA-BZZTE—NLF—H—HE
lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in the RO AR & T FR R MY R 4(F) HR P B
consolidated statement of financial position in accordance EREEHMBRARTIERAEE
with the policies set out in note 4(f), and the details regarding BfF  BRASERKEENKOF
the Group’s future lease payments are disclosed in note 26. SR FE 26 I EE o
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. HARAEE
As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any RZZE-—hF+_A=+T—H X%

significant contingent liabilities which have not been provided

for in these financial statements (2018: Nil).

B MmN RN EFRBREA
FHBEZEAIRBBE(ZT AN
FE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

35.

LITIGATIONS

(@)

The Group received notification issued by ILFAE
KEMHRHARZER (Shanxi Province Taiyuan City
Intermediate People’s Court) (the “Taiyuan Court”)
dated 20 May 2016 in which WA RER A
Al (Shanxi International Logistic Co., Ltd.) (“Shanxi
Logistic’) commenced legal action against GRG
Huscoke. Pursuant to the statement of claim, GRG
Huscoke failed to deliver goods and failed to repay
the prepayment of RMB50,000,000
HK$59,035,000)

accordance with the cooperation agreements entered

(equivalent to
received from Shanxi Logistic in
into by Shanxi Logistic and GRG Huscoke in March
2013, on 1 April 2014 and 1 May 2015 respectively. As
a result, Shanxi Logistic demanded GRG Huscoke to
repay RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$59,035,000)
plus profits forgone of RMB14,894,000 (equivalent
to HK$17,410,000) and related legal
RMB183,000 (equivalent to HK$214,000) up to 29
February 2016 as a result of the non-delivery of goods
by GRG Huscoke.

expense of

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT

35.

Hig/

(@)

AEBEEELAEANRMH
BARER(TRKEZRD R
TE-XNERA-t+BABEL >
BAE - LR RAERAG
(LAY RDE:EMZRER
ERFR -REBEEBFE 2
EMBRERE LAY TSR
TEMEINR_T—=F=
A Zf—HmNFEA—BEZ=
T-—HAFERA—BIIYZAE
BERXNERREEEMNRIE
A E #50,000,0007T (18 & »
59,035,000/ 7T) « E itk - 178
MEEREEMEEERNK
1B A R#50,000,0007T (£ R
59,035,000/ 7T) INE & & M 52
RERNEMRMEREE=-Z
—RNFZAZt+NABIEZE X
x= % F A R #14,894,0007T (47
£ 17,410,00058 7o) & 48 B8 7%
# X A R%183,0000T (1%
214,000 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

35.

LITIGATIONS (continued)

(@)

(continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2016, a
civil mediation agreement (the “Civil Mediation

Agreement”’) was entered into to confirm, among
others, that the sums owed by GRG Huscoke to Shanxi
Logistic amounted to RMB65,077,000 (equivalent
to HK$76,659,000) as of 11 April 2016 and such
sums should be repaid on or before 30 May 2016.
Subsequently, GRG Huscoke, Shanxi Logistic, the
non-controlling shareholder and the controlling owner
of the non-controlling shareholder (collectively, as
the Guarantors of GRG Huscoke) entered into a
settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”)
regarding the execution of the Civil Mediation
Agreement. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement,
GRG Huscoke shall settle RMB31,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$36,500,000) by instalments by 31 December
2016, and monthly instalments of RMB®6,000,000
(equivalent to HK$7,100,000) from January 2017
onwards until the full settlement of the outstanding
sums (including interest accrued and to be accrued

thereon).

As at 31 2019,
by GRG Huscoke to Shanxi Logistic amounted to
RMB17,878,000 (equivalent to HK$19,999,000).

December that the sums owed

The Group has been in negotiation with Shanxi
Logistic to re-arrange the payment schedule under
the Settlement Agreement. To the best knowledge of
the Directors, no further legal action was lodged by
Shanxi Logistics up to the approval date of the financial
statements. In the opinion of the Directors, appropriate
provision has been made in the financial statements

as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

35.

iR R ()

(@)

(%)

RBEE=_ZT—A~"F+=ZA=+
—BIEFE  —HREHBRBZ
((REAMBZEDETEIL B
BR(EFRE)BEE-ZT—KRF
MA+—B&EMEERLAEY
2 B IE A A R ¥65,077,000
7T (F55276,659,0008 7T) b A
BMREAEAR-T—A~"FRA=
THSEZAEE Hit &5
MEw - AR - FEERBRR
MIEEBBR R 2 IZERERA (G
BEeNMBmIBERALE
mHhE(ERBED "EE
MO TREARGE - BRIEE
e eENRARZZT—
NET-_A=+—HBR2HE
# A R #31,000,0007T (HHE R
36,500,000 ) WE =F —
+FE-ABRSHTABEARKE
6,000,0007T (48 % 747,100,000
BL) HERHBEEREES
BRI (BIEEF R ER R F

B) e

R_ZE—hF+_A=+—8"
TaEMBELERILAEY R 2 FIE
A A R #17,878,0007T (18 & R
19,999,000 JT) °

AEE-ERLAMRBSA
BB AT I B IE i s 2 RS
Bl e MARRESZAAN HEE
MEBREFH®AS  LUAYR
I 4 AF L — SRR - A
RAEERR REBE-T—
NE+ZA=+—BARZZT-N
F+-_A=1T—HLEFEZH
BRERCFLEEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

35. LITIGATIONS (continued)

(b)

During the period from 2011 to 2015, GRG
Huscoke signed few purchase contracts with
WAL SESHEEBEEHE AT (the “Plaintiff’)
for purchase of coal from Plaintiff. In June 2019, the
Plaintiff confirmed the outstanding balance amount
due from GRG Huscoke amounted to RMB23,009,000
(equivalent to HK$25,738,000) plus accrued interest
(“the Debt”) with GRG Huscoke. However, GRG
Huscoke did not pay the Debt due to the Plaintiff at
that moment.

On 7 July 2019, the Plaintiff litigated a court case with
GRG Huscoke in 55 8% ARZER (the “Shouyang
Court”) for request of repayment of the Debt
immediately. On 8 October 2019, the Shouyang Court
judged GRG Huscoke need to settle the Debt due to
the Plaintiff plus handling fee amounted to RMB184,000
(equivalent to HK$206,000) by 18 October 2019 in
accordance with the civil judgment. However, GRG
Huscoke did not settle the Debt and handling fee
based on the judgement issued by the Shouyang
Court.

On 20 November 2019, the Shouyang Court issued an
additional execution notice to request GRG Huscoke to
settle the Debt and handling fee instantly. In addition,
the bank accounts of GRG Huscoke amounted to
RMB4,504,000 (equivalent to HK$5,038,000) were
frozen by the execution notice (note 22). As at 31
December 2019, GRG Huscoke repaid RMB1,015,000
(equivalent to HK$1,135,000) to the Plaintiff and current
outstanding balance was amounted to RMB21,994,000
(equivalent to HK$24,603,000) plus accrued interest
and handling fee.

GRG Huscoke is considering the next responding
actions, including but not limited to the start of
negotiation procedures with the Plaintiff about the
settlement and considering possible means to release
the frozen of the GRG Huscoke’s bank accounts.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH

i3
(b)

) =)
i\\\ﬁé‘wﬁ’/

RZE-——FZ2-F—hFH
M eeMzfldmasH &
MERBEEARNTREDE
RITEOMREEERE K 2K
BAR R-ZZE—hh&FXA-
REmeENsmEREKSE
M3z ¢ %8 E A R %23,009,000
7T (#8 & 725,738,000/ JT) 2
REBEHSTEIMEFT B
(IMEHD) - A @SEMNEER
REBEERNREZER o

RZZE—NFEALH  BRER
SHBEARER(ERER]
RHBHREEME ZARAE -
EXAANEEREE - R_FT—
NEFTANAB - FEER AR
CEMEEARBEREHAANS
E-NF+A+N\BZRIRRE
BEERNREEBEESMFESR
@ EE A A R #184,0007T (05
206,000 7T) © A & &
MEXABBESEEREL 2
HRBEEEBRFES -

RZ_E—NF+—A=+AH" &
PZER L B —mwmiT@a
EREEMNETHNBEEEBL
FEE W &FMERE
B A R #4,504,0007T (A & 7
5,038,000 7T) 2 SR T IR = £
1T AT LAOR & (Bt 5E22) »
WZZE—NEF+=ZA=+—H8"
PENEMREEBARK
1,015,0007T (48 % 71,135,000
BL)REMEKRER Z &%
A AN R 21,994,000 (FHE R
24,603,000/ 7T) 5 0 fE & F) 2
RFEE-

SEMBELEZE T~ F Y
T8 BEBTRRNERSH®
MBRR K2 F - 3 %8
BRI RS ENERITIRSH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. HEEBEALZRS
(@) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed (a) BRUFHEEUBHREREMUT
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, Frafit 2 XS REEHRIN  RE&E
the Group had the following transactions with related ERFNEBEALTA IR
parties during the year: CE
2019 2018
“E-hE ZE-N\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Wit TER TET
With the non-controlling shareholder of ~ E2Ff B AR FEIE R &R :
a subsidiary:
Sale of electricity HEEN i - 1,142
Rental expense et i 1,126 1,189
With related companies which are HEEAR(BHBAR
subsidiaries of the non-controlling FERBRZHBATF)
shareholder of a subsidiary:
Sales of electricity HEEN i — 971
Purchase of sundry materials REMRBEYH i 3,522 -
Transportation income BHWA i 679 -
With related companies which are HEELE (AWBRTE
associates of the non-controlling FERBRE BRG] :
shareholder of a subsidiary:
Purchase of refined coal RERE i 56,826 -
Purchases of sundry materials REMRENH i 60 -

With a related company which is held £ & E AR (HH B A
by a close family member of the FERBREZHEAA
beneficial owner of the non-controling ~ ZEZRXHERH) :
shareholder of a subsidiary:

Sales of raw coal HERK i 2,540 35,884
Sales of coke HEE K i 27,236 44,238
Sales of refined coal HERE i 87,980 -
Sales of electricity HEEN i 2,704 -
Sales of by-products HEEIE® i 776 4,063
Purchases of refined coal RERE i 66,451 45,558
Purchase of coke REER i 195,069 -
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224

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. HEBEALTZXRB(Z)
(@) (continued) (@ &)
Notes: B i -
(i) The transactions were conducted on bases mutually ()  RBIIZEBEBETA 5 A

(b)

(i)

agreed by the respective parties, with reference to
prevailing market rates or prices similar to those
transacted with the Group’s third party customers/
suppliers.

The rental expense was charged based on terms
mutually agreed between the contractual parties.

Outstanding balances with related parties

(i)

(i)

Balances with the non-controlling shareholder at
the end of the reporting period are set out in note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the Group’s balances (before loss

(b)

FEZEHRETT WERLTE
BF 177 45 ) 3 2 1 K52 B 5 =
TEP REBZXBZHE
HIEEME °

(i)  BEHXTEETH S A G
JE Z IR HER -

HRAEALZREELR

YRR

(i) HIRE
RELN R A TS R

\}/EE'
L

(iy ANEEEEGBEEAFZ

allowance) with other related companies is set HEer (MR EEREERN) 2
out below. BLALE PR T ©
2019 2018
—E-NF —\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables from related BERNF 2B HER
companies R X 142,660 86,683
Prepayments, deposits, and BENE BN RIE
other receivables from related % & K H b JE WK K
companies 100,533 11,464
Trade payables to related FENTCESER
companies R 5K (110,496) (5,433)
At 31 December R+=Z—A=+—8 132,697 92,714

These related companies are affiliates of the non-
controlling shareholder, and regarded as other
related parties of the Group.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Outstanding balances with related parties

(continued)

(i)

(iii)

(continued)
With respect to the balances as at 31 December
2016,

shareholder entered into an indemnity agreement

the Group and the non-controlling
on 1 March 2017, pursuant to which the non-
controlling shareholder undertook that if any
amounts were not settled by the respective
parties at 31 December 2016, it would settle the
amounts on their behalf by monthly instalments of
RMB10,000,000 after its new coking plant started
operation in October 2017.

The Group and the non-controlling shareholder
renewed the indemnity agreement on 6 March
2018 to cover the balances outstanding from
affiliates of the non-controlling shareholder of
HK$46,881,000 at 31 December 2017 under the
renewed repayment and asset pledge agreement
as detailed in note 21(c). On 31 December 2018,
the Group entered into the Debt Assignment as
detailed in note 21(c). Upon effective of the Debt
Assignment, HK$41,044,000 will be taken up by
the Debt Assignee.

As at 31 December 2019, included in other
borrowings were loans from a former director
of the Company of HK$1,751,000 (2018:
HK$1,751,000) and a director of GRG Huscoke
of HK$3,195,000 (2018: HK$3,195,000). Details of
the terms of these balances are set out in note

25 to the financial statements.

36.

HEAEATZXE(#E)
HEAEALTZREELH®R(E)

(b)

(ii)

(iif)

(%)

BT —ARF+ZA=T
—BzEBRmE  ~AEHE
RIEEBRBRA-T —
+tH&=A—HFIZBER
& B R R R
#MERNEER=-T—
NE+-_A=1+—B*%Hh
EBFNGEE  HBR
ZE—tF+AFERK
Mg BB RER AR
& A A R#10,000,0007T
HEZeRE -

AEEBREEBRBRER=
T-NEFE=ZRAHEFT R
ERFEUARELEEE
K& ERR GG w M
H21c)TEF i) B TR =
TE—+E+-_A=+—H
FEEBB R BB AR Z
KB I8 45 #346,881,00078
TLTeRZE—N\FE+=A
=+—R8 X&EEFUE
eEEE (Bt FE21(c)
Frefit) REBEESE
4% 0 41,044,00058 7T
1B AR o

RZE—NF+ZA=+
—B FAHMEBEAR
NAl—BAMEZEZER
1,751,000 ;L (ZF — N\
11,751,000 JT) & &
EMZE—RBEZTZEX
3,195,000 L (Z&E — N\
13,195,000 JT)° %
LEBZIERFBIRY
KM 525 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Outstanding balances with related parties

(continued)

(iv)

With respect to the balances as at 31 December
2019, Energy Technology and Herong Resources
Limited entered into trade cooperation agreement
on 25 July 2019 in which Energy Technology
would arrange monthly supply of Coke from
October 2019 to October 2020 to Herong
Resources Limited. Under the terms and
conditions of agreement, Herong Resources
Limited made prepayment of USD22,000,000
(HK$171,258,000) for the purchase of Coke from
Energy Technology.

As at 31 December 2019,
payable was loan from a former director of the
Company of HK$509,000 (2018: HK$509,000).
Details of the terms of these balances are set out

included in other

in note 24 to the financial statements.

Commitments with a related party
On 30 May 2010, GRG Huscoke entered into a 10-year
operating lease arrangement ending 29 May 2020 with

the non-controlling shareholder to lease the land for

the Group’s production plants. Total rental expenses

paid to the non-controlling shareholder for the year are

included in note (a) above. The total operating lease

commitments due within one year, in the second to

fifth years and more than five as at 31 December 2019
were approximately nil (2018: HK$1,125,000), nil (2018:
HK$459,000) and nil (2018: nil), respectively.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH

36.

HEABEALTZXE(E)

(b)

(c)

HEAEALTZREEL®RE)

vy MR=ZZT—hhF+=ZA=
+—RZEBME  BER
MEafmEREeaRA
ARZZE—NFLtHZT
TRV ESEERE -
NAEBEEREIEBE
—E-NAF+HARE=Z
ZZEF+ALERRER
BERAREBARHHES
) o RIR R 2 R R IE
% FBERBRAF M
MR B BRI R R B
22,000,000% 7t (48 & 1
171,258,000 70) 2 T8 f-F
IE o

v) RZZE—hFE+=ZA=+
—H - FEAH AL ET IR 3K
BARR —RAEEZE
509,000 L (ZZF— N\
& : 509,000 L) - &
BRI BE NI
RN FE24 o

BRE AL ZRIE
R-Z—ZFRA=+H &5
MEEIEERBFETI10F K&
EHEZH(EE-_Z_TFH
AZ+hBARILL) URAEE
GEREE LM  REENT
IERBRzHeAT BEE
REXKMEF@ - RZE—NF
+-ZA=+-8B R—FR- -F
“EFRAERAFULEBY
KEMERERBRESNNAT
—Z=—\& : 1,125,000 7T) *
T (ZZF — )\ : 459,0007% L)
EECZE-—NF:T)o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. HEAEALZXRS(£E)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the d AEEZEEBAEZEHM:
Group:
The remuneration of directors and other members of EEREMTEEEEAER
key management during the year was as follows: FAZHMENT:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Salaries, allowances and e EAR
benefits in kind EYEF 7,906 6,135
Pension scheme contributions iR RAE R 5T &1 50 56 29
7,962 6,164
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included EEMe 2 E—THBERE
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. BEIEIR R M FE10 ©
37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. ZEBRETRERM:E
CASH FLOWS
(@) Change in liabilities arising from financing (a) HMETBRELZEEEE:
activities:
Other payable
(Interest payable on
Other other borrowing and
borrowings convertible bonds) Total
HiESR
(EtfEERTER
Hitfg & BEHNEMFIR) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—NE—A—H 18,188 - 18,188
Net cash flows REREFB - - -
Non-cash flows: FBRERE:
Interest accrued JE & FILB - - -
At 31 December 2018 and R-Z—N\F+-A=+—H
1 January 2019 rRZE—-NF—F—H 18,188 - 18,188
Proceeds from new other Hh#HEE 2
borrowing Fri§ 3038 200,000 - 200,000
Non-cash flows: ERETE:
Interest accrued e & FI B - 11,563 11,563
At 31 December 2019 R-E-RF+=A=1+—H 218,188 11,563 229,751
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(iif)

As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
129,831,263 ordinary
shares of the Company were issued to acquire

financial statements,
the issued shares of EDB at the market price
of HK$0.26 per share during the year ended 31
December 2018.

In addition, the Group also subscribed for 10.5%
issued shares of EDB at cash consideration of
approximately HK$68,048,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB60,000,000), approximately
HK$45,008,000 (equivalent to RMB40,000,000)
remained unsettled and was included in other
payables as at 31 December 2018 (Note 24).

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the GRG Huscoke declared a dividend of
approximately HK$56,260,000 (equivalent to
RMB50,000,000). The dividend payable to the
non-controlling Shareholder of approximately
HK$5,626,000 (equivalent to RMB5,000,000) was
included in other payables as at 31 December
2018.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT

FEREeRERMEE)

(b)

EXHREXS

(i)

(iii)

BB AMBEHRERN
HGFMEZE #HE_ZT
—-NE+-AF=+—8
LtFEE AARUME
5 B B 190.2678 7T B 17
129,831,263 /% & i % A
U REEDBZ BB 1T D o

gEoh - REE TR &K
8 #968,048,000/8 7t (4
LR H A R %60,000,000
Jt) 2 B EDB 210.5% 2
BT 1D » #945,008,000
BEITHERARE
40,000,0007T) I K 2 1+
BEARZZE—N\F+=
A=t+—BZzHAMERMIK
K (P 5E24) ©

HE_ZT-N\F+=ZA=
T—HLEFE &Mz
Kk & B 4956,260,000
BITHEHERARE
50,000,0007T) ° F& J& 1
THERRERE 2R D
5,626,000/ 7T (B E R A
R #5,000,0007T) 5t A R
—E-N\EFEF+ZHA=1—
Hz H A ERIER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting periods are as

follows:

As at 31 December 2019

38. RERESZEMTIA

wmr

RBEHMR - EF2

BMITAZIREE

R=ZZF-h&+=-A=+—H

Financial
Financial assets at fair
assets at value through
Financial assets amortised cost  profit or loss Total
REBEARTIE RAARETTA
ERMEE ZEMEE BRZEREE FER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FET FET
Financial assets at fair value EAREFABER
through profit or loss ZEREE = 1,508 1,508
Trade receivables 2 5 e IR 3 643,781 - 643,781
Deposits and other receivables &% K Hfth fE UL
R 3K 353,528 = 353,528
Restricted bank deposits TRRAFIEITFER 5,038 - 5,038
Cash and bank balances e hBTER 20,839 - 20,839
1,023,186 1,508 1,024,694
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost
1R 85 A ARSI R
cRaE Z2emAsE
HK$'000
FAET
Trade payables B 5 IR 476,658
Other payables and accruals E b 7 0R 3R K FE R RE 422,073
Other borrowings Hi g g 218,188
Lease liabilities HEBE 9,558
1,126,477
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RE M RR A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 H = —%

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 38. &}

As at 31 December 2018

—“NEFEFT-A=Z+-HLEFE

Financial assets
at amortised

EEJ*'J%ZEHEIE(Zt)

Financial
assets at fair
value through

—NF+-HA=+—H

Financial assets cost profit or loss Total
RBHKAIE  EAALERA

THEE LERMEE BasomiEE HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (&)
(Note 43) (Note 43)
(B9 743) (K1 7£43)

Financial assets at fair value RARBEFAER
through profit or loss ZEMEE - 24,249 24,249
Trade receivables B 5 e Wik K 367,083 - 367,083

Deposits and other receivables &€ M £ 4t JE Ug

iR 3K 283,101 - 283,101
Cash and bank balances B RRITET 18,894 - 18,894
669,078 24,249 693,327
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost
R KA IR
2HAEE ZemBaE
HK$'000
FET
Trade payables B SRR 237,326
Other payables and accruals E A & 1< IR 3R K B 5T RRIE 339,795
Other borrowings HifgE 18,188
Convertible bonds CEA g2 43,526
638,835

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 39. ERMITAEZARERDABSFMRE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B
Fair value hierarchy PREZSHRREIE
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TREIWAEE zEMITAEZARE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: STESREE
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZEB-AF+ZA=+—H

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
RIE B ™5 BARH BARART
ZBE BREE BRYE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(5—F) (BZfE) (B=1B) et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FER
Asset measured at fair RAREFE
value ZEE
Private club debenture FL A& FT & % 1,508 - - 1,508
As at 31 December 2018 (restated, note 43) RZZE—N\FF+ZA=+—H(EZ -
Bt 7£43)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RE BT S EpNG] ERADNA
2B BRyE BRgE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—F) (B=RE) (B=FE) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FHET FAET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E%) (E75))
(Note 43) (Note 43)

(KtiE43) (K1 7£43)

Asset measured at fair AR EEE

value ZEBE
Private club debenture FL A& Fr{& % 1,508 - - 1,608
EDB contingent EDBE AR (E

consideration - - 10,532 10,532
Derivative financial MmEEmI A

instruments - - 12,209 12,209
Total A& 1,508 - 22,741 24,249
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value AEERN RemEERERBEN
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers SR EHEF_Es2EATEQALE
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial HEER NFEZETESE A SEL
liabilities (2018: Nil). ZER(ZE—NF /&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Private club debentures

The fair value of private club debentures is valued with
reference to the market price quoted on active market.

EDB contingent consideration
The fair value of EDB Contingent Consideration has been
determined by an independent qualified professional valuer.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of EDB Contingent
Consideration arrangement HK$10,532,000 was estimated
by applying the discounted cash flow method. No specific
discount rate for the fair value estimates and assumed
results of loss of HK$8,284,000 in EDB. This is a level 3 fair
value measurement. The key unobservable assumptions in
calculating this profit are:

39.

EMIAZARERDABEFHRER
wE)

DAEBERRB(E)

RAEFESF
FABRERZAABEHIZ2ERNER
miszmiEREME -

EDBEt # 18
EDBAREBZ AARECH KB
EERBEMEMET -

RZE—-N\F+=-A=+—H  EDB
AR EZ B2 A2 1E10,532,0007%
TLIYEARIRE &R EAMET - EDB
WARBEMETITEAEHNER . A
B TE ¥ 45 k518 58,284,000/ 7T ° Uit
DEZBARERE - sTEZ AN
WEZTAERBREL:

Range

& [E

At

31 December
2018
—N\F
+—H

s

[ 4

A —
N —

+=A

Assumptions:
Discount rate

Assuming all other variables is held constant; an increase in
discount rate by 1% each year would not decrease the EDB
Contingent Consideration.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 39. ERMITEZRAABERIABESRR
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DABEHREEB(E)
Unlisted put option FELE B B E
The fair value of the unlisted put option has been determined FETREHEIANBEER—RE
by an independent qualified professional valuer by using a VEEREEMBEMRAMORE—EF
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. R EERAEE -
Significant unobservable inputs included: BANAERE ABEBBE:
Range
& F
At 31 December
2018
RZE—N\F
+-—A=+—H
Equity value I # EE HK$104,664,000
104,664,000/% 7T
Expected dividend vyield TEEA AR B s & Nil
Risk free rate 12 [ B ) 2 2.65%
Average expected volatility 19 78 B 1R 45.99%
Expected term TEEEH 0.49 year
0.49F
Increase in the average expected volatility, expected terms KR - TERT FHRTERRE
and expected dividend vyield would increase the fair value WaREzENEERSIELTREEH
of the unlisted put option. Increase in the equity value and 2 ARE - RIEEEKERRF =X
risk-free rate would decrease the fair value of the unlisted ZEmgE M EETREAEZA
put option. A e
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40.

“NEFE+ZA=+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise other
borrowings and convertible bonds. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, cash and bank balances, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of

these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally denominated in RMB, US$
and HK$. The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk arising from the monetary assets and liabilities that
are denominated in currencies other than functional

currencies of the respective group entities.

Certain of the Group’s liabilities are denominated in
US$. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from the exposure of US$ against HK$. The
Group considered the impact on the equity and profit
before tax from the change in US$, exchange rate was
nominal at the end of the reporting period since HK$
is pegged to US$.

The Group does not have any hedging instruments
outstanding. The Group will constantly review the
economic situation and its foreign currency risk profile,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in the

future as may be necessary.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT

40.
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EUIRR - ReRRITERF  BEHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 H ZE— %

“NEFE+ZA=+—HIEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
and bank balances and restricted bank deposit, trade
and other receivables and deposits and amount due
from the non-controlling shareholder and its affiliates.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position,
which is net of loss allowance, represents the Group’s
exposure to credit risk without taking into account
held or credit

the value of any collateral other

enhancements.

Cash and bank balances

The Group has limited credit risk with its deposits in
financial institutions, which are leading and reputable
and are assessed as having low credit risk. The Group
has not suffered any significant losses arising from
the non-performance by these parties in the past and
management does not expect this position to change
in the future.

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised and

creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. The Group limits its exposure to credit
risk from trade receivables by establishing maximum

payment period.

40. 2RIAMEERERERBE (&)

(b)

FEER

AEBEERBRIERERS
KARITEEF M RFIRITIFER
BN EMBURIIRRRIZES R
& T FE 2 B BCR K EL g B 2 )
FIE - EREERILEEEE

THZEEERRFHEER -

RIEEMBEARRNKER 2SR
BEZEEECGIRERBHE)
EAGEEEZEERR X
BEERMAKAZEMNERRE
BREMERIEREE

HERRITHEF
AEEBFRRMBELZER
BEZERZEERRER

ZECHBBRIGREEER
Rk AEEBELERNZEF
AT TEAOMERZERNEANE
%'ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

E 5B iR

AEEEHECERAREER M
ZE=ZTRHEENLETES -
$%l2ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%MZf

P ETES TP ARK

EEZERF - Kﬁl%§i
REMNRE MEMA%xX
BEZRKERZEERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period is generally 120 days.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. Advances
are required for certain customers. The Directors
consider that these arrangements enable the Group
to limit its credit risk exposure. As at 31 December
2019, approximately 36% (2018: 46%) and 53% (2018:
80%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from
the Group’s largest and the five largest customer
respectively, there was a significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances
due from customers other than the non-controlling
shareholder (Note 21). Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on
an extensive credit rating and individual credit limit
assessment which is mainly based on the Group’s own
trading records.

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range
of clients and the trade receivables are categorised
by common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms. The Group
applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for
trade receivables and recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected loss rate used in the
provision matrix is calculated for each category based
on the past three years and adjusted for current and
forward-looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the
historical data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s estimate on future economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables. There was
no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the year.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40.
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The information about the exposure to credit risk and
ECL for trade receivables using a provision matrix as
at 31 December 2019 is summarised below:

At 31 December 2019

LRAREERERRBE(E)

(b) FERRGE)
EZEKIESS ()
BEREERBRER-F-HF
ToA=+-HERBEBER
B SRR REL ZEBRIE
EEBRZEMBAMT

R=ZF-NFF+=A=1+—H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount allowance impaired
BIREE HAREHE BERBE GFERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHET FHET FER
Not past due K 481 AP - 261,105 - No
Less than 6 months past due #iHi D A 6{E A 1% 121,392 95 No
More than 6 months past due % Hi 2 @61 A 17% 313,471 52,092 No
695,968 52,187
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+ZA=+—H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount  allowance impaired
FEHEEX QirEE FREEE GSERE
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FHET FET FAET
Not past due K #81 AP - 172,137 - No
Less than 6 months past due # Hi 7 61E A 2% 7,997 171 No
More than 6 months past due % Hi %3 E61E A 22% 239,825 52,705 No
419,959 52,876
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil),
except for trade receivables from the non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recognised loss
allowance of HK$52,187,000 (2018: HK$52,876,000)
on the trade receivables. The movement in the loss
allowance for trade receivables during the year is
summarised below:

40.

cRAREERERRBE(E)

(b)

EERME)
ESEWIRH(Z)
RZZE—-NF+-_A=+—8"
REFWERE S RWIRZIZTHE

EMERR(CT-N\F &)
HEIF 12 B IR IR 2 B 5 B MR IR 3R
BR SN -

R—E—hF+=—A=+—8"
RNEB®E S EWIR KHE R
&5 18 B 552,187,000 L (= &
— J\ 4 : 52,876,000/ JT) ° &F
W' BZRBIRR 2 BB G

FEBanT

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

At 1 January Hn—HA—H 52,876 55,331

Increase in allowance 15 18 hn 5,924 6,429

Reversal of loss allowance R [0l B 18 B (6,305) (6,275)

Exchange realignment b 5 3 & (308) (2,609)

At 31 December WR+—RA=+—H 52,187 52,876
Other receivables and deposits HBtBEWIRZRIZE

The Group considers that the other receivables and
deposits have low credit risk based on the debtors’
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default.
Impairment on other receivables is measured on
12-month ECL and reflects the short maturities of the
exposures.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and whether the financial asset is
credit-impaired, the Group has taken into account the
historical actual credit loss experience on the debtors
historical utilisation pattern of deposits paid and the
financial position of the counterparties by reference
to, among others, their management or audited
accounts, and adjusted for forward-looking factors
that are specific to the debtors and general economic
conditions of the industry in which the counterparties
operate, in estimating the probability of default of these
financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in
each case. The management of the Group considers
the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant
after taking into account the financial position and
credit quality of the counterparties.
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REER /- B EUIRR R

ReBHBEEERR  KER
ﬁﬁ‘%}\*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ REHETT

/\cu ?’jfﬁi/\/mgﬁ{iﬂtﬂjﬂ
B (K o E f fE IR K 2R 1E TD
R+ RAEHEEEEF=E
I R PTAR REBe 2 AR o

ﬁ#%%@f%%%&#?
FTEERBETETNLSER
j(fﬂmi*bu&%fraﬂéf% ﬁiﬁ
%%ﬁ@%’$%ﬁa%ﬁﬁ
BEHEAZENEREAAHHE
AZUEEREEBREERK
RGEF2HBMRR U2 E
(A i) EE M K EZE
B UHEBSASETE ZANEE
AERRXSGEFLEEMEZIT
EZ—REEBRERARE
EETZSEemEEZEOM
RUREBRTZELNEIE -
KEBRSGHFZ BB K
FEEER ALEEEER
B ZECREECEBEE

EERITTERXN -
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REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables and deposits (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recognised loss
allowance of HK$13,688,000 (2018: HK$12,526,000)
on the balances. The movement in the loss allowance

40.

cRMEAREEEERBEE)
(b) FERRGE)
HEMERIRARZE (E)

R—ZEBE—-—NAF+—_A=+—
A EERSEFERERER
B {%13,688,000 T (= & —

for the balances during the year is summarised below. /\ 1 12,526,000/ L) ° F
HEz2BEREZSHM
ZZD—F °

2019 2018
—E-NF —N\%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FAET
At beginning of the reporting period 7 ¥R & 8 %] 12,526 13,144
Increase in allowance B 15 18 10 1,235 -
Exchange realignment ME 3 B (73) (618)
At the end of the reporting period e SN 13,688 12,526
Amounts due from the non-controlling shareholder BEWHEATGHZEREERE

of a subsidiary and its affiliates BEAGEE

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether
there is significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and whether the amount due from the
non-controlling shareholder and its affiliates is credit-
impaired, the Group has taken into account the
historical actual credit loss experience on the non-
controlling shareholder and its affiliates and their
financial position with reference to their management
accounts and adjusted for forward-looking factor, the
Debt Assignment and the fair value of the Assigned
Debt and the Conversion Right received mentioned
in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements,
in estimating the probability of default of the amounts
from the non-controlling shareholder and its affiliates,
as well as the loss upon default. The management of
the Group considers that the credit risk on the amounts
is significant, however, their ECL is considered to be
insignificant after taking into consideration of the above

factors.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the year.

EMEEHEHWZTJESTEHT&EA%
EEERRREEVIZERE
j(fﬂaai‘j)D&JEHSZé‘H Hxﬂx%&

EMBEARIRERGHEEE
BER  ANEBEZEEEZR
BEEEBEBAR ZUTER

EEBFBELCHRREMBMKR
WT2E2EEHEKE  SRATE
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LA R 88 i (E 7% I FT AN 2 3%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of

convertible bonds and other borrowings.

The maturity profile of the financial liabilities of the
Group as at the end of the reporting periods, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

At 31 December 2019

40. 2RIEAMEERERRBE(E)

(c)

REE SRR
AEEZBEREREBERAER
BEFREMEENEREZ
SEMEBELTEMEZBRE
o

RBEHR - EREATHER
BANRZAEEERAEED
HERMT

R-ZZFE-AEFE+ZA=+—H

On demand
or less than 3 to 12
3 months months 1 to 5 years Total
RERTY
P R3EA 32128 A 1255 BEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FEX FERT FHET
Trade payables Z 5 e IR 266,073 210,585 - 476,658
Other payables, HA R
accruals and FEETRIE &
deposit received B E 422,073 - - 422,073
Other borrowings HibEE 5,000 33,188 240,000 278,188
Lease liabilities Al E 5 731 839 10,534 12,104
693,877 244,612 250,534 1,189,023

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40.
POLICIES (continued)

(¢) Liquidity risk (continued) (c)
At 31 December 2018

LRAREERERRBE(E)

HEBELEME)
RZE-N\F+=-_A=+—H

On demand
or less than 3 to 12
3 months months 1 to 5 years Total
B E Kk
L 318 A 3x=12{8 A 1E54F Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT FAET
Trade payables B 5 EMIRR 121,344 115,982 - 237,326
Other payables, H At ETIRER -
accruals and FEET A K
deposit received B iz e 338,032 - 1,763 339,795
Other borrowings HihgE - - 18,188 18,188
Convertible bonds R ES - 45,608 - 45,608
459,376 161,590 19,951 640,917
(d) Capital management d EBEXRER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018.

AEBEEAERBZHERE B
BMRASEARGSELE 2R
o BB RBZEARALE
U RHEXBEEFE FREX

ZBREE -

AEBRBEEBAZESH R
HEEEZRBREE  THBE
BERBEWELRE - BHER
LFABERGERE  NEBETR
A A%
RIRE 2 EARFEITHR o &
E-_FT-NF+-_A=1+—BRK
T N\F+-A=+—HItF
EUEEREBEAZEEZ -

BB RIKE RS

BRSEREFF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40.

POLICIES (continued)
(d) Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt

includes trade payables,

other payables,

accruals

and deposits received, other borrowings convertible
bonds and tax payable, net of restricted bank deposits
and cash and bank balances. Capital includes equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The gearing
ratios as at the end of the respective reporting periods

were as follows:

cRAREERERRBE(E)

(d)

BAREE A
AEEFEAERFERLEL S
MEmEESE s AEAKLL
RKEREARR - EHFEE
EEMBEERBTEERE
BRI $R 1775 51k 2 B 5 M IR
2 R IE R - B HOE
REWEZS - HipfE s - Tk
B 5 B R BT o B AR
ZONGE LY P e R
ArBEMA s AEA KL X
W

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB T FHET
(Restated)
(E5)
(Note 43)
(Kt 5£43)
Trade payables E 5 IR 476,658 237,326
Other payables, accruals and H At FE IR 5X
deposit received EERERERIERS 735,312 629,124
Other borrowings EMEE 218,188 18,188
Lease liabilities HERE 9,558 -
Convertible bonds ARRES = 43,526
Tax payable FE FH 1R 16,116 5,150
Less: Cash and bank balances and & : B & REBTE TR
restricted bank deposits % R & 77 3K (25,877) (18,894)
Net debt B HE 1,429,955 914,420
Capital — equity attributable to BER - AREHEAA
owners of the Company FEAS M 1 541,520 513,728
Capital and net debt BEARRERFE 1,971,475 1,428,148
Net gearing ratio FEAEABEE 73% 64%

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e U HmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE M. FAATzBHBEMRRT
COMPANY
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
K1 it FE&T FE T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries N B AR 21 E 152,122 152,122
Total non-current assets IRBEEHRE 152,122 152,122
Current assets REEE
Prepayment, deposit and other ENFIE -Zek
receivables H th B IR X 504 424
Cash and bank balances ReERRITER 14,162 13,909
Total current assets MEEELHE 14,666 14,333
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables, accruals and E A FERIIR 5K & FE AT
deposit received HIE KRB WS 16,086 4,904
Convertible bonds Al E 5 - 43,526
Total current liabilities mEaEBEEE 16,086 48,430
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (1,420) (34,097)
Total assets less current liabilities EE A ERTHERS 150,702 118,025
Non-current liabilities EFRBERE
Amount due to subsidiaries AR PNGIE @ 2,819 167,420
Other payables and accruals Eﬁﬁf?ﬁ%‘?m&!ﬁ
5 308 - 666
Other borrowings EmEE 200,000 -
Total non-current liabilities IRBEELRE 202,819 168,086
NET LIABILITIES BEFHE (52,117) (50,061)
EQUITY &
Share capital b 28 28,707 27,264
Reserves & 30 (80,824) (77,325)
TOTAL DEFICIT &5 At 42 2R (52,117) (50,061)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 30 March 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. ZHAO Xu Guang
K K&
Director

EF

Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick
BEAOBEE
Director

EF

Eé—?—?fﬁ ﬂ +EIZ«(§$/\?H:/E&
BEEM TRTIESAERRSR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

42.

43.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD
(a) Since January 2020, the PRC has reported certain
confirmed cases of COVID-19 which may affect the
global business environment. It may foresee that
certain impact of the group’s business and financial
results may occur if the COVID-19 crisis prolongs, but
the extent could not be estimated at the date of this
report. The group was not aware of any material effect
on the consequential financial results of the Group due
to the COVID-19 outbreak up to the date of this report.
The Board will minimize the impact of COVID-19 to

protect the interests of the Group.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

In prior year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had not
accounted for its interest in an associate in accordance
with the equity method as set out in the Group’s financial
statements for prior year.

During the course of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2019, the Group’s management had obtained
EDB’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 which were prepared under HKFRSs
and other financial information for the purpose of equity
accounting of the Group. In addition, the management has
engaged an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform a valuation on the purchase price allocation of the
Group’s investment in EDB at acquisition date. The financial
assets, EDB Contingent Consideration and EDB Put Option
are identified and are measured at fair value at acquisition
date and year end 31 December 2018.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT

42.

43.

REMKRERER

(a) B-ZT=-ZEF— A HPEHER
SRR ESRERIRIBAON
AEkmEcE THEZRE -
MEBEHE ATLEREE S
ErEBSMBERRERTE
BEYEGEHEZAREAH
KRegEfbear c EEAREHE
ERESBERRENUTHRRS

MR - BN B MR E R
XEBREAFE EFEH

8 AR S 0 3
BE - AR ARE 2R -

teEEE
RBE=FT—\F+=A=+—A

LFE  AEEEHRREEREERE
HEMEQRTHEZ  CEASE
M EFEFBERERAIR -

REBEAEEEE-ZS—NF+=A
=T —HIEYHRFENGEPBEERE
Hif  AEEMERERNS TEDBE
22 )\F+_-_A=+—HIFE
iR E M mE - 2V BmRERE
BB WEER R AN BE R R
BIAHARE B A EARR © Lo
ERECREBTRLNAREEMGE
Bl U B8 B A AN & B3R B R EDBAY
BEEROIRETHE SREE -
EDBEL AR (B K EDB R4 HitE R U B8
AkEBEEZZTE—N\F+=ZA=+—H
HFEEAARBEETERFTE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e U HmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

43.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued)
Accordingly, prior year adjustments have been made. Details

of the restatements made to the consolidated statement

of financial position as at 31 December 2018 and the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year ended 31 December 2018 are set out below:

(a)

(b)

()

Recognition of financial assets (EDB Contingent
Consideration and EDB Put Option) at fair value
through profit or loss at acquisition date

The effect of the above change on the consolidated
December 2018
decrease the interest in an associate and increase the

financial position as at 31 is to
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss by

approximately HK$21,728,000.

Recognition of fair value changes of financial
assets (EDB Contingent Consideration and EDB
Put Option) at fair value through profit or loss for
the period ended 31 December 2018

The effect of the above change on the consolidated
December 2018
increase the financial assets at fair value through

financial position as at 31 is to
profit or loss by approximately HK$1,013,000. The
effect on the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2018 is to
recognise the fair value gain of the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss which is presented
in “other operating income, net”

HK$1,013,000.

by approximately

Recognition of share of loss of an associate for
the period ended 31 December 2018

The effect of the above change on the consolidated
December 2018
decrease the interest in an associate and the closing

financial position as at 31 is to
balance of equity by approximately HK$286,000. The
effect on the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2018 is to
recognise the share of results of an associate which
is presented in

HK$286,000.

“other income and gains, net” by

43.

LtFEEREE)

ﬁJﬁt CEFHEFERE

i

AT 51
“NE+ZA=1T—HHEHE

ﬁﬁ““ﬁkﬁ%:z&%ziix—)\iﬂ—_ﬂ
=t HALEFENGEEEREKRE
BEIWFFE:

(@)

(b)

()

BERKWBAUQABENEN
tH &= (EDBHANKEREDB

B34 40 ) O 2
EREHH-F—\F A=
t-RNBANBRROEE

RO E R RS IR
/LTEDJFE HHTE E’]ir‘ﬂﬁ
E L HN#4921,728,0007 Tt °

ERXBEE_FT-NF+=-A=
+—BILLEHEQIREER
AEHESEMEE (EDBHA
KREREDBREHE)NESH

FREBH-T—\E+=A=
t-BmBARBRRNY S

U AABEFEEHEZDN
& EhE E N T 491,013,000
T HEBEEZT-N\F+ZA=
T—HIEFEMNGS Z2EKZE
ENFERWAURAAEE
EfEENEREENAAE
Was EIEMEERAFE]
f 5l 7R #91,013,00078 7t °

EBRBE-ZF-N\F+=-A=+
—HILHEELBEDTER

L gHHBE—_T—\F+
A=+ —BWEGEEHBMRR

B B N R B RE R
DR H B R #4258 /7 £9286,000 4
T BEZE-N\F+ZA=1
*EILkifE’J mAEEKRER
W E2RERELR—RHABRER
GES W L‘ME@H&U\&M&E@
%1% 57286,000/%8 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

43. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 43. LEEREB(E)
Impact on the consolidated statement of comprehensive HEE-_ZT—-N\F+A=+—HL
income for the year ended 31 December 2018: FENGFEETERRRZZE
As previously Prior year
reported adjustments As restated
DS LtEERE 575
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Other operating income, net HEh @& A F 5 29,243 727 29,970
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B A& 175,932 727 176,659
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AN F @ A 145,981 727 146,708
Total comprehensive income ZAEENZEKE
for the year pagc) 117,389 727 118,116
Profit for the year attributable E{GANFEEFEAR :
to:
Owners of the Company PINNETE SN 128,391 727 129,118
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR 5 17,590 — 17,590
145,981 727 146,708
Total comprehensive income EEAFEENEE
attributable to: W4 s
Owners of the Company KRG HEAB A 102,377 727 103,104
Non-controlling interests IR A 15,012 — 15,012
117,389 727 118,116
Earnings per share BRW =
Basic AR HK4.92 centsi& I HK4.95 centsi& il
Basic s HK4.74 cents 1l HK4.77 cents &l

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-A=+—-HILFE

43.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 43. L ¥ /
HEE_Z-N\F+-_A=1t—HH®

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2018:

e =[F] B
52 A9 3E

(%)

HAMBARRROTZE:

As previously Prior year
reported adjustments As restated
DS FFERE ERl
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET
Non-current assets IERBEE
Interest in an associate N— A E AT
4 o 101,804 (22,014) 79,790
Financial assets at fair value AR S EETA
through profit or loss B
BE 1,508 22,741 24,249
Total non-current assets I REBEELEE 673,956 727 674,683
Total assets less current EEBBRARBAR
liabilities 599,134 727 599,861
NET ASSETS FEE 561,488 727 562,215
TOTAL EQUITY MR EE 561,488 727 562,215
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

Gross floor Attributable
Name/location Lease term Type area interest
£B /1 15 Bl BEEE e &
(sq.m.)
(FFK)
Properties Held for the Group’s Own Use
AEBBEEERZUF
The People’s Republic of China
FEAREHE
No. 1 Jinyan Road, Economic Development Medium term lease C and | 29,148 90%
Zone, Xiaoyi City, Shanxi Province
WAEEZEETRERER S EBKIR hHEE CEl
C  Commercial c @Fx

/ Industrial

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFMBHE
Year ended 31 December
HEt-A=t-ALEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NE T\ —T—+% TR —T-0%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FiET FHEL FEL FiET
(Restated)
(E751)
(Note 43)
(f243)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FEREER
Revenue W A 1,605,356 1478049 1,330,791 792,518 461,384
Cost of sales HEKK (1,429,499) (1,232,228)  (1,117,808)  (658,103)  (494,878)
Gross profit/(loss) R/ (£8) 175,857 245,821 212,983 134,415 (33,494)
Other income and gains, net HARKE @ FE 68,452 44,953 45,419 58,891 94,152
Selling and distribution costs HERD HBA (123,024)  (137637)  (146,429) (55,949) (23,094)
Administrative expenses EEEH (88,018) (103,301) (83,804) (79,608) (97,155)
Finance costs BisER (11,409) (2,200) (8,015) (1,582) (23,964)
Other operating Hib gl A/
income/(expenses), net (M%) 358 4,392 29,970 21528 12,758 (41,152)
Reversal/(provision) impairment nE BERESB
loss on items of property, plant BB {E & 1B
and equipment e/ (%) - 99,053 84,977 - (14,760)
Profit/(loss) before tax BEAER(BE) 26,250 176,659 126,659 68,925 (139,467)
Income tax (expense)/credit MERAES)/Ee (11,547) (29,951) 5,254 (8,544) 8,732
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR A% EF /(F1#8) 14,703 146,708 131,913 60,381 (130,735)
Attributable to: FE{f -
Owners of the Company AREEBA 9,761 129,118 117,898 55,663 (110,474)
Non-controlling interests FEkES 4,942 17,590 14,015 4,718 (20,261)
14,703 146,708 131,913 60,381 (130,735)
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEHRBHRE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

EE BfERFiEk#ES

Year ended 31 December

HEtZA=T-HLFE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-NE TN\ —Z-—+F —T-RF —T-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiET TER FER FiET
(Restated)
(E731)
(Note 43)
(Hf543)
TOTAL ASSETS BEAR 2,061,088 1,511,845 1,116,534 955,267 905,285
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEHE (1,466,459)  (949,630)  (700,565) (687,662) (893,941)
NET ASSETS BEEFHE 594,629 562,215 415,969 267,605 11,344
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ADAEBNELRE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 541,520 513,728 376,868 244,610 1,142
NON-CONTROLLING FERER
INTERESTS 53,109 48,487 39,101 22,995 10,202
594,629 562,215 415,969 267,605 11,344

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MZEZERERAT




DEFINITIONS
B

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
REBREN  BXESEMEN  THRAERETINESE:

‘AGM”
RRBFARE]

“Annual Report”

[ %)

“associate(s)”
B8 AL

“Board”

EE2]

“Bye-Laws”
[ a4 8]

“CG Report”
[EERRE]

“Company”

(A7

“Companies Ordinance”

PNSEESEN

“Director(s)”

[E=]

“ESG Report”

[RE - HERERRE]

“Group”
[REE]

the annual general meeting of the Company

ARBBIIZBRBEFRE

This annual report of the Group prepared for the year ended 31 December 2019

AEBFMRBEBE_T-NFT_AZT - BLFEZAFER

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
B FmARAME T2 AR

board of Directors of the Company
ARAIEFE

the bye-laws from time to time adopted by the Company
ARARTKRMAZ AR

the corporate governance report contained in this Annual Report from pages 43 to 62
AERFABZ2EMH 2 PEERRE

Huscoke Holdings Limited (formerly known as Huscoke Resources Holdings Limited), a
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, whose issued Shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange
MEZERERAR(RERNEERERERAR) RARESMULZARRA
HE B#TRONBZMER L

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
B =B E622Z (A RHER)

the directors of the Company

PAUNE]: §=
the environmental, social and governance report contained in this Annual Report from
pages 63 to 92

AFREIENEMAZRE HERERBRE

the Company and its subsidiaries
AARREKE AT
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DEFINITIONS
B

“Hong Kong”
(&)

“Listing Rules”
[ Al

“Memorandum of Association”

(MR ER M)

“PRC”
[ E

“RMB”
PN

“SFO”
[R5 R BEHA)

“Share(s)”
[t

“Shareholder(s)”
BES

“Stock Exchange”
6 22 P |

“subsidiaries”

[P A ]

“Us$”
E

vop
(%)

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
PEARANBEFERRTRE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

ERABZAEERAT

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B EES EmRA

the memorandum of association of the Company

ARBZEBERAM

the People’s Republic of China, excludes Hong Kong and Macau in this Annual Report

REARAME  RAFHRME  TREFBLRMA

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FERKZEZEERARE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BREDFENEE L BE GO

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company
ARABRATEFRAECOVETZEBK

holder(s) of the Share(s)
B A A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEBMARHMBERRAR

a subsidiary (within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance or section 86 of the
Companies Act) for the time being and from time to time of the Company

ARBAERETEZHMBAR(RATKRIRRREECHE L TE)

United States dollars, the lawful currency of United States

XERBZETEERT

per cent

B

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZRERAH
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